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23,060 24,393 29,833 ) (18)
401 211 () 90 N/
8,369 8,246 9,165 1 (10)
9,814 9,221 8,861 6 4
18,183 17,467 18,026 4 ®3)
4,476 6,715 11,814 (33) (43)
884 1,308 2,746 32) (52)
3,592 5,407 9,068 (39 (40)
139 165 111 (16) 49
3,453 5,242 8,957 (3 (41)
) 2023 2022 2021
[ 655 881 1,107
@0?) 31 23 117
Q@ 235 229 371
2024
(1) 100
@)
®3) 144A
) 144A
2023 2022 13 4,578
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(€Y (&) (©)
7,206 524 (2.886) 66 4,910
2,919 2,235 (190) 112 5,076
10,125 2,759 (3,076) 178 9,986
7,848 375 (975) 425 7,673
) 2022
(€Y @ (©)
5,223 535 (257) 36 5,537
2,947 2,462 (81) (96) 5,232
8,170 2,997 (338) (60) 10,769
7,711 341 922 48 9,022
) 2021
(€Y @ (©)
4,110 508 520 8 5,146
3,327 2,648 (226) 540 6,289
7,437 3,156 294 548 11,435
5,098 307 1,835 276 7,516
@
@
(©)
2023 2022
9,986
2023 2022 15
7,673
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14,019 13,872 13,966 1 [€H)
() 3,556 2,473 4,259 44 (42)
8,118 7,429 5,393 9 38
[€)) 575 643 625 ayn 3
26,268 24,417 24,243 8 1
131 69 11 90 N/
13,972 12,534 13,090 1 D)
5,635 5,231 4,961 8 5
19,607 17,765 18,051 10 ()
6,530 6,583 6,181 [O) 7
1,508 1,444 1,447 4 —
5,022 5,139 4,734 () 9

(€))

) 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
[ 5,129 4,187
147 146
[®) 21 22
(©)] 346 351
( O]
2.92 1.59
2.43 0.53
2023 2022 2021

282.3 311.3 437.7
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
60
O] ( ) )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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) 12 31 12 31
) 3,979 3,392
@ 1,983 1,678
50 49
2023 2022 2021
?) 109.2 162.8 179.3
(€))
@)
(©) ( )
2023 2022
12 31 12 31
( YA 1,150 795
( () 8.1 8.0
2023 2022 2021
( DART )( )(3) 759 864 1,161
[€)) 25
)
(3) DART
(€5)
2023 2022
12 31 12 31
( NO) 416 302
( Y(3) 6.6 6.3
(€))
@)
2023 2022 2021 29
34 24
(©)
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2023
14,019
2023 DCP 858 282
44 3,556
DCP GAAP
2023 8,118
2023
131
2022
69
2023 10 19,607
DCP
DCP GAAP
165 FDIC
2022 2023
) 12 31 @) ©) (3) 12 31
) 501 70 (23) 41 589
408 96 (56) 53 501
167 29 (32) 24 188
552 98 (73) 68 645
1,628 293 (184) 186 1,923
50 60 (50) — 60
1,678 353 (234) 186 1,983
2021 2022
) 12 31 @) (5) @ 3) 12 31
D) 479 141 (25) (94) 501
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467 76 (50) (85) 408
211 29 (35) (38) 167
636 94 (67) (111) 552
1,793 340 Qa7 (328) 1,628
46 38 (34) — 50
1,839 378 (211) (328) 1,678
2020 2021
) 12 31 1)(6) [©) (3) 12 31
) 359 86 (20) 54 479
379 100 (54) 42 467
177 42 (30) 22 211
509 113 (58) 72 636
1,424 341 (162) 190 1,793
48 30 (32) — 46
1,472 371 (194) 190 1,839
@
@
(©))
@®
(5) 2022 750 (
)
(6) 2021 430 (
)
(€D)
bps) 2023 2022 2021
12 12 14
92 94 95
80 81 82
91 92 93
65 66 72
6 6 5
64 65 70
@
( )

781427



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

791427



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
2023 2022 2021 2023 2022
5,231 5,332 5,576 ® 4)
@ 139 43 644 N/M (93)
5,370 5,375 6,220 — (14)
2,217 2,273 2,373 D) 0
2,311 2,295 2,169 1 6
4,528 4,568 4,542 0 1
842 807 1,678 4 (52)
199 162 356 23 (54)
643 645 1,322 — (51)
4 (15) (25) 127 40
639 660 1,347 ®) (51)
@
2023 AUM
5,231
AUM
AUM
2023 DCP
2023 139
2023 4,528
DCP
2022 (4) 2023
12 31 Q) ® 3) ) 12 31
259 40 €l 57 ©) 205
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173 56 (62) 11 ) 171
431 108 1) 57 3 508
AUM 863 204 (210) 125 ® 974
442 2,282 (2,244) 20 (15) 485
1,305 2,486 (2,454) 145 (23 1,459
2021 2022
( ) 12 31 [€h) ) ©) 4 12 31
395 56 %) (106) 12) 259
207 66 (78) (16) (6) 173
466 102 (83) “n ©) 431
AUM 1,068 224 (235) (169) (25) 863
497 2,224  (2,268) () ®) 442
1,565 2,448  (2,503) (175) (B0 1,305
2020 4 2021
( ) 12 31 [€h) @) ©) (6) 12 31
242 100 (85) 34 104 395
08 67 (55) — 97 207
153 95 (78) 51 245 466
AUM 493 262 (218) 85 446 1,068
288 1,940  (1,852) 6 115 497
781 2,202  (2,070) 91 561 1,565
(€))
@)
®
O)
(5) 2023 (FINS)
AUM 60
(6) 2021 Eaton Vance Corp.( AUM
AUM
( ) 2023 2022 2021
279 298 362
170 186 181
466 435 380
AUM 915 919 923
464 462 430
AUM 1,379 1,381 1,353
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32 34 36
AUM a4 46 51
13 11 5
AUM 34 34 37

(€))
14
(€D)
( 2023 12 31 2022 12 31

66.6 66.9
51.4 56.4
118.0 123.3
60.3 54.4
(@) 86.2 91.7
( 146.5 146.1
10.1 6.9
40.8 37.1
10.7 10.2
4.1 6.0
( 65.7 60.2
396.1 391.0
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(©) — — —
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12
31
( ) 2023 2022 2021
693 761 810
668 (716) 526
1,361 45 1,336
( ) 2023 2022 2021
162 ©n 372
984 11 798
215 131 166
1,361 45 1,336
(€9)
( )
2023 12 31 @0?) 5,331
2024 ) (905)
2023 12 31 €)) 1,373
2024 2023 €)) 357
®) 6,156
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®) 20 70
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2025 337
2026 859
1,730
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19
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21
( )
( FRC )
BRC
) 2023 12 31
IS WM I
72,928 16,172 132 89,232
353,841 7,962 5,271 367,074
39,212 115,595 — 154,807
90,701 20,039 — 110,740
119,823 1,268 — 121,001
47,333 31,237 1,535 80,105
@ 72,110 146,526 4 218,640
424 10,199 6,084 16,707
26 3,427 3,602 7,055
&) 14,108 12,743 1,301 28,242
810,506 365,168 18,019 1,193,693

) 2022 12 31
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IS WM IM

88,362 39,539 226 128,127

294,884 1,971 4,460 301,315

40,481 119,450 — 159,931

102,511 11,396 — 113,907

132,619 755 — 133,374

47,515 29,620 1,405 78,540

(D) 67,676 146,105 4 213,785

429 10,202 6,021 16,652

36 3,911 3,671 7,618

2) 15,324 10,356 1,302 26,982

789,837 373,305 17,089 1,180,231
IS —
WM —
IM —

@
)
@
) 2022 12 31
1,800 2023 12 31 1,940
( HQLA )
(
( )
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137,635 122,110
83,733 86,628
@ 20,117 23,416
678 693
HQLA (1) 306,368 299,177
( HQLA) 8,136 8,190
314,504 307,367
(1) HOLA HQLA
@)
( )
2023 12 31 2023 30
132,870 132,663
5,359 6,101
138,229 138,764
58,494 53,681
56,459 58,839
114,953 112,520
61,322 56,083
176,275 168,603
314,504 307,367
100 LCR NSFR
LCR 30
HQLA
LCR HQLA (
) HQLA HQLA
NSFR
2023 12 31 LCR NSFR (100 )
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2023 12 31 2023 30
HQLA(L)
58,047 60,163
[©) 194,970 181,010
HOLA (D) 253,017 241,173
196,488 190,336
LCR 129 127
(1) LCR HQLA HQLA
@
( )
2023 12 31 2023 30
555,884 553,413
465,226 468,290
NSFR 118
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) 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
231,831 247,281
77,708 78,213
(€D) 6,219 9,954

)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
235,928 261,627
87,285 77,268
(€))
(
)
(
13 )

) 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
€)) 148,274 202,592
139,978 117,356
288,252 319,948
63,552 36,698
[©)) 351,804 356,646

@
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() 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
60
2023
2023 12 31 D
( )
— 3,188 3,188
2024 8,915 11,236 20,151
2025 22,030 13,493 35,523
2026 24,516 10,907 35,423
2027 19,282 6,056 25,338
2028 11,432 9,807 21,239
2029 90,635 32,235 122,870
176,810 83,734 260,544
176,810 86,922 263,732
@
2023 12 31 2,640 2022 12 31 2,380
( )

13
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2024 16
DBRS R-1C ) AC )
F1 A+
P-1 Al
a-1 A+
S&P A-2 A-
MSBNA
F1+ AA-
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
MSPBNA
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
2023 2022 2021
( ) 62 113 126
( 85.35 87.25 91.13
( ) 5,300 9,865 11,464
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17
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14
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CFTC SEC
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TLAC
TLAC
( RWA )
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 zgggz 1§2 3§1
_ _ 2.5
( sCB H(@) 5.4 5.8 N/A
6-SIB ©) 3.0 3.0 3.0
( CCyB )(3) 0 0 0
8.4 8.8 5.5
(1) SCB
(2) 6-SIB 6-SIB
(3) CCyB 2.5 FRB
( )
RWA
RWA ( )
SCB  G-SIB CCyB RWA RWA
RWA ( )
2.5 G-SIB CCyB
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 zgggz 1f2 3%1
@
4.5 12.9 13.3 10.0
6.0 14.4 14.8 11.5
8.0 16.4 16.8 13.5

@
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RWA
— (
)
O) (i)
RWA
RWA
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
SLR
SLR
2020
RWA
( CECL )
2022 25 2023
50 2025
( 2023 2022
1 12 31 D 12 31
69,448 68,670
78,183 77,191
88,874 86,575
RWA 456,053 447,849
12.9 15.2 13.3 15.3
14.4 17.1 14.8 17.2
16.4 19.5 16.8 19.3
( 2023 2022
@ 12 31 12 31
69,448 68,670
78,183 77,191
88,190 86,159
RWA 448,154 438,806
10.0 15.5 15.6
11.5 17.4 17.6
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( ) 2023 2022
O 12 31 12 31
@) 1,159,626 1,150,772
4.0 6.7 6.7
©) 1,429,552 1,399,403
SLR 5.0 5.5 5.5
(€))
@)
(
)
(©)
O)
( ) @)
(iii)
( ) 2023 2022
12 31 12 31
90,288 91,391 (1,103)
(16,394) (16,393) (€))
(5,509) (6,048) 539
CECL 124 185 (61)
€)) 939 (465) 1,404
69,448 68,670 778
8,750 8,750 —
758 552 206
9,508 9,302 206
(773) (781) 8
78,183 77,191 992
8,760 7,846 914
2,051 1,613 438
(120) (75) (45)
10,691 9,384 1,307
88,874 86,575 2,299
8,760 7,846 914
1,367 1,197 170
(120) (75) (45)
10,007 8,968 1,039
88,190 86,159 2,031
(€)) ( DVA )
RWA
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RWA
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6,065 660
2,924 (354)
(1,316) 385
(2,606) 6,903
1,621 1,964
3,768 2,662
RWA 10,456 12,220
2023 12 31 407,731 297,858
RWA
2022 12 31 50,574 50,563
VaR (3,946) (3.946)
VaR (5,017) G,017)
94 94
341 231
6,276 6,276
RWA (2,252) (2,362)
2023 12 31 48,322 48,201
RWA
2022 12 31 N/A 102,605
RWA N/A (510)
2023 12 31 N/A 102,095
RWA 456,053 448,154
VaR — ( VaR )
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( )
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( LTD )
SPOE LTD LTD
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( S I —
)
TLAC LTD LTD
LTD 2016 12 31
(1)RWA 18 (i) (SLR
) 7.5 TLAC
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G-SIB (i)
4.5 LTD
TLAC TLAC
TLAC 2.5

G-SIB CCyB( ) (RWA )
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TLAC
TLAC (
)
TLAC LTD
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
( ) @
TLAC(2) 250,914 245,951
RWA TLAC 18.0 21.5 55.0 54.9
TLAC 7.5 9.5 17.6 17.6
LTD(3) 162,547 159,444
RWA LTD 9.0 9.0 35.6 35.6
LTD 4.5 4.5 11.4 11.4
@
) TLAC ( ) LTD
(3) TLAC LTD( 50
)
LTD
TLAC 2021
G-SIB (TLAC LTD
)
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 TLAC
FRB
FRB ( CCAR )
FRB
FRB FRB
2,500
( ) FRB
FRB
FRB

SCB
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SCB
.5 SCB ©O)
RWA (ii)2.5
RWA
SCB 10 FRB
FRB 10 SCB
FRB
2023 2023
FRB 2023 28 FRB FRB
50
4.6 4.1
2023 10 2024
30 SCB 5.4 SCB
12.9
(IR)
2023 18
0.775 0.85 2023
200
( )
(
)
(€D)
) 2023 2022 2021
45.6 48.8 43.5
28.8 31.0 28.6
) 10.4 10.6 8.8
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2021
2021 2019
2023
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SPOE
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( )
(
) SPOE TLAC
LTD TLAC
( )
( )
(
) J—
LIBOR
FRB LIBOR (
IBOR )
2023 30 LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR « )
( LIBOR ) LIBOR 2024
LIBOR 2024
2023 12 31 LIBOR

LIBOR
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(2023 12 31 )
( 001 ) 3,500,000, 000 2,038,893,979 1,461,106,021
( 0.00 ) 30,000,000 1,227,382 28,772,618
(2023 12 31 )
0.01 2,038,893,979 —
0.01 ( ) 44,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 519,882 )
0.01 ( ) 34,500 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 34,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 20,000 ( ) —
0.01 (M ) 400,000 _
0.01 ( ) 3,000 —
0.01 ( ) 52,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
— 2,040,121,361 — —

@ MUFG
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(2023 12 31 )
®
[O16) ) (O
44,000 1,000 25,000
©) 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
34,500 1,000 25,000
34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
(6) 52,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
(©) 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 10 15
@ 0.01
@
©) ( ) (
)
( )
O
Q)
(i) ) 90
( )
®)
1,000 10
(6) 2021 10 25
@) 2022
(
) ) 2023 2021
@ @ @
1,522 67 1,061 47 1,022 44
100 52 100 52 100 52
1,791 62 1,781 60 1,781 60
1,719 58 1,719 59 1,719 60
(@) - - - - 719 38
1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
- - — — 253 15
1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
1,219 24 1,219 24 1,219 24
®) 59 24 59 24 59 24
(0 9.160 27 5,300 16 5,300 16
1,063 55 1,063 55 236 12
1,625 65 736 29 — —
557 489 468
3.25 5,393 2.95 5,108 2.10 3,818
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2019 2023
( ) ( ) {( )} ¢ ) ( )
2018 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 |2,038,893,979 23,794
( 1,343,945 ) ( 3,155 ) ( 3,753,266 )
2019 500 20,000 @A) « )
(500) (20,000) )
131
13
2019 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 |2,038,893,979 23,935
( 1,343,945 ) ( 3,155 ) ( 3,775,507 )
2020 730 403,000 (
)
518
1,093 | E*TRADE
( E*TRADE )
2020 12 31 9,250 1,247,382 20 [2,038,893,979 25,546
( 1,459,095 ) ( 3,155 ) ( 4,029,626 )
2021 1,300 52,000 (25) )
(2,800) (112,000) (
)
1,117
2,185
— [ E*TRADE
18
2021 12 31 7,750 1,187,382 20 [2,038,893,979 28,841
( 1,222,485 ) ( 3,155 ) (4,549,379 )
2022 1,000 40,000 6) )
503
1
2022 12 31 8,750 1,227,382 20 |2,038,893,979 29,339
( 1,380,225 ) ( 3,155 ) ( 4,627,934 )
2023 493
2023 12 31 8,750 1,227,382 20 |2,038,893,979 29,832
( 1,380,225 ) ( 3,155 ) ( 4,705,700 )
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10-K SEC
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( 38 59 ) 328
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2021 12 31
( ( 23 103 )
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LLP) ( 23 25 ) 193
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( )
2023 2022 2021

$ 4,948 7,805 $ 5,599 8,832 $ 10,994 17,342
15,263 24,076 13,928 21,970 12,810 20,206
573 904 15 24 1,376 2,171
4,537 7,157 4,938 7,789 5,521 8,709
19,617 30,944 19,578 30,882 19,967 31,496
975 1,538 283 446 1,042 1,644
45,913 72,423 44,341 69,943 51,710 81,567
50,281 79,313 21,595 34,064 9,411 14,845
42,051 66,331 12,268 19,352 1,366 2,155
8,230 12,982 9,327 14,712 8,045 12,690
54,143 85,405 53,668 84,656 59,755 94,258
532 839 280 442 4 6
24,558 38,738 23,053 36,364 24,628 38,848
3,476 5,483 3,458 5,455 3,341 5,270
3,775 5,955 3,493 5,510 3,119 4,920
3,058 4,824 3,070 4,843 2,933 4,627
1,895 2,989 1,729 2,727 1,725 2,721
898 1,417 905 1,428 643 1,014
4,138 6,527 3,591 5,664 3,694 5,827
41,798 65,932 39,299 61,990 40,083 63,227
11,813 18,634 14,089 22,224 19,668 31,024
2,583 4,074 2,910 4,590 4,548 7,174
$ 9,230 14,559 $ 11,179 17,634 $ 15,120 23,850
143 226 150 237 86 136
$ 9,087 14,334 $ 11,029 17,397 $ 15,034 23,715
557 879 489 771 468 738
$ 8,530 13,455 $ 10,540 16,626 $ 14,566 22,976
$ 5.24 8 $ 6.23 10 $ 8.16 13
5.18 8 6.15 10 8.03 13

1,628 1,691 1,785

1,646 1,713 1,814

168/427



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 9,230 14,559  $ 11,179 17,634  $ 15,120 23,850
(20) (32) (337) (532) (331) (522)
1,098 1,732 (4,437) (6,999) (1,542) (2,432)
87) 137) 43 68 (53) (84)
(1,290) (2,035) 1,502 2,369 696 1,098
20 32 ) (6) _ _
$  (279) (440)  $ (3,233) (5,100) $ (1,230) (1,940)
$ 8,951 14,119  $ 7,946 12,534  $ 13,890 21,910
143 226 150 237 86 136
(111) (175) (82) (129) (90) (142)
$ 8,919 14,069  $ 7,878 12,427  $ 13,894 21,916
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 89,232 140,755 $ 128,127 202,108
(162,698
124,411 ) 367,074 579,023 301,315 475,294
( 92,149
89,772 ) 88,113 138,989 84,297 132,970
( 57,453 65,006
) 66,694 105,203 75,634 119,305
(
) 110,740 174,681 113,907 179,677
121,091 191,009 133,374 210,384
80,105 126,358 78,540 123,889
(1,169 839
) 203,385 320,819 198,997 313,898
15,255 24,063 14,788 23,327
16,707 26,354 16,652 26,267
(4,847 4,253
) 7,055 11,129 7,618 12,017
28,242 44,549 26,982 42,561

$1,193,693 1,882,931 $1,180,231 1,861,696
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
(6,472 4,79
) $ 351,804 554,936  $ 356,646 562,573
151,513 238,997 154,438 243,611
(1,020 864
) 62,651 98,826 62,534 98,641
15,057 23,751 15,679 24,732
(9,899 4,550
) 12,655 19,962 8,158 12,868
208,148 328,333 216,134 340,930
28,151 44,405 27,353 43,147
(93,900 78,720
) 263,732 416,011 238,058 375,513
1,093,711 1,725,220 1,079,000 1,702,015
c 14 )
8,750 13,802 8,750 13,802
0.01
3,500, 000,000
2,038,893,979
1,626,828,437 1,675,487,409
20 32 20 32
29,832 47,057 29,339 46,279
97,996 154,579 94,862 149,635
5,314 8,382 4,881 7,699
« ) (6,421) (10,128) (6,253) (9,863)
— 0.01

(412,065,542 363,406,570 ) (31,139) (49,119) (26,577) (41,923)
(5.314) (8,382) (4,881) (7,699)
99,038 156,223 100,141 157,962
944 1,489 1,090 1,719
99,982 157,712 101,231 159,682

$1,193,693 1,882,931 $1,180,231 1,861,696
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( )

2023 2022 2021
$ 8,750 13,802 $ 7,750 12,225  $ 9,250 14,591
_ - 1,000 1,577 1,300 2,051
_ _ _ _ (2,800) (4,417)
8,750 13,802 8,750 13,802 7,750 12,225
20 32 20 32 20 32
29,339 46,279 28,841 45,494 25,546 40,296
493 778 503 793 1,117 1,762
- - (® ® (25) (39)
_ - - - 2,185 3,447
_ _ 1 2 18 28
29,832 47,057 29,339 46,279 28,841 45,494
94,862 149,635 89,432 141,070 78,694 124,132
9,087 14,334 11,029 17,397 15,034 23,715
(557) (879) (489) @71) (468) (738)
(5,393) (8,507) (5,108) (8,057) (3,818) (6,023)
©) ®) @ (©) (10) (16)
97,996 154,579 94,862 149,635 89,432 141,070
4,881 7,699 3,955 6,239 3,043 4,800
433 683 926 1,461 912 1,439
5,314 8,382 4,881 7,699 3,955 6,239
(6.253) (9,863) (3,102) (4,893) (1,962) (3,095)
(168) (265) (3,151) (4,970) (1,140) (1,798)
(6,421) (10,128) (6,253) (9,863) (3,102) (4,893)
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2023 2022 2021
(26,577) (41,923) (17,500) (27,605) (9,767) (15,406)
1,654 2,609 1,794 2,830 1,210 1,909
(6,216) (9,805) (10,871) (17,148) (12,075) (19,047)
- - - - 3,132 4,940
(31,139) (49,119) (26,577) (41,923) (17,500) (27,605)
(4,881) (7.699) (3,955) (6,239) (3,043) (4,800)
(433) (683) (926) (1,461) (912) (1,439)
(5,314) (8,382) (4,881) (7,699) (3,955) (6,239)
1,090 1,719 1,157 1,825 1,368 2,158
143 226 150 237 86 136
(111) (175) (82) (129) (90) (142)
(178) (281) (135) (213) (207) (327)
944 1,489 1,090 1,719 1,157 1,825
$ 99,982 157,712 $ 101,231 159,682  $ 106,598 168,148
17
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( )

2023 2022 2021

$ 9,230 14,559  $ 11,179 17,634  $ 15,120 23,850
(463) (730) (849) (1,339) 4 6
1,709 2,696 1,875 2,958 2,085 3,289
4,256 6,713 3,998 6,306 4,216 6,650
532 839 280 442 4 6
308 486 618 975 47 (232)
(61,026) (96,262) (39,422) (62,184) 9,075 14,315
12,283 19,375 (3,661) (5,775) (17,322) (27,324)
(622) (981) 3,380 5,332 4,568 7,206
602 950 14,664 23,131 774 1,221
(3.629) (5,724) (4,897) (7,725) 7,758 12,237
3,167 4,996 6,002 9,610 (3,765) (5,939)
117 185 346 546 11,601 18,299
(33,536) (52,900) (6,397) (10,091) 33,971 53,586
(3.412) (5.382) (3,078) (4,855) (2,308) (3.641)
(4,059) (6,403) (23,652) (37,309) (36,106) (56,954)

(23,078) (36,403) (24,602) (38,807) (42,469) (66,991)

5,929 9,352 22,014 34,725 20,652 32,576
14,316 22,582 13,435 21,192 26,375 41,604
- - (5,231) (8,251) (27,102) (42,751)
8,143 12,845 9,829 15,504 14,541 22,937
_ _ _ _ (2,648) 4,177)
(923) (1,456) (347) (547) (832) (1,312)
(3,084) (4,865)  (11,632) (18,348) (49,897) (78,708)
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2023 2022 2021
796 1,256 (884) (1,394) (625) (986)
(5,075) (8,005) 1,659 2,617 36,897 58,201
- - 994 1,568 1,275 2,011
78,424 123,706 72,460 114,298 90,273 142,397
(64,805)  (102,223)  (34,898) (55,048) (70,124)  (110,614)
(6.,178) (9,745)  (10,871) (17,148) (12,075) (19,047)
(5,763) (9,091) (5,401) (8,520) (4,171) (6,579)
(125) 197) (345) (544) 97 153
(2,726) (4,300) 22,714 35,829 41,547 65,536
451 711 (4,283) (6,756) (3,550) (5,600)
(38,895)  (61,353) 402 634 22,071 34,815
128,127 202,108 127,725 201,473 105,654 166,659
$ 89,232 140,755  $ 128,127 202,108  $ 127,725 201,473
$ 41,940 66,156 $ 9,819 15,488 $ 1,303 2,055
2,035 3,210 4,147 6,541 4,231 6,674
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 7,323 $ 5,409
81,909 122,718
$ 89,232 $ 128,127
$ 30,571 $ 35,380
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( )
2023 12 31
1
$ 56,459 $ 53,741 $ - $ _ $ 110,200
22,580 9,946 94 - 32,620
_ 2,148 34 - 2,182
MABS - 1,540 489 - 2,029
9 - 6,122 2,066 - 8,188
- 35,833 1,983 - 37,816
35 126,772 929 199 - 127,900
7,284 140,139 784 - 148,207
- 10,244 393 - 10,637
12 93,218 20 - 93,250
2,169 55,319 587 - 58,075
1,608 11,862 2,811 - 16,281
1 (7.643) (237,497) (1,082) (42,915) (289,137)
3,430 73,285 3,513 (42,915) 37,313
45 781 836 949 - 2,566
_ 736 - - 736
4 210,022 185,116 9,327 (42,915) 361,550
57,405 30,708 — — 88,113
_ 7 - - 7
$ 267,427 $ 215,831 $ 9,327 $ (42,915) $ 449,670
( )
2023 12 31
1
$ - $ 6,439 $ 33 $ - $ 6,472
27,708 16 - — 27,724
26,829 3,955 6 - 30,790
_ 10,560 9 - 10,569
3 46,809 300 45 — 47,154
8,000 129,983 857 — 138,840
- 10,795 297 - 11,092
96 89,880 385 - 90,361
2,411 64,794 1,689 — 68,894
1,642 11,904 1,521 - 15,067
1 (7,643) (237,497) (1,082) (42,757) (288,979)
4,506 69,859 3,667 (42,757) 35,275
105,852 84,690 3,727 (42,757) 151,512
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_ 571 449 _ 1,020

- 9,807 92 - 9,899

_ 92,022 1,878 - 93,900

$ 105,852 $ 193,529 $ 6,179 $ (42,757) $ 262,803

( )

2022 12 31
1

$ 38,462 $ 42,263 $ 17 $ - $ 80,742

24,644 4,769 169 - 29,582

_ 1,503 145 - 1,648

MABS _ 1,774 416 _ 2,190

, - 6,380 2,017 - 8,397

- 23,351 2,006 - 25,447

3 97,869 1,019 116 - 99,004

4,481 166,392 517 - 171,390

- 7,876 425 - 8,301

49 115,766 183 - 115,998

2,778 40,171 406 - 43,355

5,609 21,152 3,701 - 30,462

1 (9,618) (258,821) (1,078) (55,777) (325,294)

3,299 92,536 4,154 (55,777) 44,212

4 652 685 923 - 2,260

_ 2,379 - - 2,379

4 164,926 176,659 10,053 (55,777) 295,861

53,866 30,396 35 _ 84,297

_ 8 _ _ 8

$ 218,792 $ 207,063 $ 10,088 $ (55,777) $ 380,166
( )

2022 12 31
1

$ _ $ 4,776 $ 20 $ - $ 4,796

20,776 228 — — 21,004

23,235 2,688 3 - 25,926

- 8,786 29 - 8,815

3 59,998 518 42 - 60,558
3,446 161,044 668 - 165,158

- 7,987 315 - 8,302

89 113,383 117 - 113,589

3,266 46,923 1,142 - 51,331

6,187 17,574 2,618 - 26,379
1 (9,618) (258,821) (1,078) (57,107) (326,624)

196/427



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
3,370 88,090 3,782 (57,107) 38,135
107,379 100,310 3,856 (57,107) 154,438
_ 352 512 _ 864
_ 4,459 91 - 4,550
- 77,133 1,587 - 78,720
$ 107,379 $ 187,030 $ 6,066 $ (57,107) $ 243,368
MABS
1.
2.
3.
4 NAV
5. 2023 12 31
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ - $ 6
422 528
2,909 2,020
4,857 5,843
$ 8,188 $ 8,397
1
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 1,062 $ 1,219
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2023 2022 2021

$ 17 $ 2 $ 9
« ) - (©) -
_ 14 2

(10 (€)) ®
Q) 5 -
$ - $ 17 $ 2
( ) $ - $ (€)) $ —
$ 169 $ 211 $ 268

« ) 5 ®) @
38 116 146

(86) 107) (192)

(32) (46) (10)
$ 94 $ 169 $ 211
( ) $ 2 $ (14) $ -
$ 145 $ 13 $ -
C ) - O] -
9 91 4

® (82) “®
(114) 127 13
$ 34 $ 145 $ 13
C ) $ - $ - $ _

MABS

$ 416 $ 344 $ 322
« ) ©) (342) 51
232 511 254

(165) (130) (215)

8 33 (68)
$ 489 $ 416 $ 344
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$ (14 $ 2 $  (10)
$ 2,017 $ 3,806 $ 5,759
(189) (80) 51
1,502 793 2,446
477 (740) (2,609)
(843) (1,526) (1,268)
56 (236) (573)
$ 2,066 $ 2,017 $ 3,806
$  (76) $ 29 $ )
( )

2023 2022 2021

$ 2,096 $ 1,973 $ 3,435
145 456 (140)
623 1,165 1,355
(664) (1,889) (785)
33) @7 _
(184) 418 (1,892)
$ 1,983 $ 2,096 $ 1,973
$ Qo) $ 160 $ 25
$ 116 $ 115 $ 86
12 @7 ©)
85 73 121
(41 (22) (50)
27 47 (34)
$ 199 $ 116 $ 115
$ 19 $ 11 $ ®)
$ 923 $ 1,125 $ 828
35 (409) 382
158 63 226
(183) (107) (115)
16 251 (196)
$ 949 $ 923 $ 1,125
$ 27 $  (397) $ 359
$ 35 $ - $ 2,804
- ©)) O
(32) - (203)
®) 38 (2,597)
$ - $ 35 $ —
$ — $ ©)) $ -
$ - $ - $ 3
— - ®3)
$ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ -
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( )

2023 2022 2021

$ (151 $ 708 $ 682
(336) (643) 284
140 1 67
(43) - (52)
241 92) 14
76 (125) (287)
$  (13) $ (151) $ 708
$ (210) $ (32D $ 202
$ 110 $ 98 $ 49
5 84 95
_ 5 18
- (10) (46)
(@A) (61) 58
2 (6) (76)
$ 96 $ 110 $ 98
$ 2 $ 70 $ 12
$ 66 $ 52 $ 61
(290) ® (89)
- 1 2
€)) - (15)
(15) (46) 16
(125) 67 77
$ (365) $ 66 $ 52
$ (217 $ 43 $  (62)
$ (736) $  (945) $ (2,231)
(91) 201 344
221 77 70
(572) (339) (443)
87 348 160
(11) (78) 1,155
$ (1,102) $  (736) $  (945)
$ (201) $ 328 $  (103)
$ 1,083 $ 1,529 $ 1,709
910 315 529
78 185 44
(136) (210) (86)
(701) (510) (599)
56 (226) (68)
$ 1,290 $ 1,083 $ 1,529
$ 243 $  (935) $ 141
( )
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2023 2022 2021
$ 20 $ 67 $ 126
« ) 1 - _
25 11 -
- (©)) (10)
(13) (55) (49)
$ 33 $ 20 $ 67
« ) $ 1 $ - $ -
$ 74 $ 61 $ 79
« D 8 (86) (21)
(33 (35) (30)
22 93 43
(6) 41 (10)
$ 60 $ 74 $ 61
C ) $ 8 $ 17 $
$ 512 $ 651 $ 444
« D 2 ®) 1
1 17 _
© 22) _
(57 (126) 206
$ 449 $ 512 $ 651
« ) $ 2 $ - $ 1
$ 91 $ 403 $ 516
« D 5 ®) an
83 39 449
99 (342) (518)
12 ®3) @7
$ 92 $ 91 $ 403
« D $ 5 $ (6) $  (16)
$ 1,587 $ 2,157 $ 4,374
« ) 219 (133) (99)
708 513 717
(391) (285) (448)
2 (245) (665) (2,387)
$ 1,878 $ 1,587 $ 2,157
(G $ 182 $  (138) $  (119)
o U ocl 29 (35) an
1. 2021
895
2. 2021
20 ( Hio 22
3. 2021
25
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( )
1
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 94 $ 169
61 110 (87 ) 57 124 (89 )
$ 34 $ 145
N/M 86 100 (97 )
MABS $ 489 $ 416
0 88 (61 ) 0 9 (68 )
$ 2,066 $ 2,017
2 4 @3) 2 4 3)
85 102 (98 ) 87 105 (99 )
$ 1,983 $ 2,096
28 135 (82 ) 51 132 (90 )
54 84 (62 /54 ) 54 84 (62 /54 )
$ 199 $ 116
100 100
$ 949 $ 923
16 18 (17 ) 15 17 (16 )
9 17 (15 ) 7 17 (14 )
EBITDA 22 7 21 (11 )

24 100 (86 )

24 100 (89 )

$ (73)

70 100 (81 /93 )

49 99 (77 /79 )

79 85 (82 /85 )

27 70 (43 /39 )
N/M

$  (151)

105 130 (113 /109 )
47 100 (80 /84 )
N/M
22 65 (43 /38 )

4 5 (5 /5 )
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00000000 00O(ES871)
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( )
1
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 96 $ 110
7 7
0 92 (46 0 83 (43 )
10 404bps(94bps) 10 528bps(115bps)
18 590bps(67bps) 18 590bps(93bps)
$ (365) $ 66
-4 26 (7 /5 ) -2 38 (8 /74 )
-3 12 (2 /0 ) 10 10 (10 /10 )
95 95
$ (1,102) $ (736)
6 97 (23 ) 5 9% (25 )
-1 0 (0 ) -4 0 (1)
25 97 (49 ) 10 93 (711 )
-79 40 (-28 ) -79 65 (-26 )
10 30 (15 ) 10 30 (14 )
$ 1,290 $ 1,083
$0  $220($49)/MWh $1  $292($43)/MWh
8 123 (31 ) 12 169 (34 )
54 100 (94 ) 70 100 (94 )
$ 449 $ 512
28 135bps(79bps) 96 165bps(131bps)
( )
1
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 92 $ 91
22 101 23 101
(76 ) (75 )
$ 1,878 $ 1,587
6 69 (13 ) 7 86 (23 )
-2 0 () -2 0 ()
41 97 (79 ) 39 98 (86 )
-65 40 (<30 ) -50 0 (-21 )
50 89 (71 /70%) N/M

N/M

210/427
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54 84 (62 /54 )
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54 84 (62 /54 )

$ 4,532
99 1467bps(1015bps)
25 93 (70

115 268bps(185bps)

$ 6,610
91 1276bps(776bps)
36 80 (65 )
110 319bps(245bps)

IR
FX

2023

EBITDA

EBITDA

EBITDA
EBITDA
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01S

WACC WACC
WACC
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0000000000(E05871)
0oooood
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 2,685 $ 720 $ 2,622 $ 638
2,765 240 2,642 239
74 3 190 3
$ 5,524 $ 963 $ 5,454 $ 880

NAV
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14

22
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oOoOooodn

)

2023 12 31
$ 1,413 $ 947
1,186 1,778
86 40
$ 2,685 $ 2,765
)

2023 12 31

1

4,215 $ 4,532 $ 8,747
- 4 4
23 - 23
4,238 $ 4,536 $ 8,774
110 $ 60 170
110 $ 60 170

214/427
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
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( )
2022 12 31
1
$ 4,193 $ 6,610 $ 10,803
_ 7 7
4 - 4
$ 4,197 $ 6,617 $ 10,814
275 $ 153 $ 428
$ 275 $ 153 $ 428
( )
2023 2022 2021
$  (426) $ (563) $  (89)
- - ®
- - (€©))
(15) (14) (57)
® ®) (€2))
(35) (11) (25)
$  (484) $  (594) $  (196)
$ 75 $  (137) $ 37
$ 75 $  (137) $ 37
CDS

215/427
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( )
2023 12 31
$ 89,232 $ 89,232 $ - % - $ 89,232
66,694 21,937 34,411 1,105 57,453
110,733 - 108,099 2,674 110,773
121,001 - 121,091 - 121,091
74,337 - 70,110 4,031 74,141
203,385 - 20,125 176,291 196,416
15,255 - 8,652 6,672 15,324
704 - 704 - 704
$ 345,332 $ - $ 345,391  $ - $ 345,391
61,631 - 61,621 - 61,621
15,057 - 15,055 - 15,055
2,756 - 2,756 - 2,756
208,015 - 208,015 - 208,015
169,832 - 171,009 4 171,013
$ 149,464 $ - $ 1,338 $ 749 $ 2,087
( )
2022 12 31
$ 128,127 $ 128,127 $ - % - $ 128,127
75,634 26,754 37,218 1,034 65,006
113,899 - 111,188 2,681 113,869
133,374 - 133,370 - 133,370
73,248 - 69,268 3,664 72,932
198,997 - 17,278 173,778 191,056
14,788 - 6,875 7,783 14,658
704 - 704 - 704
$ 351,850 $ - $351,721 $ - $ 351,721
61,670 - 61,620 - 61,620
15,679 - 15,673 - 15,673
3,608 - 3,608 - 3,608
216,018 - 216,018 - 216,018

216/427
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oOoOooodn
159,338 - 157,780 4 157,784
$ 136,241 $ - $ 1,789 $ 1,077 $ 2,866
2023
14
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 46,073 $ 38,945
31,055 26,077
12,798 10,717
2,400 1,564
1,574 1,417
$ 93,900 $ 78,720
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ (7,991) $ 12,370 $ 899
503 293 305
$ (8,494) $ 12,077 $ 594

217/427
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( )
( )
oCl
2023
1 $  (123) $ -
14 -
- 17
(19) (1,726)
2022
1 $  (108) $ -
12) -
- @24
_ 2,006
2021
1 $ 278 $ -
2 _
— 17
(36) 901
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
AOCI VA () $ (2,166) $  (457)
1 «C )
1
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2 $ 11,086 $ 11,916
2 8,566 9,128
3 3,030 5,203
1.
2
3.

VIE

218/427
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 440 $ 585
75 $ 116
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OooooOodd
( )
2023 12 31
$ 25 $ - $ — $ 25
5 — 10
30 5 — 35
2 27 - 29
127,414 19,914 854 148,182
5,712 4,896 — 10,608
90,654 2,570 16 93,240
20,338 — 37,737 58,075
13,928 — 2,353 16,281
258,048 27,407 40,960 326,415
$ 258,078 $ 27,412 $ 40,960 $ 326,450
(184,553) (23,851) (38,510) (246,914)
(39,493) (2,730) - (42,223)
$ 34,032 $ 831 $ 2,450 $ 37,313
(15,690) - — (15,690)
$ 18,342 $ 831 $ 2,450 $ 21,623
( ) $ 2,641

221/427
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OooooOodd
( )
2023 12 31
$ 467 $ — $ - $ 467
414 43 — 457
881 43 — 924
43 702 — 745
120,604 17,179 590 138,373
5,920 4,427 — 10,347
87,104 2,694 106 89,904
31,545 - 37,349 68,894
12,237 - 2,830 15,067
257,453 25,002 40,875 323,330
$ 258,334 $ 25,045 $ 40,875 $ 324,254
(184,553) (23,851) (38,510) (246,914)
(41,082) (983) - (42,065)
$ 32,699 $ 211 $ 2,365 $ 35,275
(6,864) ®) 3N (6,909)
$ 25,835 $ 203 $ 2,328 $ 28,366
( ) $ 5,911

2221427
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2022 12 31
$ 62 $ 1 $ - $ 63
15 44 — 59
77 45 — 122
2 59 — 61
141,291 29,007 1,029 171,327
5,888 2,352 — 8,240
113,540 2,337 62 115,939
16,505 — 26,850 43,355
24,298 — 6,164 30,462
301,524 33,755 34,105 369,384
$ 301,601 $ 33,800 $ 34,105 $ 369,506
(214,773) (32,250) (32,212) (279,235)
(44,711) (1,348) _ (46,059)
$ 42,117 $ 202 $ 1,893 $ 44,212
(19,406) _ _ (19,406)
$ 22,711 $ 202 $ 1,893 $ 24,806
( ) $ 4,318

223/427
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OooooOodd
( )
2022 12 31
$ 457 $ 4 $ - $ 461
550 101 - 651
1,007 105 — 1,112
9 368 — 377
135,661 28,581 455 164,697
5,535 2,390 - 7,925
110,322 2,512 104 112,938
23,138 - 28,193 51,331
19,631 - 6,748 26,379
294,296 33,851 35,500 363,647
$ 295,303 $ 33,956 $ 35,500 $ 364,759
(214,773) (32,250) (32,212) (279,235)
(45,884) (1,505) _ (47,389)
$ 34,646 $ 201 $ 3,288 $ 38,135
(2.,545) _ (1,139) (3,684)
$ 32,101 $ 201 $ 2,149 $ 34,451
( ) $ 6,430

2241427
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( )
2023 12 31
- $ 92 $ — $ 92
1 1 - 2
1 93 - 94
— 1 — 1
4,153 8,357 560 13,070
214 176 - 390
3,378 165 7 3,550
528 - 440 968
142 - 65 207
8,415 8,699 1,072 18,186
8,416 $ 8,792 $ 1,072 $ 18,280
( )
2023 12 31
3 $ 183 $ - $ 186
14 3 - 17
17 186 - 203
2 22 - 24
4,631 8,197 455 13,283
229 155 - 384
3,496 167 33 3,696
587 - 712 1,299
101 - 79 180
9,046 8,541 1,279 18,866
9,063 $ 8,727 $ 1,279 $ 19,069

225/427
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
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( )
2022 12 31
$ 62 $ - $ 64
2 - 4
4 64 - 68
_ 3 - 3
3,404 7,609 614 11,627
190 130 - 320
3,477 126 15 3,618
488 - 358 846
141 - 59 200
7,700 7,868 1,046 16,614
7,704 $ 7,932 $ 1,046 $ 16,682
( )
2022 12 31
3 $ 187 $ - $ 190
12 2 - 14
15 189 - 204
- 15 - 15
3,436 7,761 497 11,694
199 125 - 324
3,516 123 35 3,674
488 — 552 1,040
101 - 79 180
7,740 8,024 1,163 16,927
7,755 $ 8,213 $ 1,163 $ 17,131

226/427
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Ogoooood
« )
( )
2023 2022 2021
$  (576) $ 1,928 $ 742
638 (1,838) (629)
$ 3,664 $ (15,159) $ (4,306)
(88) 124 88
(3,564) 15,042 4,214
ocl $  (168) $ 657 $ 664
211 (33) (53)
1
ocl $ 9 $ [0 $ -
AOCI « )
(16) - -
AOCI 25 ) _
1. 2023 2023 12 31 12 AOCI
«C ) (56)
18
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 47,179 $ 34,073
1 $ (732 $ (1,628)
$ 10,569 $ 3,735
1 $ (31) $  (119)
$ 158,659 $ 146,025
$ (9,219) $ (12,748)
$  (671) $  (715)
1.
«c )
( )
2023 2022 2021
1 (522) (62) (285)
1.
( )

2271427
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 21,957 $ 20,287
16,389 12,268
( )
2023 12 31
$ 450
394
1 $ 692
1.
S&P
1
( )
2023 12 31
cDS
$ 19 $ 29 $ 39 $ 10 $ 97
7 14 17 1 39
$ 26 $ 43 $ 56 $ 11 $ 136
cDS
$ $ 19 $ 85 $ 4 $ 116
14 95 17 134
16 $ 33 $ 180 21 $ 250
cDS 42 $ 76 $ 236 32 $ 386
- - — 3 3
$ 42 $ 76 $ 236 $ 35 $ 389
CDS
$ 330
( )
2022 12 31
cDS
$ 12 $ 29 $ 29 $ $ 79
5 13 16 36
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OooooOodd
$ 17 $ 42 $ 45 $ 11 $ 115
cDS
$ 3 $ 13 $ 37 $ 3 $ 56
17 108 19 152
$ 11 $ 30 $ 145 $ 22 $ 208
cDS $ 28 $ 72 $ 190 $ 33 $ 323
$ 28 $ 72 $ 190 $ 33 $ 323
cDS
$ 262
( )t
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
cDS
$ 1,904 $ 762
399 (808)
$ 2,303 $ (46)
cDS
$ 1,929 $ 859
45 (1,812)
1,974 $  (953)
cDS $ 4,217 $  (999)
314 )
$ 4,501 $ (1,000)
1.

2291427
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DS
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ 166 $ 140

213 173

30 26

$ 409 $ 339

( )

C )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ (2,799) $  (33)

(1,208) 1,248

(1,012) 17)

$ (5,019) $ 998

CDS
CDS
CDS CDS
CcDS
DS CDS CDS
DS

230/427



FFELP

CDS

CLN

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

CDO CLN CDO
)
2023 12 31
1
$ 58,484 $ 24 $ 1,103 $ 57,405
25,852 4 2,528 23,328
5,871 - 456 5,415
1,132 46 5 1,173
810 - 18 792
92,149 74 4,110 88,113
23,222 - 1,285 21,937
40,894 - 7,699 33,195
1,337 - 121 1,216
1,241 2 138 1,105
66,694 2 9,243 57,453
$ 158,843 $ 76 $ 13,353 $ 145,566
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( )
2022 12 31
1
$ 56,103 $ 17 $ 2,254 $ 53,866
2 23,926 1 2,753 21,174
5,998 - 470 5,528
2,598 71 42 2,627
FFELP 3 1,147 - 45 1,102
89,772 89 5,564 84,297
28,599 - 1,845 26,754
2 44,038 - 8,487 35,551
1,819 - 152 1,667
1,178 - 144 1,034
75,634 - 10,628 65,006
$ 165,406 $ 89 $ 16,192 $ 149,303
CMo

95

232/427
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Ogoooood
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
12 $ 14,295 $ 22 $ 42,144 $ 1,711
12 33,458 1,081 11,454 543
47,753 1,103 53,598 2,254
12 4,297 43 13,662 1,271
12 18,459 2,485 7,060 1,482
22,756 2,528 20,722 2,753
12 - - 5,343 448
12 5,415 456 185 22
5,415 456 5,528 470
12 524 3 2,106 40
12 35 2 65 2
559 5 2,171 42
FFELP
12 56 1 627 23
12 616 17 476 22
672 18 1,103 45
12 19,172 69 63,882 3,493
12 57,983 4,041 19,240 2,071
$ 77,155 $ 4,110 $ 83,122 $ 5,564
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
44 34
2023 12 31 2022
12 31
VIE
FFELP 15

233/427
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10
10
10
10
10
FFELP
10
10
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn

)
2023 12 31
! 2 3

$ 16,311 $ 16,030 1.2

40,412 39,620 2.6

1,761 1,755 4.0
58,484 57,405

23 23 (0.6)

397 375 1.6
547 504
24,885 22,426
25,852 23,328

1 1 2.2)

2,491 2,392 .8

2,176 2,043 .0

1,203 979 4
5,871 5,415

27 28 5.2

185 184 4.7

6 9 4.1

914 952 4.2
1,132 1,173

9% 91 1

99 95 .0

615 606 .2
810 792

92,149 88,113 2.6

234/427
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( )
2023 12 31
1 2
$ 6,403 $ 6,317 2.1
12,059 11,497 1.8
10 3,202 2,965 2.4
10 1,558 1,158 2.3
23,222 21,937
6 6 1.8
10 294 276 )
10 40,594 32,913 1.8
40,894 33,195
30 30 2.5
1,063 985 1.4
10 117 99 1.4
10 127 102 1.6
1,337 1,216
208 185 4.0
343 321 4.6
10 641 551 3.7
10 49 48 5.7
1,241 1,105
66,694 57,453 1.9
$ 158,843 $ 145,566 3
1.
2.
3. 2023 12 31
1.6 3.6
C )
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 70 $ 164 $ 237
C ) 1) (94) @7
1 $ 49 $ 70 $ 210
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OooooOodd
( )

2023 12 31
1
$ 300,242 $ (189,502) $ 110,740  $ (108,893) $ 1,847
142,453 (21,362) 121,091 (115,969) 5,122
$ 252,153 $ (189,502) $ 62,651 $ (58,357) $ 4,294
36,419 (21,362) 15,057 (15,046) 11
« D
$ 1,741
607
3,014
2
( )
2022 12 31
1
$ 240,355 $ (126,448) $ 113,907  $ (109,902) $ 4,005
145,340 (11,966) 133,374 (128,073) 5,301
$ 188,982 $ (126,448) $ 62,534 $ (57,395) $ 5,139
27,645 (11,966) 15,679 (15,199) 480
« )

$ 1,69
624
3,861
250

2371427
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)
( )
2023 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 80,376 $ 114,826 $ 25,510 $ 31,441 $ 252,153
21,508 1,345 709 12,857 36,419
$ 101,884 $ 116,171 $ 26,219 $ 44,298 $ 288,572
13,528 - - - 13,528
$ 115,412 $ 116,171 $ 26,219 $ 44,298 $ 302,100
( )
2022 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 54,551 $ 77,359 $ 20,586 $ 36,486 $ 188,982
15,150 882 1,984 9,629 27,645
$ 69,701 $ 78,241 $ 22,570 $ 46,115 $ 216,627
22,880 - - - 22,880
$ 92,581 $ 78,241 $ 22,570 $ 46,115 $ 239,507
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)
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 98,377 $ 57,761
122,342 98,839
18,144 19,340
13,290 13,042
$ 252,153 $ 188,982
$ 1,379 $ 862
34,434 26,289
606 494
$ 36,419 $ 27,645
$ 288,572 $ 216,627
13,502 $ 22,833
26 47
$ 13,528 $ 22,880
$ 302,100 $ 239,507
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 37,522 $ 34,524

239/427
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 735,830 $ 637,941
553,386 486,820
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 20,670 $ 32,254
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
12 9
11 12




13

15

2023 12 31

2023
3,472
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 45,644 $ 38,524
VIE
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( )
2023 12 31

$ 6,758 $ 11,862 $ 18,620
39,498 3,161 42,659
8,678 209 8,887
60,375 22 60,397
89,245 1 89,246
204,554 15,255 219,809
(1,169 (1,169)

$ 203,385 $ 15,255 $ 218,640
$ 21,152 $ 5,043 $ 26,195

( )

2022 12 31

$ 6,589 $ 10,634 $ 17,223
35,606 3,176 38,782
8,515 926 9,441
54,460 4 54,464
94,666 48 94,714
199,836 14,788 214,624
(839) (839)

$ 198,997 $ 14,788 $ 213,785
$ 17,979 $ 5,672 $ 23,651

243/427
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ - $ 18,620 $ — $ 17,223
- 42,659 - 38,782
141 8,746 204 9,237
28,934 31,464 24,903 29,561
23,922 65,323 24,077 70,637
$ 52,997 $ 166,812 $ 49,184 $ 165,440
14

2441427
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ 2,350 $ 3,863 $ 6,213 $ 2,554 $ 3,456 $ 6,010

2023 - 88 88

2022 - 166 166 6 107 113
2021 15 89 104 - 139 139
2020 29 25 54 - 58 58
2019 - 133 133 - 154 154
2018 - - - 115 - 115

$ 2,39% $ 4,364 $ 6,758 $ 2,675 $ 3,914 $ 6,589

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ 9,494 $ 22,240 $ 31,734 $ 9,445 $ 21,243 $ 30,688

2023 1,535 1,459 2,994

2022 392 2,390 2,782 1,135 1,336 2,471
2021 - 365 365 254 208 462
2020 - 80 80 - 98 98
2019 60 333 393 60 486 546
2018 296 854 1,150 215 1,126 1,341

$ 11,777 $ 27,721 $ 39,498 $ 11,109 $ 24,497 $ 35,606

( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ - $ 170 $ 170 $ - $ 204 $ 204
2023 261 1,067 1,328
2022 284 1,900 2,184 379 2,201 2,580
2021 370 1,494 1,864 239 1,609 1,848
2020 - 756 756 - 728 728
2019 195 1,369 1,564 659 1,152 1,811
2018 - 812 812 211 1,133 1,344

$ 1,110 $ 7,568 $ 8,678 $ 1,488 $ 7,027 $ 8,515

2451427
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( )
2023 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 108 $ 33 $ 8 $ 149 $ - $ 149
2023 7,390 1,517 230 8,168 969 9,137
2022 10,927 2,424 389 12,650 1,090 13,740
2021 11,075 2,376 239 12,763 927 13,690
2020 6,916 1,430 104 8,017 433 8,450
2019 3,965 890 131 4,686 300 4,986
2018 7,677 2,241 305 9,420 803 10,223
$ 48,058 $ 10,911 $ 1,406 $ 55,853 $ 4,522 $ 60,375
( )
2022 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 90 $ 29 $ 5 $ 124 $ - $ 124
2022 11,481 2,533 411 13,276 1,149 14,425
2021 11,604 2,492 257 13,378 975 14,353
2020 7,292 1,501 115 8,452 456 8,908
2019 4,208 946 137 4,968 323 5,201
2018 8,488 2,519 352 10,457 902 11,359
$ 43,163 $ 10,020 $ 1,277 $ 50,655 $ 3,805 $ 54,460
( )
2023 12 31
2
1
$ 71,474 $ 5,230 $ 1,362 $ 78,066
2023 1,612 627 346 2,585
2022 1,128 816 804 2,748
2021 165 330 377 872
2020 - 435 414 849
2019 13 769 628 1,410
2018 202 1,327 1,186 2,715
$ 74,594 $ 9,534 $ 5,117 $ 89,245

246/427
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( )
2022 12 31
2
1
$ 77,115 $ 5,760 $ 1,480 $ 84,355
2022 1,425 1,572 269 3,266
2021 725 525 223 1,473
2020 - 580 418 998
2019 16 913 644 1,573
2018 202 1,849 950 3,001
$ 79,483 $ 11,199 $ 3,984 $ 94,666
1. 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2. 10-K
1
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 47 $ 112
_ 85
185 _
160 158
1 1
$ 393 $ 356
1.2023 12 31 90 2022 12 31
90
1
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 95 $ 71
87 94
426 209
95 118
174 10
$ 877 $ 502
$ 86 $ 117
1.2023 12 31 2022 12 31 90
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0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
2023 12
31
2023 12 31 1
( )
2023 12 31
2
$ 183 2.7
199 2.3
1 0.1
145 0.2
$ 528
$ 71 0.1
$ 71
— 3
$ 24 0.3
1 -
$ 25
1. 2023 12 31 1,062
2.
3. —
2023 12 31 1
2023 12 31
10
10
1.
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12
( )
2023 12 31
30 89 90
$ 24 $ 21 $ 45
_ 1 1
$ 24 $ 22 $ 46
( )
2023 12 31
$ (39) $ - $ - $ - $ - $  (39)
2020 - - - - ®) 3)
2019 - - (85) - @ (86)
2018 - - (44) - - (44)
$ (39) $ - $ (129) $ - ) $ (167)
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( )
2023 12 31

$ 235 153 $ 275 87 $ 89 $ 839
(34) - (129) - () (167)
1 - - 1 — 2
(33) - (129) 1 () (165)
) 37 — 314 13 124 488
2 - 3 [€)) 3 7
$ 241 153 $ 463 100 $ 212 $ 1,169

3 19 4 30 44 100
$ 411 51 $ 15 4 $ 23 $ 504
) 16 18 11 - [€)) 44
4 1 - - (@) 3
$ 431 70 $ 26 4 $ 20 $ 551
$ 672 223 $ 489 104 $ 232 $ 1,720

( )

2022 12 31

$ 165 163 $ 206 60 $ 60 $ 654
- ©) ©) - 1) (D)
6 _ _ 1 - 7
6 ©) ©) 1 1) 4)
) 65 ) 80 26 51 216
(€)) (€Y} O] - ¢y )
$ 235 153 $ 275 87 $ 89 $ 839

3 18 4 27 48 100
$ 356 41 $ 20 1 $ 26 $ 444
) 59 10 ) 3 ®3) 64
O] - - - - O]
$ 411 51 $ 15 4 $ 23 $ 504
$ 646 204 $ 290 91 $ 112 $ 1,343
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( )
2021 12 31
$ 309 198 $ 211 59 $ 58 $ 835
(23) 67 @n @ ®) (126)
« ) (119) 34 25 1 11 (48)
@) @ (©)] 1 (€] ©)
$ 165 163 $ 206 60 $ 60 $ 654
1 3 18 4 25 50 100
$ 323 38 $ 11 1 $ 23 $ 396
« ) 37 2 10 - 3 52
) 1 (€D - - O
$ 356 41 $ 20 1 $ 26 $ 444
$ 521 204 $ 226 61 $ 86 $ 1,098
1.
2023
2023
2023 12 31
2024 2025
CECL
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
0.6 0.4
0.4 0.3
133.3 167.1
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1 4,257 $ 4,023
2 92 97
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90
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$ 4,349 $ 4,120
(121) (139)
$ 4,228 $ 3,081
5.8 5.8
CECL



10

2021 12 31

2022 12 31

2023 12 31

1.
2. 2023

2021 12 31

2022 12 31

2023 12 31

2022

1

2021

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

)
475 $ 10,325 $ 6,033 $ 16,833
(39) ©) 12) (58)
) (116) - (123)
429 $ 10,202 $ 6,021 $ 16,652
® 2 7 4
_ - 56 56
- ®) - ®)
424 $ 10,199 $ 6,084 $ 16,707
673 $ - $ 27 $ 700
)
104 $ 4,463 $ 3,793 $ 8,360
23 41 - 64
() (106) - (181)
(16) (483) (111) (610)
- () 11 (15)
36 $ 3,911 $ 3,671 $ 7,618
_ 9 37 46
- (13) - (13)
(10) (481) (110) (601)
_ 1 4 5
26 $ 3,427 $ 3,602 $ 7,055
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( )
( )
2023 12 31
$ 2,113 $ 245 $ 72
- 8,763 4,582
- 767 187
- 14 6
$ 2,113 $ 9,789 $ 4,847
2022 12 31
2,110 245 51
_ 8,766 4,046
- 736 151
- 14 5
$ 2,110 $ 9,761 $ 4,253
( )
2023 12 31
2024 $ 600
2025 455
2026 348
2027 343
2028 337
2023
11
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 1,915 $ 1,927
( )
2023 2022 2021
C ) $ 124 $ 39 $ 104
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( )
2023 2022 2021
MUMSS « ) $ 129 $ 35 $ 168
MUFG
MUMSS
MSMS
40
MUFG 60
MUMSS 40
MSMS 51
MUFG
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 4,368 $ 4,073
5,417 4,901
8.7 8.6

4.0 3.3
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

2023 $ 870
2024 $ 913 785
2025 846 673
2026 774 604
2027 716 548
2028 644 462
2,637 1,747

6,530 5,689
(1,113) (788)

$ 5,417 $ 4,901

$ 248 $ 970

( )

2023 2022 2021

$ 938 $ 841 $ 852

1 206 170 187

(10) ) ®)

$ 1,134 $ 1,004 $ 1,033

( )

2023 2022 2021
$ 892 $ 881 $ 879
1,055 544 578
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FDIC
FDIC

2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

12

12

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

( )

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ 288,252 $ 319,948
63,552 36,698

$ 351,804 $ 356,646

$ 276,598 $ 260,420

$ 75,206 $ 96,226

( )

2023 12 31

$ 33,649
16,220
5,726
3,757
3,708
492

$ 63,552

( )

2023 12 31

$ 1,602
540
381
48

$ 2,571

( )

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ 880 $ 1,220

2571427
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DOO0O00O00OO0O0O0O(ES871)
ooooooo
( )
2023 12 2022 12
1 2 1 2 31 31
12 $ — $ - $ 84 $ 3,104 $ 3,188 $ 4,191
2023 $ 18,910
2024 $ 8,526 $ 389 $ 607 $ 10,629 $ 20,151 29,842
2025 18,994 3,036 2,655 10,838 35,523 30,235
2026 23,038 1,478 3,764 7,143 35,423 28,998
2027 18,935 347 973 5,083 25,338 23,561
2028 11,058 374 622 9,185 21,239 15,698
87,841 2,794 9,392 22,843 122,870 86,623

$ 168,392 $ 8,418 $ 18,013 $ 65,721 $ 260,544 $ 233,867

$ 168,392 $ 8,418 $ 18,097 $ 68,825 $ 263,732 $ 238,058

3 3.5 6.1 5.2 N/M 3.6 3.2
SOFR
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 248,174 $ 221,667
12,370 12,200
$ 260,544 $ 233,867
() 6.6 6.7

258/427
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OooooOodd
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 1,571 $ 4%
$ 3,166 $ 2,423
2023 2022
4.3 4.1
2038
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
3.6 3.2 2.7
6.5 5.1 1.6
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 5,732 $ 94
6,923 7,214
$ 12,655 $ 8,158

259/427
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5,848 1,119
1
( )
2023 12 31
. 2022 12 31
12 $ 8 $ - $ 8 $ 501
2023 $ 5,200
2024 $ - $ 5,085 $ 5,085 343
2025 - 95 95 131
2026 5 87 92 2
2027 - - — —
2028 - 434 434 —
7 1,086 1,093 862
$ 12 $ 6,787 $ 6,799 $ 6,538
N/M 5.6 5.6 4.9
SOFR
3.
VIE
VIE
15
1
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 $ 987
2024 $ 5,749 4
2025 9 60
2026 36 35
2027 21 21
2028 11 -
22 12
$ 5,848 $ 1,119
1.

260/427
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14
( )
2023 12 31
$ 17,036 $ 36,214 $ 54,411 $ 1,134 $ 108,795
8,043 5,936 3,466 2,424 19,869
217 28 28 352 625
16,483 3,488 319 394 20,684
1 60,261 - - - 60,261
300 - - 14,910 15,210
1,659 119 80 551 2,409
51 17 - 6 74
$ 104,050 $ 45,802 $ 58,304 $ 19,771 $ 227,927
$ 7,213
1.

261/427
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( )
2023 12 31
1,546,134 1,342,622 268,865 777,285 (44,539)
1,495 977 1,322 2,688 )
1 _ _ _ _
2,092 - - - @
_ 77 10 23,075 -
- - - 80,667 ®)
398 32 139 24 (89)
228 - _ _ _
2023 12 31
70
CDS

263/427
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SPE
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SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
FiICC
FICC
FICC
2020 FICC
FICC
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( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 488 $ 443 $ 157
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2024 12
2021
SEC
10b-5 (b)
249
2016
2008 2016 12

28

15 (9)

220

SDNY

267/427

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
USAO SEC
USAO 2018
NPA NPA
USAO
10 (b)
SEC
2017
2023 12 15



20

20

2008

17

20

09

2016
20

22

SDNY
2022 30
VRDO
VRDO
2023
2023 10
24
18
17
08 2017 23
2021 10 13
2011

2023 22
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2018
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2018 27

2023 20

SDNY

2020 11

2017 11 17
69
2018
17

39



2007 2012
2018 26
18/00318 18/00319
20/01884
2021 22
2017 10
B-803-18
ow A/S 2014
B-2073-16 IPO
767
B-2564-17
2009 2012
24

2009

2020 12

2007 2012

BS99-6998/2017

529
2017 11 29

B-2564-17
114

B-803-18

2019

2012

2009 2013
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15/3637
124
1PO
ow
B-2073-16

2023
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15/4353
137

2024 19

2014 11
79

2018
B-2564-17
2018 29
B-803-18

2023

16



2021

2013

2023
2024

13

CBS(
2021
5.75

2023 15
10

17

2023 14

2023

10 )(

2023

133

2014 10 29

116

2023

2023 21
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15

VIE

VIE

VIE

CDO

VIE
CLN

CLN

VIE

SPE

CLN

VIE

VIE
CDO

VIE

VIE
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VIE
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MTOB

MTOB—
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ooooood
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
VIE VIE VIE VIE
$ 597 $ 256 $ 1,153 $ 520
753 502 638 272
582 520 371 322
378 97 519 199
$ 2,310 $ 1,375 $ 2,681 $ 1,313
VIE VIE

CLO
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VIE
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 164 $ 142
1,557 2,066
492 255
67 200
26 16
4 2
$ 2,310 $ 2,681
$ 1,222 $ 1,185
121 124
32 4
$ 1,375 $ 1,313
$ 54 $ 71
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
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VIE
( )
2023 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 144,906 $ 1,526 $ 3,152 $ 3,102 $ 50,052
3
21,203 52 - 2,049 9,076
_ _ 2,092 - 4,452
3,439 - - — 55
$ 24,642 % 52 $ 2,092 $ 2,049 $ 13,583
$ 21,203 $ 52 $ - $ 1,682 $ 9,075
— - 2 — 1,330
$ 21,203 % 52 $ 2 $ 1,682 $ 10,405
VIE 4 15,002
$ - $ - $ 3 $ - 3 452
( )
2022 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 123,601 $ 3,162 $ 4,632 $ 2,403 $ 50,178
3
$ 13,104 $ 274 $ - $ 1,694 $ 11,596
_ - 3,200 — 5,211
674 - - — 1,410
$ 13,778 $ 274 $ 3,200 $ 1,694 $ 18,217
$ 13,104 $ 274 $ - $ 1,577 $ 11,59
- - 3 — 1,564
$ 13,104 % 274 $ 3 $ 1,577 $ 13,160
VIE 4 $ 13,708
$ - $ - 3 3 3 - 3 281
1.
2.
3.
4. VIE VIE SPE

2741427
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SPE

VIE

SPE

VIE

SPE
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VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 17,346 $ 3,355 $ 20,428 $ 2,570
74,590 8,342 67,540 4,236
42,917 6,675 32,567 4,729
10,053 2,831 3,066 1,569
$ 144,906 $ 21,203 $ 123,601 $ 13,104
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
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VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE

SPE
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CLO CDO

SPE

SPE

ELN
ELN

2023 12 31 2022

SPE

12 31
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( )
2023 12 31
RML CML CLN
CMO 1

SPE 2 3 $ 4,333 $ 73,818 $ 12,083 $ 12,438
$ 149 $ 653 $ 460 $ -

83 788 - 69

$ 232 $ 1,441 $ 460 $ 69

3

$ 20 $ 22 $ 42 $ -

— 16 — _

$ 20 $ 38 $ 42 $ -

$ - $ — $ — $ 1,073

_ — - 426

( )
2022 12 31
RML CML CLN
CMO 1

SPE 2 3 $ 3,732 $ 73,069 $ 6,448 $ 10,928
$ 137 $ 927 $ 367 $ -

26 465 11 44

$ 163 $ 1,392 $ 378 $ 44

5

$ 82 $ 51 $ 10 $ -

35 23 — _

$ 117 $ 74 $ 10 $ -

$ - $ - $ - $ 1,114

— - - 201
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( )

2023 12 31
$ 576 $ - $ 576
10 56 66
$ 586 $ 56 $ 642

3

$ 77 $ 7 $ 84
12 4 16
$ 89 $ 11 $ 100
$ 1,073 $ - $ 1,073
426 - 426
( )

2022 12 31
$ 489 $ - $ 489
25 16 41
$ 514 $ 16 $ 530

3

$ 140 $ 3 $ 143
42 16 58
$ 182 $ 19 $ 201
$ 1,114 $ - $ 1,114
153 48 201

RML
CML
CLO

SPE

2791427
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( )
2023 2022 2021
: $ 21,051 $ 22,136 $ 57,528
4,311 4,862 8,822
CLO SPE 12 24 62 169
1. cLo
14
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
! $ 60,766 $ 49,059
$ 62,221 $ 47,281
1,546 116
93 1,893
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16
1956
MSBNA
( CFTC )
SEC
RWA
Tier2 RWA
assets
CECL 2020 CECL
RWA
2022 25 2023

2025
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Tierl
RWA

50
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Risk-weighted



EDINETOOOO

OO00O000000O(E5871)
ooooooo
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2022 12 31
- 2.5
5.4 5.8 N/A
G-SIB 3.0 3.0 3.0
1 0 0 0
8.4 8.8 5.5
1 2.5
Tier 1
RWA
G-SIB
RWA
2.5 G-SIB
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2022
12 31
1
Tier 1 4.5 12.9 13.3 10.0
Tier 1 6.0 14.4 14.8 11.5
8.0 16.4 16.8 13.5
1.
RIWA
RWA

2821427
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0000000 000O(Ess71)
ooOoooOoo
) )
RWA
RWA
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
Tier
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1
Tier 1 $ 69,448 $ 68,670
Tier 1 78,183 77,191
88,874 86,575
RWA 456,053 447,849
Tier 1 12.9 15.2 13.3 15.3
Tier 1 14.4 17.1 14.8 17.2
16.4 19.5 16.8 19.3
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1
2 $ 1,159,626 $ 1,150,772
Tier 1 4.0 6.7 6.7
3 $ 1,429,552 $ 1,399,403
5.0 5.5 5.5
1.
2. Tier 1
3. Tier 1
)
)
)
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G-SIB

2023 12 31 2022 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA
2020 MSBNA MSPBNA CECL
RWA
2022
25 2023 50 2025
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MSBNA
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 21,925 21.7 $ 20,043 20.5
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 21,925 21.7 20,043 20.5
10.0 10.5 22,833 22.6 20,694 21.1
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 21,925 10.6 $ 20,043 10.1
6.0 3.0 21,925 8.2 20,043 8.1
MSPBNA
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 15,388 25.8 $ 15,546 27.5
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 15,388 25.8 15,546 27.5
10.0 10.5 15,675 26.3 15,695 27.8
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 15,388 7.5 $ 15,546 7.6
6.0 3.0 15,388 7.2 15,546 7.4
1.
MSBNA SEC
CFTC MSBNA
MS&Co.
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 18,121 $ 17,224
13,676 12,861
MS&Co. SEC CFTC
CFTC
SEC 1934
15¢3-1 E MS&Co.
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12 31

MSé&Co.

2023 12 31

SEC

CFTC

SEC

CFTC

MSCG

MS&Co. CFTC
SEC
2022 12 31
MSIP
CFTC
CFTC
SEC
CFTC
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MS&Co.
2023 12 31 2022
MSSB SEC CFTC
MSIP PRA
SEC
MSIP
SEC CFTC
MSEHSE
MSESE
MSESE
CFTC MSESE
MSMS
MSCS
0TC SEC
MSCS
CFTC
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31




0000000 000O(Ess71)
ooOoooOoo
$ 49,008 $ 45,896
17
)
2023 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
( )

A 44,000 $ 25,000 $ 1,100 $ 1,100
c1 519,882 1,000 408 408
E 34,500 25,000 862 862
F 34,000 25,000 850 850
| 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 500
M 400,000 1,000 430 430
N 3,000 100,000 300 300
0 52,000 25,000 1,300 1,300
p 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
$ 8,750 $ 8,750

30,000,000

1. MUFG
16 Tierl

2871427
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2023 12 31
3
2 C ) 4
A 44,000 1,000 $ 25,000
C5 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
E 34,500 1,000 25,000
F 34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
I 40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
K 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
L 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
M 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
N 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
06 52,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
p7 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 10 15
1. c 0.01
2. A c L 0
3. A c
4. A C E
()
()
9
5. C c
1,000 10
6. 2021 10 25 O
7. 2022 P
( )
2023 2022
1,675 1,772
! (71) (124)
2 23 27
1,627 1,675
1.
2. RSU
( )
2023 2022
$ 5,300 $ 9,865
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2023

EPS

30

RSU

EPS

200

PSU
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2023
10b5-1
( )
2023 2022 2021
1,628 1,691 1,785
18 22 29
1,646 1,713 1,814
2 3 -
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2023 2022 2021
1 1 1
A $ 1,522 $ 67 $ 1,061 $ 47 1,022 $ 44
C 100 52 100 52 100 52
E 1,791 62 1,781 60 1,781 60
F 1,719 58 1,719 59 1,719 60
H 2 _ - - - 719 38
1 1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
J - - — - 253 15
K 1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
L 1,219 24 1,219 24 1,219 24
M3 59 24 59 24 59 24
N 4 9,160 27 5,300 16 5,300 16
0 1,063 55 1,063 55 236 12
P 1,625 65 736 29 - -
$ 557 $ 489 $ 468
$ 3.25 $ 5,393 $ 2.9 $ 5,108 2.10 $ 3,818
H 2021 11 19 H
2021
3. M 2026 15
4. N 2023 15
« ) !
( )
DVA
2020 12 31
$ (795) $ 1,787 $  (498) $ (2,456) — % (1,92)
ocl (207) (1,542) (53) 662 - (1,140)
2021 12 31
(1,002) 245 (551) (1,794) - (3,102)
ocl (202) (4,437) 43 1,449 4) (3,151)
2022 12 31
(1,204) (4,192) (508) (345) %) (6,253)
ocl 51 1,098 87 (1,250) 20 (168)
2023 12 31
$ (1,153) $ (3,094) $  (595) $ (1,595) 16 $ (6,420)
1.
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0Cl
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0Cl

ocCl1

ocCl1

ocCl

ocCl1

ocCl

DVA

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2023
C ) C ) C )

$  (73) $ 53 $  (20) @ $ 51
$  (73) $ 53 $  (20) @y $ 51
$ 1,488 $ (33) $ 1,135 - $ 1,135
(49) 12 37 - @7
$ 1,439 $ (341) $ 1,098 - $ 1,098
$  (96) $ 24 $ (72 - $ (72)
(18) 3 (15) - (15)
$  (114) $ 27 $  (87) - $ (87
$ (1,728) $ 424 $ (1,304) (40)  $ (1,264)
19 ) 14 _ 14
$ (1,709) $ 419 $ (1,290) (40)  $ (1,250)
$ 9 $ @ s 8 - $ 8
16 ) 12 - 12
$ 25 $ G $ 20 - $ 20
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( )
2022
C ) C ) C )
ocl $ (1790 $ (17) $ (39%6) $ (135) $  (261)
_ 59 59 - 59
ocl $ (179 $ (158 $ (337) $ (1) $  (202)
ocl $ (5,7200 $ 1,337 $ (4,383) $ - $ (4,383)
(70) 16 (54) - (54)
ocl $ (5,790) $ 1,353  $ (4,437) $ - $ (4,437)
ocl $ 38 $ 13 s 2% % - $ 25
22 ) 18 - 18
ocl $ 60 $ an s 43 S - $ 43
DVA

ocl $ 1,982 $ (480) $ 1,502 $ 53 $ 1,449
ocl $ 1,982 $ (480) $ 1,502 $ 53 $ 1,449
ocl $ @ - $ @ s - $ )
ocl $ @ - $ @ 3 - $ 4)
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( )
2021
) C ) )
$  (140) $  (191) $  (33D) 124) $  (207)
$ (140) $ (191) $ (331 124y s (207)
$ (1,803) $ 422 $ (1,38D) - $ (1,381)
(210) 49 (161) - (161)
$ (2,013) $ 471 $ (1,542) - $ (1,542)
$ (101) $ 2% $ (75) - $ (75)
31 ©) 22 - 22
$  (70) $ 17 $ (53) - $ (53)
$ 882 $ (213) $ 669 3 $ 635
36 ©) 27 - 27
$ 918 $  (222) $ 69 3 $ 662
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ (2,917) $ (3,136)
1,764 1,932
$ (1,153) $ (1,204)
$ 18,761 $ 17,023
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( )
2023 2022 2021

$ 3,408 $ 914 $ 7
3,992 3,066 2,759
12,424 6,988 4,209
7,762 2,188 (181)
5,191 1,020 (1,017)
4,488 2,484 2,038
13,016 4,935 1,596

$ 50,281 $ 21,595 $ 9,411
$ 8,216 $ 1,825 $ 409
11,437 5,054 2,725
6,737 1,760 93

784 503 401
14,877 3,126 (2,262)
42,051 $ 12,268 $ 1,366

$ 8,230 $ 9,327 $ 8,045

( )

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 4,206 $ 4,139
4,360 4,273
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RSU
PSU
ESPP

2024
2025

ESPP

RSU

2024
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PSU
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 1,607 $ 1,827 $ 1,834
91 40 251
11 8 -
$ 1,709 $ 1,875 $ 2,085
$ 178 $ 176 $ 192
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 382 $ 427 $ 432
( )
2023 12 31
1
$ 560
238
66
$ 864
2024 2023
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RSU

RSU

2022
2021

1. 2023 12

RSU
RSU

31

RSU

RSU

RSU
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( )
2023 12 31
121
17
2023
C D
63 $ 76.31
19 93.55
1) 61.23
@ 88.02
59 $ 86.92
$ 5,523
96.61
77.28
1.1
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RSU
2023
( ) C )
RSU 35 $ 83.41
19 93.55
(25) 84.28
@ 89.44
RSU 1 28 $ 89.16
1. RSU
RSU 1
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 2,019 $ 2,301 $ 1,539
2,260 2,433 1,647
1.
PSU
PSU
150 PSU
MS ROTCE PSU 2023
S&P500 MS
TSR 2023 PSU
MS ROTCE MS ROTCE
PSU RSU 2023 12 31
PSU 2.8
PSU
2023 2022 2021
MS ROTCE/ ROTCE 1 $ 85.76 $ 100.12 $ 74.87
MS TSR - 102.17 83.70
1.

MS TSR
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1.3 38.9 0.91
0.2 39.0 0.92
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 693 $ 761 $ 810
668 (716) 526
$ 1,361 $ 45 $ 1,336
$ 259 $ 264 $ 253
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 44 $ 225 $ 346
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( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 20 $ 19 $ 19
140 111 104
(99) (56) (48)
1 1 1
) 25 34
2 - _
55 $ 100 $ 110
SEREP 401(a)
( )
2023 2022 2021
$  (716) $  (768) $  (691)
(100) 26 (112)
1 1 1
) 25 34
3 _ _
(105) 52 an
$  (821) $  (716) $  (768)
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10
2023 2022 2021
4.93 2.80 2.43
3.54 1.71 1.42
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( )
2023 2022

$ 2,907 $ 4,081
20 19

140 111
79 (1,064)
(13) @
(164) (196)
6 42)

$ 2,975 $ 2,907
$ 2,416 $ 3,605
78 (982)

89 37
(164) (196)
(13) @
16 (46)

$ 2,422 $ 2,416
$  (553) $  (491)
$ 84 $ 75
(637) (566)
$  (553) $  (491)

( )

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ 2,956 $ 2,801
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 2,821 $ 2,746
2,803 2,731
2,184 2,180
12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
4.75 4.93

Aa
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( )
2023 12 31

$ 6 $ — - $ 6

1,800 230 — 2,030
CDO - _ _ _

- 3 - 3

_ _ 71 71

1 1 15 _ 16
$ 1,807 $ 248 $ 71 $ 2,126

NAV

64

62

171

14

$ 311

! (€Y (¢X)) - (15)

$ @ $ (14) $ - $ (15)

$ 2,422
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CDO
1
NAV
1
1.
2023 2022
2023 12 31 2022 12

87 88
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( )
2022 12 31

$ 4 $ - - $ 4
1,788 267 - 2,055
- @ - @

_ _ 64 64

- 21 - 21

$ 1,792 $ 286 $ 64 $ 2,142
44

55
20
158
$ 277
- (©)) - (©))
$ - $ (©)) $ - $ (©)
$ 2,416

( )

2023 2022

$ 64 $ 65

2 _

5 Q)

$ 71 $ 64
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NAV

NAV
NAV

2023 12 31
2024 2024 40
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2027
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2029

401(K)
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-2033
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( )

2023 12 31
$ 154
160
167
174
180
967
( )

2023 2022 2021
$ 397 $ 355 $ 357

401(K)
401(K) 2023
IRS
100,000
401(K)

( )

2023 2022 2021
$ 173 $ 163 $ 149
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( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 1,190 $ 2,518 $ 2,554
542 442 475
1 437 24 197
267 405 551
139 105 105
39 29 192
2 432 236 470
$ 3,046 $ 3,759 $ 4,544
$  (295) $  (803) $ (¢5))
(59) 142) 33
1 (43) 25 38
12 55 (€))
13) 20 4
@ €)) (©)
2 (63) ©) (¢T))
$  (463) $  (849) $ 4
$ 2,583 $ 2,910 $ 4,548
1. 2023
2. 2023 2022 2021
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2023 2022 2021
21.0 21.0 21.0
3.4 1.8 2.1
1.3) (0.9) (0.6)
1.9 0.6 1.3
(1.5 @.n (0.6)
2-3) 0.8) 0.4
0.7 0.7 0.3
21.9 20.7 23.1
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 255 $ 288
2,636 2,487
755 595
1,897 1,743
78 35
5,621 5,148
211 205
$ 5,410 $ 4,943
772 807
2,003 2,019
$ 2,775 $ 2,826
$ 2,635 $ 2,117

2023 12 31
50

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
302 429
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( )
2023 2022 2021

$ 1,129 $ 971 $ 755
147 256 201

141 64 74
(73) (134) 37)
79 (6) (10)
(21) (22) 12)

$ 1,244 $ 1,129 $ 971

$ 1,090 $ 1,007 $ 860

12
12
( )
( )
2023 2022 2021

$ 65 $ 39 $ 14
237 175 142

2017

2010

2014

2019

2017

IRS
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( )
2023
$ 4,578 $ 454 $ - $  (84) $ 4,948
14,468 823 (59) 31 15,263
177 62 334 - 573
2,540 2,279 - (282) 4,537
596 14,019 5,231 (229) 19,617
480 513 @ 11) 975
22,839 18,150 5,499 (575) 45,913
36,815 15,015 135 (1,684) 50,281
36,594 6,897 264 (1,704) 42,051
221 8,118 (129) 20 8,230
$ 23,060 $ 26,268 $ 5,370 $  (555) $ 54,143
$ 401 $ 131 $ - $ - $ 532
8,369 13,972 2,217 - 24,558
9,814 5,635 2,311 (520) 17,240
$ 18,183 $ 19,607 $ 4,528 $  (520) $ 41,798
$ 4,476 $ 6,530 $ 84 $  (35) $ 11,813
884 1,508 199 ) 2,583
3,592 5,022 643 @n 9,230
139 - 4 - 143
$ 3,453 $ 5,022 $ 639 $ @D $ 9,087
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( )
2022
$ 5,235 $ 438 $ - $  (79) $ 5,599
14,318 (432) 11) 53 13,928
(156) 51 120 - 15
2,756 2,467 - (285) 4,938
580 13,872 5,332 (206) 19,578
(295) 592 ) 12) 283
22,438 16,988 5,439 (524) 44,341
13,276 9,579 56 (1,316) 21,595
11,321 2,150 120 (1,323) 12,268
1,955 7,429 (64) 7 9,327
$ 24,393 $ 24,417 $ 5,375 $  (517) $ 53,668
$ 211 $ 69 $ - $ - $ 280
8,246 12,534 2,273 - 23,053
9,221 5,231 2,295 (501) 16,246
$ 17,467 $ 17,765 $ 4,568 $  (501) $ 39,299
$ 6,715 $ 6,583 $ 807 $  (16) $ 14,089
1,308 1,444 162 ) 2,910
5,407 5,139 645 12) 11,179
165 - (15) - 150
$ 5,242 $ 5,139 $ 660 $ (12) $ 11,029
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( )
2021
$ 10,272 $ 822 $ - $  (100) $ 10,994
12,353 418 (53) 92 12,810
607 48 721 - 1,376
2,878 3,019 1 @G77) 5,521
583 13,966 5,576 (158) 19,967
495 577 (20) (10) 1,042
27,188 18,850 6,225 (553) 51,710
3,752 5,821 31 (193) 9,411
1,107 428 36 (205) 1,366
2,645 5,393 Q) 12 8,045
$ 29,833 $ 24,243 $ 6,220 $  (541) $ 59,755
$ $ 1 $ - $ - $ 4
9,165 13,090 2,373 - 24,628
8,861 4,961 2,169 (536) 15,455
$ 18,026 $ 18,051 $ 4,542 $  (536) $ 40,083
$ 11,814 $ 6,181 $ 1,678 $ (5 $ 19,668
2,746 1,447 356 @) 4,548
9,068 4,734 1,322 ) 15,120
111 - (25) - 86
$ 8,957 $ 4,734 $ 1,347 $ @ $ 15,034
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( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 2,244 $ 2,946 $ 3,487
2,334 2,289 6,785
91 90 91
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 4,646 $ 2,808 $ 740
1,054 1,585 1,008
8,929 7,515 7,331
1,624 1,466 2,599
(990) 554 1,132
$ 15,263 $ 13,928 $ 12,810
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 787 $ 819
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( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 93 $ 211 $ 516
2a-7
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 866 $ 910 $ 969
EMEA
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 41,651 $ 40,117 $ 44,605
6,058 6,811 7,699
6,434 6,740 7,451
$ 54,143 $ 53,668 $ 59,755
( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 8,334 $ 9,363 $ 14,082
3,479 4,726 5,586
$ 11,813 $ 14,089 $ 19,668
EMEA
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( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 1,778 $ 2,538 $ 2,391
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 2,339 $ 2,577
( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 810,506 $ 789,837
365,168 373,305
18,019 17,089
$ 1,193,693 $ 1,180,231
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 832,714 $ 853,228
218,923 197,397
142,056 129,606

$ 1,193,693

$ 1,180,231




EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2023 2022 2021

$ 5,770 $ 2,875 -
6,812 8,661 8,898
12,582 11,536 8,898
(775) (1,143) 229
(31) 170 4
11,776 10,563 9,131
13,596 5,805 2,648
13,618 6,162 2,822
2) (357) 174)
11,754 10,206 8,957
287 252 443
11,467 9,954 8,514
(520) (456) (203)
11,987 10,410 8,717
(2,900) 619 6,317
9,087 11,029 15,034
51 (202) (207)
1,098 (4,437) (1,542)
87 43 (53)
(1,250) 1,449 662
20 0 _

$ 8,919 $ 7,878 13,894
$ 9,087 $ 11,029 15,034
557 489 468

$ 8,530 $ 10,540 14,566
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22,164
14,278

18,488
10,179

14,093
12,948

17,698

(13,404

14

0.01
: 3,500,000,000
:1,626,828,437

1 2,038,893,979
1,675,487,409

«c )

( 0.0 )

412,065,542 363,406,570
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( )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

$ 16,881 $ 25,333
4,160 10,391
21,515 17,409
15,284 19,267
24,693 22,987
38,550 76,232
139,250 93,593
58,949 59,676
50,291 50,366
2,595 2,071

$ 372,168 $ 377,325
$ 44 $ 262
20,293 28,682
73,370 76,170
2,539 2,282
176,884 169,788
273,130 277,184
8,750 8,750

20 20

29,832 29,339
97,996 94,862
5,314 4,881
(6,421) (6,253)
(31,139) (26,577)
(5,314) (4,881)
99,038 100,141

$ 372,168 $ 377,325
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( )
2023 2022 2021
$ 24,914 $ (13,064) $ 4,257
(9,362) (1,855) (6,275)
300 676 2,611
5,479 3,814 1,940
- (4,228) (3,022)
4,003 3,434 3,696
(1,706) (1,871) 13,581
(8,389) 11,755 (7,422)
(10,097) (10,574) (17,083)
(19,772) 1,151 (11,974)
_ 994 1,275
23,783 34,431 42,098
(22,554) (14,441) (28,592)
(6,178) (10,871) (12,075)
(5,763) (5,401) (4,171)
(3,029) 16,707 17,042
(13,741) 21,419 15,577
147 485 380
« ) (8,452) 9,991 8,240
25,333 15,342 7,102
$ 16,881 $ 25,333 $ 15,342
$ 107 $ 75 $ 100
16,774 25,258 15,242
$ 16,881 $ 25,333 $ 15,342
$ 1,086 $ 836 $ 4
$ 14,437 $ 5,955 $ 2,970
)1 599 3,132 2,775
2023 2022 2021
30
17
( )
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
$ 164,514 $ 157,585
12,370 12,203
$ 176,884 $ 169,788
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2023 12 31
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$ 60,942

2023 12 31

$ 632

2023

IHC

IHC
IHC
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( )
2022 12 31
$ 51,136
( )
2022 12 31
$ 615
LLC



EDINETOOOO

OO000000000(E5871)
ooooooo
1934
13a-15(e)
( GAAP
)
GAAP
2023 12 31
(C0S0) (2013 )

2023 12 31
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Income Statement Morgan Stanley
) M, ASTRIT D SRR R 2023 2022 221
Revenues
Ienedstirsind banking $ 4848 § 5500 % 10554
Trading 15,263 13,528 12.810
Invaakmeanis 573 15 1,376
Cormmissions and Tees 4,537 4 508 5521
Aasal mana geman 19,617 18,578 16,4967
Ciher 75 263 !2‘\_2_
_Sntakron-snEaTERt Tl e 45013 T SELHO
Inlereatincome 50,281 21,585 B
Iriliresti s ke 42,051 12,268 1356
et inlnn sl 8,230 8327 BAMS
Hﬂrﬂr\qnuu IH.,'M! SE.BEE_ 58,755
Provision for emﬂ Insses 532 280 4
Hon-interest ex EHPENRES
Cormper:aion and benebts 24,558 23.053 24,628
Brokerage, clearnng and exchangs fees 3476 3458 3
Information processing and convmanicalions 3,775 3,483 3418
Prafesssonal services 3,058 3070 2523
Drecuandy ard aquiprisn 1,885 .13 .E5
Marketing and business civelopment f1) ] 643
Other 4,138 3,551 3604
Total noneinterest exponses 41,758 0,263 40083
Irvcone balora provision Mo incoe Laxes 11,813 14, 085 16,868
Pronvision for income Lares 2,583 280 4548
Malncoma 5 8,230 § 11,170 § 15,120
Netincoms apphcabli k nencontrolling intarests ) 143 150 B8
H&lm ax-ht:abfa 1] lh'gaﬂ Elanhw 5 8,087 % 11,028 § 15,004
Prisferrad stock dnadends 557 L] 458
Earnings applicable to Morgan Stanley commaon shareholders § 8,530 § 10.540 § 14,566
Earnings per common share
Basic § 524 § B3 § 8.16
Delutad 5.18 6.15 B.03
Average common shares cutstanding
Basic 1,628 1,691 1.785
Diluted 645 LA 1814
Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement
20 minw 2023 2022 2021
Rl e % 8,230 % 11,47 § 15,1420
Ozher comprahensive income (loss). nat ol
Foraign cumancy ranalation adiustmenis (20) {337} {331}
Change in nel urdealized gamns (10ases ) on avallable-for-aals securites 1,008 {4,437 {1.542)
Pension and athar (87) 43 (53}
Changa in nat debt valuation adustmant (#.280) 1.502 =]
Kt change in cash faw hadges 0 4] —
Tolal alher comprabersys ncoma (1a8) $ (2789) § (3.221) 8 {1230}
Carnprehangivg incame 3 84951 % TG § 13,850
Malincons apphcabla ta noncontrolling interests 143 180 -]
Oher comprehensive income (loss} applicable 1o nonconlrolling inlasests {11) (B2 (90}
‘Comprahansive incoms applicable 1o Ilnmul Senaley ] 8918 § 7.878 % 17, B04
December 2023 Form 10-K &2 Bee Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements
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Table of Contenis
Consolidated Balance Sheet M':"rgan Stanieyr
At AL
December 31, Dacember 31,

B TGS, SR S 023 _ene2
Asnets
Cash and cash soursalénts 3 Ba.23z % 128,127
Trading assets ol far valua ($162,698 and §124,411 wera pladged to various parties) 367,074 301,315
InwasimEnt fecuUnes:

Avadable-for-sale at lar vakee (amortzed coalof $92.149 and $89, 772) BE113 B4 257

Hid:-ba=rbuity (fair wviadus of $57,453 and 565, 006) GG, 584 T5.604
Securitins purchased under agnisments b rosall indudes 57 and $8 at fair valua) 110,740 113,907
Securiies borrowed 121,081 133,374
Customer and offer recenvablas 80,105 78,540
Livress:

Madd Far ekt 1t {red of all ol for cridil kossas of $1,160 and 3835} 203,385 188967

Hisid for saba 15,255 14,784
Goodwill 16,707 16,652
Imangiblia assata {nal of sccurmidlated amorszabon of $4.847 and §4.253) 7.055 7618
Orthar ansels 28,242 26,082
Total assets § 1483883 §  11BO2WN
Linklithes
Deposits includeas $6.472 and $4.795 al fair valus] 5 351,804 § 356,646
Trasdfirg linbditias &l lair vidus 151,513 154 438
Securities sold under sgresrments o repurchass ([Mchedes 54,000 and 3564 &1 far valua) 62,651 62534
Securites loaned 15,057 15679
Oilhar sacured Enancinga (incudes. §9,899 and §4.550 a1 fr valua} 12,655 B.1548
Customer and ofhar payallas 208,143 216,124
Oiihar liabdites and accrund axpoenses 28,181 27,3463
Borrowings {inchudas $83,%00 and $T8.T20 al lair vaiue) 263,732 2348058
Total labilitles 1003,711 1,079,000
Commitments and contingent labilities (see Hote 14)
Equity
Margan Stanléy shivabolders’ aduiby:

Prafamed stock 4,750 8,750

Common stock, $0.01 par value:

Sharess awuthorioad: 3,500,000,000; Shves iseuwed: 2,038,883.878; Shares oulstanding: 1,626,020 437 and
1675 487 409 0 20

AdciBonal paid-in capital 29 832 8,338

Ralsingd sarmirgs 47,508 04 BE2

Emplayoe stock Irusts 5314 4881

Acturmiabad alher comprehansive nconsa (loas) {5.421) {6.253)

Commen stock held in lreasury at cost, $0.01 par value (412,065,542 and 363,406,570 shares} {31,139} (26,577)

Cernen #lock ifusd 1o amployes alock Frusls {5,314} {4,881}
Total Morgan Stanley shareholders’ aquity 98,033 10, 141
Hancontroling interasts S44 1060
Tetal equity 949,982 101,20
Total liabilities and equity 3 14B36B3 £ 118023
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity Morgan Stanley
# iy mis 2023 2022 2021
Prafemed Stock

Beginning balanca % 8750 % 1750 % 5,250
Indasanice of prafarmad stock = 1,000 1,300
Rademptan of praferrsd stock — {2 8OO}
Endiryg balancs 8,750 8,750 T.760
Comman Steck

Begirning and andng balance n 0 20
Additional Paid-in Capital

Boginning balance el k] 28841 25,548
Shara-based mward activily 453 503 1,917
Issuance of prefamed slock = 16} (25}
Isauanics of commaon atock for the acoustiion of EMon Vancs —_ - 2 185
OFwr nat incrassas (dacraataa) — 1 18
Eruding balanca 812 28,333 28841
Ritained Earnings

Begirning balanca 04,862 80432 Th.604
Hal mcoire apphiabla B Morgan Slanley 8,087 11,023 15,004
Prafarrad stack doidends {557) {481) {468}
Common stack dividends’ {5,383) (5. 108) (3.818)
Qher nel incraases (decreases) @ ) (R
Er'dr__ng balanos &7 806 Q-I.EEE 82.4!!2
Bagirning balance 4 A1 3,955 3043
Share-hased award aclivily 433 il w2
Erdting balance 5314 4,881 3885
Atcumulsted Other Comprabensive lncame (Loas)

Bagirning balance (6,253) (3102} (LR
Mal change i Accundaled other comprahensive income Joss) {168) (3.151) (5.140)
Erufing balanca (6,421) (6,253) (402}
Comman Steck Held in Treasury at Cast

Beginning balanca {26.577) {17,500) (8, 76T}
Share-based award activity 1,654 1,704 1210
Rapurchases of comamon slock and employes tax withhaldings (6,218) {10,871} {12.075)
laduanice of comman alock for he acmuetlion of Eslon Vanes —_ — fi ' kel
Ending balance (09 @65 {17.500)
Comman Steck lssued to Employes Stock Trusts

Beginning balance (4.881) (3.8055) (043}
Share-based avwand achvily (433) 155) 2y
Endiryg balarce (5,314) {4,861 {3.955)
Moncontrolling Interests

Baginning balance 1,050 1,157 1.8
Ralmooms applicabla o nonconlrolling interesls 143 150 B5
Mt changa in Accundated other comprahensivie incorms (loss) applicable 1o rancantralling

inlpresis (111 (&2) [
Other nal increases (decreases) {178) {135) {207}
Endirg balarce ; . 108 _LI5T
rost By Sy s s

1. Ses Note 17 for nlomation regerding chvidends per share for sach cliss of sock.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Morgan Stanley
. mm 2023 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
el e $ 8,230 § 1147 5 15430
Adfustmants o recondle nat incomas (o rel cash provided by (used Tor) opemlting activibies:
Dalarred income taxes {453) {B43) 4
Shock -Based compenaalion axanda 1,708 1,875 2085
Dapraciafon and amorisabon 4,256 3,958 416
Provision for cradit losses 532 280 4
Other aparating adjusiments 308 618 {147}
Changes in assels and kabdites:
Tradirg assals, nel of Trading liabiilies (E1,026) (30.422) 075
Securiling bomowad 12,283 [3.661) T3
Securitins kaned {622) 3,360 4,568
Cusilomer and other recelvabies and other atsats G0z 14 BE4 T4
Customer and olher payables and othar liahilibes {3,623) (4,857) 7,758
Securilies purchared under sgrasmants i resall 3467 6.002 {3.765)
_ Securiies sold undar agraemants ta repurchise "7 6 11601
Mat cosh provided by (used for] opersting activities {¥3,535) (6.357} 33871
Cash flows from investing activities
Procésids om [payments e
Cithar assets-—Prémisas, equipment and saftears (3,412) (3.078) (2.308)
Changas in loans, rat {4,053) 127,852) {36, 106}
AFS securilies:
Purchanes {23,078) {24,802) 142 453)
Proceads from sales 59719 22014 200652
Proceads from paydosans and maturities 14,316 13,435 26,375
HTM sacunibes:
Purchanres — (5.231) {2702}
Proceads from paydowns and maburies 8,143 G820 14,541
Cash paid as part of tha Eatan Vance accuisition, ned of cash acquirsd - — (2,648}
Cithr irvasing aclivities (923} {347) {832}
Met cash provided by (used for] investing aclivities  (3,084) 11,822} {48,897}
Cath flaws from financing activities
Ma prosoneds from (peymiens Sl
Cithar sacunad inancings o6 {BE4) {625}
Deposits (5,075) 1,659 36,897
lasuance of prefarmad alock, nel of issuance coats — GG 1275
Proomeds fram issuancs of Borrowings 78,424 T2 460 #0273
Paymuints far:
Borrcrangs {&4,805) {34, 808) {70 124)
Rapurchases of common Slock and amployss tax walkhaldings {6,178y {10.871) {12075}
Cash dividends (5,T63) (5,401) 4171}
Offw i aclivitme 1¥25) o7
Met cash provided by (used for) fin (2.726) 41547
a51 {3,550}
T e e e e o e
Cash and cash aquivalents, at beginning of penod 128,427 105,654
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period 5 9,232 § 127125
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paymaents foe:
Inaras! 5 41,840 5 8819 § 1,303
Income axes. net of refunds 2,035 4147 4231
Sew Mobes to Consclidated Financial Statements 4] Drevemiber 2023 Form 10-K

331/427



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

Table of Contents
Notes to Consolidated Financdial Statements

1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation
The Firm

Morgan Stanley 15 o pglobal fimancial services firm  that
maintains significant market positions in each of ils business
segments—Institutional Securities, Wealth Management and
Investment Mamagement.  Morgan  Stanley, through us
subsaclinrses and affilistes, provides a wide vanety of products
and serviees b0 a large and diversified group of chents amd
customers, mcluding corporations, governments, financaal
institutions and individuals, Unless the context otherwise
requares, the terms “Morgan Stanlev” or the “Firm”™ mean
Morgan Stanley (the “Paremt Company™) together with s
consolidated subsidianes. See the “Glessary of Common
Terms and Acronyms™ for the definition of certain terms and
BCTONY NS medﬂumghm this Form 0K

A descripion of the clients and principal products and
services of each of the Firm's business segmemts is as
fallionws:

Instintional Secunties provides a vanely of products and
services i0 corporations, governments, financial institutions
and ulira-high met worth clients. Investmeni Banking
services consist of capital rasseng and financial advisory
services, imcluding the underwriting of debl,  equity
securnies and other produsts. as well as advice on mergers
and acquisitions, restructurings znd propect finance. Our
Bquity and Fixed Income businesses inclede sales,
financing, prime biokersge, market-making, Asia wealth
manasgement  services  and  certan business-related
mvestments. Lending  activities  include  onginating
corporate loans and commercial real estate loans, providing
secured lending facilites, and extending securities-based
and other financimg to customers. Cther activities include
research

Wealth Management provides a comprehensive amay of
financial services and solutions to individual investors and
small to medium-sized businesses and instiluhions covering!
financial advisor-led brokerage, custody, sdminstrative and
inwvestment  advisory services; self-directed brokerage
services, financial and wealth plinning services, workplace
services, including steck plan admenisiration, secunies-
based lending, residentia] real estate Joans and cther lending
products; banking; and retirement plan services

Investment Manapement provides o broad rnge of
investment strategies and products that span geographies,
asset clasaes, and public and private markets to a diverse
group of clients across mnstitutional and  intermediary
chasmwels. Strategies and products, which are offered
through a varety of mvestment vehicles, include equity,
fixed income, alternatives and solutions, and liquidity and
overlay services.  Instiutional chents  include  defined
benelivdefined  comribution  plans, foundations,
endowmients, government entities, soveraign wealth funds,
insurance  companies, third-party  fund  sponsors  and

Dicember 2023 Form 10-K
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corporations.  Individual clients are generally  served
through  ntermediares, meluding  affilated and non-
affibated distributors

Basis of Financial Information

The Onancisl stalements are prepared in accordance with U5,
GAAP, which requires the Fiom to make estimates and
assumptions regarding the valuations of certain financial
instruments, the valuations of goodwill and intangible asscts,
the outcome of legal and 1ax meners, deferred tax assets,
ACL., and other matters that affect its financial ststements and
related disclosures. The Firm believes that the estimates
utilized in the preparation of s Bnancial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Acteal results could differ materially
from these estimates.

The MNopies are an imdegral pari of the Fim's financial
statements. The Firm has evaluated subsequent evemts for
adjusiment to or disclosure n these financial siatements
through the date of this report and has not dentified any
recardable or disclosable events not otherwise reported in
these financial statements or the notes thereto,

Canrsolidketion

The financeal statements include the accounts of the Firm, its
wholly owned subsidiaries and other entities 1n which the
Firm has a controlling financial interest, ncluding certain
VIEs (see Note 153} Intercompany balances and transactions
have been elimmnated For consolidated subsidianes that are
not wholly owned, the third-pany holdings of equity interests
are referred to as Noncontrolling interests. The net income
attributable 1o Nencontrolling mierests for such subsidiaries is
presented as Met income applicable to noncontrolling mterests
in the income statement. The portion of shareholders’ equty
that s atributable to Noncontrolling  imteresis for such
subsihanies 15 presented as Noncontrolhng  interests. a
component of Tetal squity, inthe batance sheet.

For entities where the total equity investoment al rik is
suflficient to enahle the entity o finance it activities withoul
additional subordinated financial support and the eguity
holders bear the residual economic risks and retums of the
entity and have the power to direct the activities of the entity
that most sigmificantly affect 1 economic performance, the
Firm consclidates those entities it controls either through a
majonty voling interest of otherwise. For VIEs (Le., enlitics
that do not meet the aforementioned critena), the Fim
consoludates those entities where it has the power 1o make the
decisions that most sigmficantly  affect the cconomic
performance of the VIE and has the obligation to absorb
losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be
significant to the VIE.

For investments in entities in which the Frrm does not have a
controlling (nancial mberest but has spnificant influence over
operating and financial decisions, it applies the equity method
of secounting with net gains and losses recarded within Other
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reverues (see MNote |1y unless the Firm has elected to measure
the investment at fair valee, in which case net paing and losses
are recorded within Investments revenues (see MNote 5).

Equity and partnership interests held by entittes qualifvimg for
acoounfing purposes as mvesiment cmpmi.c.ﬁ are camed al
faair value,

The Firm's =zignificant regulated U5 and intemnational
subsidiaries include:

« Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC ("M3&Co0.7),

Morgan Stanley Smith Bamney LLC (“MSSE™),

Maorgan Stanley Europe SE (“MSESE™),

Morgan Stanley & Co. Intermational ple ("MSIFP™),

Margan Stanley Capital Services LLC (“MSCS™),

Morgan Stanley Capital Group Ing. {“MBCG™),

Worpan Stanley MUFG Secunities Co., Lid. (“MSME™),
Meorgan Stanley Bank, N.A. ("MSBNAT) and

Meorgnn  Stnley Private Bank, Natioral Association
(“MSPBNAT)

For further mformation on the Firm’s sigrificant regulated
LIS, and internabional subsidiaries, see Note 16

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Fevenues are recogmized when the promised poods or
services are delivered to our customers in an amount that 1=
based on the consideration the Firm expects to receive in
exchange for those goods or services when such amounts sre
not probable of sipnificant reversal

Tmvestment Banking

Revenues from inwvestment banking activities consest of
revenues camed from underwnlmg, pnmanly equity and
fixed ncome secunties and Joan syndications, and advisory
fees, primanly for mergers, aoquisitions and restruciurings

Underwriting revenues are generally recognized on trade date
if there 1= no uncertainty or contingency related to the amount
1o be paid. Underwriting oosts are deferred and recognized in
the relevant non-interest expenses line tems when the related
umderwriting revenues are recorded,

Advisory fees are recognized as advice 15 provided fo the
client, based on the estimated progress of work and when
revenues are not probable of o significant reversal. Advisony
cosls are recognized as incurmed in the relevant non-inerest
expenses |ine items, inchuding those reimbursed

Comemissions anud Fees

Commssion and  fee revenues  generally  result  from
transaction-based arrangements in which the client 1s charged
a fee for the exeodion of transactions Such revenues
primarnily anse from transsciions m equily securities, services
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related to sales and trading sctivities, and sales of mutual
funds, altemative funds, fulares, nsurance products and
options, as well as revenues from order flow pavments for
directing customer orders 1o broker-dealers, ¢xchanges and
market centers for execution. Commission and fee revenues
are recogmzed on rade date when the performance obligation
15 satisfied

Asset Mamagement Revennes

Asset management, distnbution and admarstration fees are
penerally based on related asset kevels, such as the AUM ol a
customer s account or the net assel valee of a fund. These fees
are generally recognized when services are performed and the
value of the assets iz known, Management fees are reduced by
estimated fee wauivers and expense caps, if any, provided to
the customer.

Performance-hased fees not in the form of camed interest are
recorded when the annual performance target is met and the
revenuies are nol probable of o significant reversal

Sales commissions paid by the Firm in connection with the
sale of certamn classes of shares of ns open-end mutual fund
products are accounted for as deferred commission mssets and
amortized to (Mher expenses over the expected life of the
contract. The Firm peniodically tests deferred commission
assets for recoverability based on cash flows expected 1o be
receved n future perixls. Other asset management and
distribation costs are recogrized as incurred m the relevant
non-interest expenses line llems.

Tnvestments Revenues—Carried Interest

The Fimm iz entitled 1o receve performance-based fees i the
form of camied mierest when the retum in certain funds
exceeds specified performance targets. When the Firm cams
curied anterest  from  funds as  specified  performance
thresholds are met, that caried interest and any related
general or hmited partner interest are accounted for under the
equity method of accounting and measured based on the
Firm's claim on the NAV of the fund at the reporting date,
taking into account the distribution terms applicable to the
infterest held Such stems are reffected within Investments
FEVENUES.

See Mote 22 for information regarding the met cumulative
unrealized amount of performance-based fee revenues at rsk
of reversal, See Nole 14 for information regarding general
partner puarantees, which mclude potential obligations 1o
refurn performance fee distnbutions previcusly receved

Cigiver frems

Revenuwes from certain commodities-related contracts are
recogrized in Trading revenues when the Firm has transferred
control over the promsed goods or services to the customer,

Recervables from contracts with customers are recogmized in
Customer and oiher receivables in the balance sheet when the

December 2023 Foom 10-K
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underlying performance obligations have been satisfied and
the Firm has the right per the contract 10 bill the customer
Contract assels are recognized in Chher assets when the Firm
has satisfied its performance obligations but  customer
payment i conditional on semething other than the pasaage of
time, Contract lablities are recognized in Other Labulnies
and aecrued expenses when the Fiems has collected pavment
from a customer based on the terms of the contract but the
underlying performance ohligations are not vet satisfied.

For contracts with a term of less than one vear, incremental
cosls to obtan the contract are expensed as incwrred.
Revenues are not discounted when payment s expected
within one vear.

The Firm generally presents, net within reverues, taxes
mssessed by g governmental authority that are both imposed
on and concurrent with a speaific revenue-producing
transaction and collected by the Firm from a customer.

Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and due frem
banks and Interesi-henring  deposits with  banks, Cash
equivalents are highly lwquid mvestments with remaining
maturities of three months o less from the sequisition date
that are readily convertible to cash and are not held for trading

pUrposes.

Cash and cash equivalents also include Restncted cash, such
as cash segregated in compliance with federal or other
regulations, including minimum reserve requitements set by
the Federal Reserve Bank and other central banks, and the
Firm"s initial margin deposited with elearing organizations.

Fair Yulue of Financial Instruments

Instruments within Trading assets and Trading Labilities are
measured al far value, ether as required o allowed By
geeounting guidance. These fmanceal instruments primarly
represent the Fim's frading and investment positions and
include both cash and denvative products. In addition,
securities  classified as  Available-for-Sale ("AF3") are
micasured at fair value.

Gains and losses on instruments carmed ol fag value are
reflected in Trading revemues, Investments fevenucs of
Investment banking revenues in the income salement, excepl
for gains and losses related 1o AFS secunties (see “AFS
Investment Secunties”™ section herein and Note 7)) and
dervatives accounted for as hedpes, as well as economic
denvative hedges associated with cenain beld-for-sale and
held-for-investment corporate leans and lending commitm ents
(see “Hedge Accountmg™ and “Ciher Hedges™ herein and
Mote &)

Initerest imcome and merest expense aré recorded withan the
ineome statement depending on the nature of the instrument
and related market conventions, When inferest 1s incheded asa
component of the instruments” fair value, interest is recorded

Dicember 2023 Form 10-K
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within Trading revenues or Investments revenucs. Otherwise,
it is recorded within Inerest income or Interest expense.
Dividend mcome s recorded in Trading revenues or
Investmenis revenues depending on the business activity

The farr value of OTC financial snstruments, ncluding
dervative contracts related to fimancial instruments  and
commaodities, is presented in the accompanying balance sheet
on  a net-by-counterparty  basis, when  appropriate.
Additionally, the Firm nets the fair value of cash collateral
paid or received agninst the fair value amounts recogrized for
net derivative positions executed with the same counterparty
under the same master netting agreement

Fair Value Chption

The Firm has elected to measure certain ehgible instruments
at [wr value, including Secunties purchased under agreements
e rescll, Loans and lending commitments, equaty method
investments and certrin other assets, Deposits, Securities sold
under agreements o repurchase, Crher secured Minancings and
Bomowings.

Fair Valwe Measwrement—Definition and Hierarchy

Fair value 1s defined as the price that would be recerved to sell
an assel or paid to transfer a lability (e, the “exit price™) in
an orderly transaction befween market participants a1 the
measurement date,

Fair value 15 a market-based measure consadéred from the
perspective of a market participant rather than an entity-
specific measure, Therefore, even when markel assumplions
are nol readily available, assumptions are set to reflect those
that the Firm believes market parcipants would use in
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Where
the Firm manages a group of financial assets, financial
lighihitses, and nonfinancial dems accounted for as denvatives
on the basis of its net exposure 1o either market risks or eredil
risk, the Fim measures the fmir value of that proup of
financel instruments  consistently  with  how  markel
paricipants would price ke net risk exposure at the
mesurement date,

In determining far value, the Firm wses varous valuation
approaches and establishes a hicrarchy for inputs w=ed in
measuring fair value that requires the most cbservable inputs
b wsed when available.

Observable mputs are inputs that markel participants would
use i pricing the asset or liability that were developed based
on market data obtaned from sources amdependent of the
Farm. Uncbservable inputs are inputs that reflect assumplions
the Firm believes other market parcipants would use in
pricang the asset or lmbility that are developed based on the
best information available in the circumstances. The Fair value
hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the
observability of mputs as follows, with Level 1 bang the
highest and Level 3 being the lowest level:
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Level . Valuations based on quoted praces in active markets
that the Firm has the ability 10 access for identical assets or
labilities.  Valuation adjustments, block discoumts  and
discounts for entity-specific and contractual restrictions. that
would not transfer to market participants are not applied 1o
Level 1 mnatruments, Since valuations are based on quoted
prices that are readilv and regularly available @ an active
market, valuation of these products does nol entail a
sipruficant degree of judoment.

Level 2 Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets
or lishilites in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabaliies i imactive markels, signaficant
market inpuls other than quoted prices that are observable for
the azset or liahility, or market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3. Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and
sagnificant to the overall fair value measurement.

The availability of observable inpiits can vary from produect 1o
presduct and & affected by o wide vanety of factors, mcluchng
the type of product, whether the product 15 new and not vet
established in the marketplace, the liquidity of markets and
ciher chamctenistics particular to the product. To the extent
that vahmtion 15 based on models o mputs that are less
observable or unobservable m the market. the determination
of fuir value requires more judgment. Accordmgly, the degree
of judgment exercised by the Firm in determ ining fair value is
preatest for instruments culegonized in Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy

The Firm considers prices and inputs that are current as of the
measurement date, including during periods of market
dislocation. In periods of market dislocation, the observabality
of prices and sz may be reduced for many instruments.
Thiz condition could cause an instrument 10 be reclassified
from Level 1to Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy,

Ini certiun ¢ases, the inpaits used b measure Fur value may fall
intry different levels of the fair value hicrarchy. In such cases,
the total fair value amount 15 disclosed in the level appropriate
for the bowest level input that is significant 10 the wtal fir
value of the asset or labihity.

Valuation Techmigues

Many cash instruments and OTC denvative contracts hive bid
and ask prices that can be observed in the marketplace. Bid
prices reflect the highest price that a party s willing to pay for
an assel Ask prices represent the lowest pri::c that a party 1=
willing to accept for an assel. The Firm carries positions at the
peint within the bad-ask mnge that meets s best estimate of
farr value For offsetting positions i the same financaal
instrumient, the same price within the bid-ask spread s used 10
measure bath the long and short positions

Fair value for many cash instruments and OTC denvatve
contracts & derved using pricing models. Pricing models take
into account the confract terms, as well as multiple inputs,
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including, where applicable, commodity prices, equity prices,
interest mafe  vield curves, credit  curves, correlation,
creditworthaness of the counterparty, creditwonhiness of the
Firm, option volatlity and currency rates.

Where appropreate, valuahion adjustments are made to account
for wanous factors such as  hgqudity nsk  (hideask
adjustments), credit quality., model  uncenainty, and
concentration risk and funding in order to ammve at far value.
Adjustments for liquidity risk adjust model-derived mid-
market amounts of Level 2 and Level 3 firancial instruments
for the bid-mid or mid-ask spread requared 1o properly reflect
the exit price of a nsk position. Bid-mid and nud-ask spreads
are marked 1o levels observed in trade activity, broker quotes
or other external third-party data. Where these spreads are
unobservable for the particular position i guestion, spreads
are denved from observable levels of similar positions.

The Firm applies credit-refated valuation adjustments to s
Borrowings for which the fair value option was elected and 1o
OTC derwatives. The Firm considers the impact of changes in
its own credit spreads based upon observations of the
secondary bond market spreads when measuring the far value
for Borowings,

For OTC denvatives, which are recognized m Trading assets
at fair value n the balance sheet, the mpact of changes in
both the Firm's and the counterparty’s credit rating is
conssdered when measuring fair vabee. In determaning the
expected exposure, the Firm simulates the distribution of the
firture exposure 1o 8 counterparty, then applies market-based
default probahilities 1o the future exposure, leveraging
external third-pany CDE spread data, Where CDS spread data
are unavalable for a specific counterparty, bond market
spreads, CDE spread data bused on the counterparty’s credit
rating or CDS spread data that reference a comparable
counterparty  may be wtilized The Firm also considess
collaternl  held and  legally  enforceable master netling
apreemenls thal miligate ils exposure (o éach counterpany

Adjustments for model uncertaimly are tzken for posiions
whose underlying models are rebiant on significant inguls that
are neither directly nor indirectly observable, hence requaring
reliance on estabbshed theoretical concepts in their denvation.
These adjustments are derived by making assessments of the
possible degree of vanability using statistical approaches and
market-based mformation where possible.

The Firm may apply concentration adjustments to certin of
its OTC derivative portfolios to reflect the additional cost of
closing out a particularly larpe nisk exposure. Where possible,
these  adjustments are  based on observable
market miormation, bul m many instances, sigmificant
Judgment iz required to estmate the costs of closing
out concentrated risk exposures due to the lack of lguidity in
the marketplace

The Firm applies an FVA n the fair value measurements of
OTC uncollateralized or partially collateralized dervatives
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and in collmeralized denvatves where the terms of the
sgreement do not permit the reuse of the collateral received
In general, FVA refllects a market funding nsk premium
inherent in the noted denvative mstruments. The methodology
for measuring FVA leverages the Firm's exigting credit-
related  valuation  adjustment  calculateon  methodologies,
which apgply 1o both assets asd linbilities.

See Note 4 for a desenption of valuaton techniques apphed 1o
the major categories of [inanceal instruments measured g fair
value.

Assers and Liahilities Measwred at Fair Valwe on a Nen-
recurring ests

Certain of the Firm’s assets and liabalities are messured at fair
value on a non-recuming basis. The Firm mours losses or
pams for any sdpstments of these assets or habilities o far
value.

For assets and lmbilities messured at fair value on a non-
recurring basis, fair value 15 determined by using varowss
valuation approaches, The same hierarchy for nputs as
deseribed above, which requires that observable inputs be
used when avaalable, 15 used in measunng foir value for these
hems

For further nformation on financial assets and labilnies that
are measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring
basis, see Mote 4

(HTsetting of Derivitive Instruments

In connection with its derivative activities, the Firm generally
enlers Mo master melting  agreements  and  coliateral
agreemenits with its counterparties. These agreements provide
the Firm with the right, in the event of a defaull by the
counterparty, to net a counterparty’s nghts and obligations
under the agreement and o hguidate and set off cash
collateral agamst any nel amount owed by the counterparty
Derivatives with enforceable master netting agrecments are
reported net of ¢ash collateral received and posted.

Hewever, in cemain circumstances, the Firm may not have
such an agreement in place; the relevant msolvency regime
may not support the enforceability of the master metting
agreement of collateral agreement; of the Firm may not have
sought legal advice 1o support the enforceabality of the
agreement. In cases where the Firm has not determined an
agreement o be enforceable, the relsted amounts are mot
offaet (see Mote 6)

The Firm's policy 15 generally 1o recewe cash andior
securities posted as collateral (with nghts of rehypothecation)
in connection with dervative transactions, imespective of the
enforcenbality determination regasding the master netting and
collateral agreemert. In certain cases, the Firm may agree for
such collateral 1o be posted by the counterparty 1 a third-
party custodian under a control agreement that enahles ot to
take control of such collateral in the event of a counterparty
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default. The enforceability of the master netting agrecment is
taken imte account in the Firm's nsk management practices
andd application of counterparty credit lmits.

For information related to offsctting of denvatives, see Note
G

Hedpe Accounting

The Firm applies hedge accounting using varsous derivative
financi] instruments for the following types of hedges:
hedges of changes in the fair value of assets and habilties due
o the nsk being hedged (far value hedges), hedges of
variability in forecasted cash flows from floating-rate assets
due to contractually specified interest rates {cash Aow hedges)
and hedges of net investments in foreign opemtions whose
functional currency 15 differemt from the reporting currency of
the Parent Company {netl investment hedges). These fnancial
instruments are incleded within Trading assets—Derivative
and other contmcts of Trading labilities—Dernivative and
other contracts m the balance sheet, For hedges where hedge
accounting 1= bemg applied, the Firm performs effectiveness
testing and other procedures. The change in the fair value of
the designated portion of the hedging instrument should be
highly correlated, between 80 and 125 percent of the change
in the farr value, cash flows, or camying value (due 1o
translation gains or losses) of the hedged tem atiribwtable o
the risk being hedged. The Firm considers the impact of
valustion adjustments related o counterparty credit spreads
and iis own credit spreads 1o determine whether they woald
cause the hedging retationship to be meffective.

Fair Value Hedges—Interest Rate Risk

The Firm's designated fair value hedges consist of interest
rate swaps designated as hedges of changes m the benchmark
inferest rate of certan fixed rate AFS secunties and senior
borrowings. The Firm also designates interest rale swaps as
fair value hedges of changes m the benchmark interest rate of
certain fixed rate depesits. The Form is permitted 10 hedee the
full, or part of the contractual term of the hedged Instrument.
The Firm uses regression analysis to perform an ongoing
prospestive and retrospective assessment of the effectivensss
of these hedoing relatonships. For qualifying fair value
hedges of benchmark interest rates. the change i the far
value of the derivative, offset by the change in the fasr value
atinbutable 1o the change in the benchmark interest rate risk
of the hedged asset (liability}, is recognized m earnings each
period as a component of Interest income (expense). For AFS
securities, the change in fair value of the hedged 1tem due to
changes other than the risk being hedged will continue to be
reported i OCL When a dervauve 15 de-designated as a
hedge, any basis adjustment remaimng on the hedged asset
(hiabitity) 15 amortized 1o Interest income {expense) over the
remaining life of the asset (liabiliy) using the effective
amterest method
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Net Tvestmeent Hedges

The Firmi uses forward foreign exchangs contmcls to manage
a portion of the cumency exposure relating to its net
investments i foreign operations. To the extent that the
notional amounts of the hedging mstruments equal the poftion
of the mvestments being hedged and the underlyving exchange
rate af the derivative hedging mstrument 15 the same a5 the
exchange rate between the functional curmency of the investee
and the intermediate parent enfity’s fumectional curreney, it is
constdered to be perfectly effective. The gam o loss from
revaluing hedges of net investments m foreign opertions al
the spot rate 1s reported within AQCT The forward points on
the hedging instruments  are  excluded  from  hedge
effectiveness testing and changes in the foir value of this
excluded componem are recorded cwrently o Interest
ncome.

Cash Flow Hedges—Interest Rute Risk

The Firm's desigrated cash [low hedges consist of interest
rate  dervatives desigrated as hedges of varmbaity i
forecasted cash flows from floating-rate assets due to changes
in the contractually specified interest rates The Firm uses
regression analvsis 1o perform an ongoing prospective amd
retrospective assessmient of the effectiveness of these hedging
relationshaps.

The objective of this strategy & to hedge the risk of changes
in the hedged tem’s cash flows attnbutable o changes in the
contractually specified mterest rate. For qualifying cash flow
hedges of contractually specified interest rates, changes in the
fair value of the denvative are recorded in OCT and
subsequently reclassified to enmings n the same periods
when the hedged item affects camings. If cash flow hedee
accounting 15 discontineed, AOCT 15 released into camings
immediately if the cash flow of the hedged item is probable of
net occurming. Otherwise the amount in ACCT is released mio
eammgs as the forecasted transaction affects eamimgs

(rher Hedges

In eddition o hedges that are designated and qualify for hedge
secounting, the Fimm uses denvatives to ecconomecally hedee
credit nsk assocmted with certam held-for-sale and held-for-
investment corporate loans end lending commitments, and the
related gains and losses are reported within Criber revenues in
the income statement.

For further information on dervative instruments and hedging
activities, see Mote 6.

AFS Investment Securities

AFS secunties are reported at fair valoe in the balance sheet.
Interest income, including amoriizafion of premmums and
sccretion of discounts, 15 included in Interest mcome in the
income statement. Unrealized gains are recorded in GO and
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unrealized losses are recorded either tn OCT or m Other
revenues as described below:

AFS secuntes in an unrealized loss position are fimst
evaluated to determine whether there is an intent to sell or it is
mere likely than not the Firm will be required o sell before
recovery of the amortized cost basis I 50, the amortized cost
basis 15 wrtlen down to the fair value of the security such that
the entire unrealized loss 15 recogmzed in Cther revenues, and
any previously established ACL is written off.

For all other AFS secunties in an unrealized loss position, any
portion of unrealized losses representing a credit loss s
recoprized in CHher revenues and as an increase to the ACL
for AFS securities, with the remamnder of unrealized losses
recognized in OCL, A credit loss exssis if the Firm does not
expect W recover the amorized cost basis of the security
When considering whether a credit loss exists, the Firm
considers relevant information, including:

= guarantees (mplicit or explicit) by the V.S, government,

+ the extent to which the fair value has been less than the
amortized cost basis,

+ adverse condiions specifically related to the secunity, s
industny or geographic arca;

= changes n the financial condition of the 1ssuer of the
securtty or, in the case of an asset-backed debt security,
changes i the financial condition of the underlying loan
obligors,

= the pavment structure of the debt secunity and the likelihood
of the isswer being able 1o make pavments that merease in
the future,

+ failure of the issuer of the security to make scheduled
inerest or principal payments,

» the current rating and any changes 1o the rating of the
secunty by a rating agency

1F a credit boss exists, the Firm measires the credit loss as the
difference between the present value of cash flows expected
1o be collected {discounted at the implicit interest rate =l
acquisition of the security or discounted at the effective yield
for securties thal incorporate  changes i prepayment
assumptions) and the amortized cost basis of the security,
Changes in prepavment assumptions alone are nol consadered
to result in & credst loss. When estimating the present value of
expected cash flows, information utilized  inchudes the
remaining payment terms of the security, prepayment speeds,
financeal conditton of the ssuer, expected defaults and the
value of any underlving collateral.

Prasantation of ACL and Provision for Cradit Losses
Prrowison for

ALCL Cradl Losies
Coniem PvasTent secunises  Oiher revanue
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Nonaccrial & ACL Charge-affs an AFS Securities

AFS securities Tollow the same nonaccrual and charge-off
puidance as discussed i “Allowance for Credit Losses™
herem

HTM Securifies

HTM securities are reported at amortized cost net of any
ACL, in the balance sheet Refer to "Allowance for Credit
Losses™ herein for guidance on the ACL determination
Interest meome, mcluding amofuzation of premmms and
aceretion of discounts on HTM secunties, 15 meluded

Interest income m the income statement.
Loans

The Fym accounts for loans based on the following
categorics: |oans held for investment; loans held for sale; and
loans al Bair value,

MNenacornal and ACEL Charge-offs ow Loans

All loan categories deseribed below foliow the same
nonacerual and  charge-off Buid.ahc-: s discussed iIn
“Allowance for Credit Losses™ heremn.

Loans Held for fnvestment

Leans held for investment are reported al amortized cost,
which conseis of the outstanding principle balance adyjusted
for amy charge-offs, the allowance for credit bosses, any
unamotized deferred fees or costs for origimated loans, and
amy unamortized prem ums o discounts for purchased loans,

Interest fncome. Interest income on performing loans held for
investment i accrued and recognized as interest income at the
contractaal rate of nterest. Purchase price discounts or
premiums, a5 well as net deferred loan [ees of costs, ane
amortized 1o nterest meome over the life of the loan 1o
produce a bevel rate of retun.

Lending Commitments, The Firm records the lishility and
related expense  for the credit  exposure related 10
commitments to fund loans, The lability 1= recorded in Other
Liabilities in the balance sheet and the expense 15 recorded in
the Provision for credit losses in the income statement. For
more information  regarding  loan  commitments, standby
Tetters of eredit and financial guaraniees, see Mote 14

For more information regardmg allowance for credn losses,
refer to “Allowance for Credin Losses™ herein.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are measured a1 the lower of amortized
cost or fair value, with valuation changes recorded in Other
reveres. The Firm determines the valuation allowance on an
indavidual lpan basis, except for residential morigage loans
for which the valuation allowance is determined a1 the boan
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product level. Any decreases m far value below the iniial
cumying amount and any recoveries in fair value up o the
indti]l carrying amount are recorded in Other revemues.
Increases m Fair value above imitial camying value are not

recognized

Inrerest Income Imerest income on loans held for sale s
acerued and recogmized based on the comtraciual rate of
nteresl. Loan onpmation fecs or costs and purchase price
diseounts or premiwms are deferred as an adjustment to the
loan’s cost basis until the related loan is sold and, as such, are
ingluded in the periodic determmation of the lower of cost or
fair value adjustments and the gain or loss recognized at the
tume of sale.

Lending Committments. Commiments 1o fund mongage loans
held for sale are derivatives and are reported in Trading assets
or Trading liabilities in the balance sheet and m Trading
revenues in the income stalement,

For commitments o fund non-morgage loans, the Firm
records the hability and related expense for the Ffar value
exposure below cost of such commitments in Other liabalities
and accrued expenses in the balance sheet with an offset to
Cither revenues i the ncome statement.

Because loans and lending commitments held for sale are
recognized at the lower of cost or fair value, the allowance for
credit losses and charge-off policies do not apply to thess
loans,

Loans ot Fair Value

Loans for whech the fair vahese option is ebected are carreed st
farr value and included in Trading assets in the balance sheet,
with changes in fair value recognized in carnings. For further
information on loans carried ai fair value and classified as
Trading assets, see Note 4,

Lendwg Comnritments,  The Fim reconds the hability and
related expense for the far value exposure related to
commitments (o fund loans that will be measured at fair
value. The liability is recorded m Trading lhabilities in the
balunce sheel, and the expense 15 recorded o Trading
revenues in the income statement.

Because such loans and lending commitments are repoted st
fair vale, the allowmnce for credit losses and charge-off
policies do not apply to these loans.

For further information on boans, see Note 9 For more
information regarding loan commiiments, standby letters of
credit and (nmancial puarantees, see Note 14,

Allowance for Credit Losses

The ACL for financial mstruments measured at amortized
cosl and certain off-balance sheet exposures {eg., HFI loans
and lending commitments, HTM securities, customer and
other receivables and certmin guarantees) represenis an
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estimate of expected credit fosses over the entire life of the
financial instrument

Factors corsidered by management when determiming the
ACL include payment status, far value of collateral and
expected payments of principal and interest, as well as
intermal or external information relating to past evenls, current
conditions, and reasormable and supportable forecasis. The
Fim uses three forecasts that include assumptions abowt
certain macroecanomic variables, including, but not limited
to, U5 pgross domestic product ("GINP"), equity market
indices and unemployment rates, as well as commercial real
estate and home price indices. At the conclusion of the Firm's
reasomable and supportable forecast peniod of 13 quarters,
there is a gradual reversion back to hastorical averages.

The ACL 15 measured on a collective basis when similar risk
characteristics exist for multiple mstruments, considering all
available information relevant to assessing the collectabality
of cash flows Generally, the Firm applies a probabaliny of
defaultloss given default model for instruments that are
collectively assessed, under which the ACL is caleulated as
the product of probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default These parameters are forecast for each
collective group of assels using @ scenano-based statistical
model

If the instrument does not share similar nsk characteristics
with other instruments, including when it is probable that the
Firm will be umable to collect the Tull paveent of primcipal
and interest on the instrument when due, the ACL 15 measured
on an individual basis The Fim generally applies &
discounted cash flow method for instruments that are
indhvidually assessed.

The Firm may also elect to use an approach that considers the
fair value of the collnteral when measuning the ACL il the
loan is collateral dependent (e, repaviment of the loan is
expected 10 be provided substantmlly by the male or opemtion
of the underlving collateral and the bomower is experiencing
financial diffsculny).

Addenally, the Fim can clect o0 use an approach 1o
measure the ACL that consders the fair value of collateral
where the borrower i3 required 10, and reasonably expected to,
contimanlly adpest and replenish the amount of collateral
securing the mstrument (o reflect changes in the fuir value of
such collateral. The Firm has elected 1o wse this approach for
cortain  securities-based loans, margin  loans, securities
purchased under agreements 1o resell and secuninies bomowed

Credit quality indicators considered in developing the ACL
include:

« Corporate loans, secured lending focilities, cammercinl real
estate loans and securities, and other loans: Internal nsk
ratings developed by the CRM that are refréshed sl least
annually, and more frequently as necessary, These ratings
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generally correspond to external ratings published by S&F.
The Firm also conssders ransaction struciure, including
tpe of collateral, collateral terms and posiion of the
obligation within the capital structure. In addition, for
commercial real estate, the Firm congiders properiy type
and location, net operating income and LTV matios, among
other factors, ax well as commercinl real cstate price and
credit spread indices and capatalimtion rates.

+ Residential real estate loans: Loan origination Fair Isaac
Corporation (“FICO7) eredit scores as determined by
independent credit agencies i the ULS. and LTV mtics

= Emplovee loans: Emplovment status, which includes those
currertly empleved by the Form and for which the Firm can
deduct any unpaid amownts dee to it through certain
compensation arangements; and these no longer employed
by the Firm where swch arrangements are no longer
applicable.

OQualitative and environmental factors such as eoonomic amd
busingss conditions, the nature and volume of the portioho,
and lending terms and the volume and severity of past due
loans are also constdered i the ACL calculations.

Prasantation of ACL and Provision for Crodit Losses

Prosvision for
MR Creck Lospiy
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Hald Yo Imvesrme lnnding Qiher babikikes and  Prowision foor credin

EONTRTHTE BOORUGE AREENSAS B Sk

O o halarcs shaat moyumeens  Onher Babiltee and

8,5, DRI GUAMAreG) Boorund aapenang U SIpAnses

Neracerieal

The Firm places financial instruments on nonacerual status if
principal o interest is not expected when contracteally due or
is past due for a period of 90 days or more unless the
ohligation 18 well-secured and is in the process of collection.

For any instrument placed on nonaccrual status, the Firm
reverses any unpnd merest accrued with an olfsetling
reduction 1o Interest meome. Principal and interest payments
received on nemacenul instruments are applied to principal if
there 15 doubl regarding the wiimate collectability of
principal. IT collection of the principal w not in doubt, interest
income is realized on a cash basis. 1f the instrument is brought
current and neither principal nor mterest collectson is in
doubl, instruments can generally retum to accrual status, and
interest income can be recognized.

ACL Charge-offs

The principal balance of a financial mstrument is charged ofl
i the penod it 15 deemed uncollectible, resulting 1 a
reduction in the ACL and in the balance of the financial
instrument in the balance sheet Accrued interest receivable

Decemnber 2023 Foom 10-K
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balances that are separmtely recorded from the related
financial instruments are charged off against Interest income
when the rebated financial instrument s placed on nonaccrual
status. Accordingly, the Firm elected not 1o measure an ACL
for acerued mterest receivables.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of NMnancial assets are accounted for as sales when
the Firm has relinquished control over the transferred assets.
Any related gain of loss om sale is recorded in Met revenues,
Transfers that are not accounted for as =ales are reated as
collateralized financings. Secunities bormowed or purchased
under agreements 1o resell and secunties loaned or sold under
agrecments to repurchiase are treated as  collmeralized
lmnncings (see Note £),

Securities purchased under agreements to resell Creverse
reprchase  agreements™)  and  Securities  sold  under
agrecients W repurchase  (“repurchase agreements’),
inchading repasrchase and reverse repurchase agreements-to-
mahurity, are carmed in the balance sheet at the amount of
cash paid or received plus accrued interest except for certain
reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements for which the
Fumn has elected the far value option (see Note 5). Where
appropriate, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase
agrecments with the same counterparty are reported on a net
basis. Securities borrowed and secunties loaned are recorded
il the gmaunt of cash collateral advanced or received

In imstances where the Firm 15 the kender m securmies-for-
securities transactions and 15 permitted 1o s¢ll or repledge
these securitzes, the fair valwe of the collateral received is
reported in Trading assets, and the related obligation 1o retum
the collateral = reported in Trachng hiabalities in the balance
sheet. Securities-for-securibies tramsactions where the Firm is
the borrower are not included in the balance sheet

In order to manage credit exposure ansing from  these
transachions, in appropriate circumstances, the Fum enters
intoy master netting agreements and collateral sgreements with
its counterpariies. These agreements provide the Firm with
the right, in the event of a default by the counterparty, o net &
counterparty s rights and obligations under the agreement and
to liguidate and sct off collateral held by the Form against the
et amount cwed by the counterparty,

The Firm's policy 15 penerally 1o take possessson of securihies
purchased or borrowed In connection with reverse repurchase
agreements and securities borrowed transactions, respectively,
and 1 receive cash andior securities delivered wnder
repurchase agreements of securibies koaned transctions (with
rights of rehvpothesation)

For information related to offsetting of cenain collateralized
transactions, see Note 8

Dicember 2023 Form 10-K
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Premises, Equipment and Capitalized Software Costs

Premises, equipment and capitahzed software costs consist of
bulldings, leaschold improvements, (umibure, fxtures,
computer and communications equipment, power generation
assets and capitalized software (extermally purchased and
developed for mternal use)  Premises, equmpmient and
capitalized software costs are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amoruzation and are mcluded i Other assets
in the balance sheet Depreciation and amortization are
provided by the strasght-lme method over the estimated useful
life of the asset

Estimated Usalul Life of Assats

_inguan Esnmiad Usefil Lifs
Bulkdirgs 0
Lmassiala improwenmnin—Buddng s of beass 1o 26
Lmgmadodn nprorss e me—-Cr e e o beasa 10 15
FLimiLrg & Taisas T
Comp and come =1 EREL ]
Powear gareryion asasis 15 1020
Capdiakend sofiware cosls 26 10

Premeses, equipment and capitalized softwane costs are Lested
for mpairment whenever events or changes n clrcumsiances
suggest that an asset’s camying vabee may mot be fully
recoverable.

Gondwill and Intangible Assets

The Firm tests goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
for impatment on an annual basis and on an intenim basis
when cerlain evenis of circumstances exist. The Fim tests
goodwill for impaimient =1 the reperting unit level, which is
generally at the level of or one level below the assel’s business
segment. The Firm tests indefinite-lived intangible assets for
impawment al the aggregate level of management contracts,
For both the annual and mterm tests, the Firm has the option
1o either (1) perform a quantiative impairment test or () first
perform a gualtative assessment to determme whethser it 1=
mcre likely than not that the far valiee i3 less than its earrying
amount, in which s, the quaniitative test would be
performed.

When performing a quantitative impairment 1est, the Firm
com pases the fair value with the camying amount. [T the fair
value is less than the carrying amoun, the impairment boss is
equal to the excess of the carmying value over the fair value,
limited to the carrying amount.

The estimated fair vahees are derived based on valwtion
technigues the Firm beheves market participants would use
The estimated far values are generally determined by
utiimng a discounted cash  flow  methodology  or
methodologies that incorporate price-to-book and price-to-
camings multiples of certmn comparable companies for
goodwill impairment testing.
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Intangibde asscts with a finite life are amortized over their
estimated useful life and are reviewed for impairment on an
interim - basis when mpaimment  mdicators  are  present
Impairment losses are recorded within Other expenses in the
income statement.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic EFS i3 computed by dividing earnmngs available to
Morgan Stanley common shareholders by the weighted
average number of commaon shares cutstanding for the period.
Earmings availsble to Morgan Stanley common shareholders
represents net neome apphcable to Mosgan Stanley reduced
by preferred stock dividends. Common shares outstanding
include commoen stock and vested R3Us where recipients
have satisfeed the relevan vesting terms. Diluied EPS reflecis
the assumed comversion of all dilutive secunties.

Share-based awards that pay dividersd equivalents subject 1o
vesting are included in diluted shares autstanding (if dilutive)
unader the treasury stock method

The Firm has granted P51Us that vest and conven 1o shares of
comman siock only if predetermined perflormance and market
goals are sabshed, Since the isamnce of the shares 15
contingent upon the satsfction of centan conditions, the
P5Us are included in diluted EFS based on the number of
shares {if any) that would be issuable if the reporting date was
the end of the performance period

For further miormatton on diluted earnmngs (loss) per
common share, see Note 17 to the financial statements.

Deferred Com pensation
Stock-Hased Compensation

The Firm measures compensation expense for stock-based
awards at fair vabe, The Firm determanes the far value of
RSUs (including PSUs with non-marker performance
conditions} based on the prant-date far value of s common
stock, measured as the volume-weighted aversge price on the
date of grant VAP The foir value of ESUs not entitled
1o dividends until conversion 15 mensured ot VIWAP reduced
by the present value of dividends expected to be pad on the
underlving shares prior to scheduled conversion date. FSUs
that contain market-based conditions are valued using a
Monge Carlo valuation model

Compensation expense is recopnized over the vesting period
relevant to each separately vesting portion of the award
Compensation  expense  for  awards with  performance
conditions 15 recognized based on the probable cutcome of the
performance condition at each reporting date. Compensation
expense for awards with market-hased conditions iz
recograzed irmespective of the probability of the market
condition bemg achieved and is nol reversed 1 the markel
condition 15 not met. The Firm ascounts for forfetures as they
cocur,
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Stock-based awards generally comtain  clawback and
cancellation provisions. Certain awards provide the Firm
chiseretion 10 claw back or cancel all or a portion of the award
under specified circumstances, Where award terms are
considered to be subjective, o grant date cannot be established
and the awards are subject 1o vanable accountimg which
requires that compensition expense for those awards is
adjusted for changes i the fair value of the Fim’'s common
stock or the relevant model valuation, == appropriate, until
CONYETSION, excreise or expiration. Following amendments to
clirily specific subjective award temms i the second guarter
of 2023, a grant date for the swards was established such that
compensaticon expense for those awards s no longer adjusted
for changes in the fair value of the Firm s commeon stock. The
Firm elso operates an Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(“ESPF”) which allows eligible emplovees of the Firm 1o
purchase shares of Morgan Stanley ata discount.

Emplayee Stock Trusts

In connection wih certam stock-based compensation plans,
the Firm has established employee stock trusts to provide, at
its discretion, common stock voting rights to certam RSU
holders. Following the grant of an RSU award, when a stock
trust 15 wiilized, the Firm contributes shares (o be held in the
stock trust until the RSUs conver to common shares, The
assets of the employee stock trusts are consolidated with those
of the Fim and are generally accounted for in a manner
signilar to treasury stock, where the shares of commen stock
outstanding reported 1 Common stock 1ssued o emploves
stock trusts are offset by an equal amoun! reporied in
Emplovee stock trusts in the balance sheet

The Fum uses the grant-date far value of stock-based
compensation a5 the basis for recording the movement of the
assels o or from the employee stock trusts. Changes in the
fair vahee are mot recognized as the Firm's stock-based
com pensation must be settled by delivery of a fixed number
of shares of the Firm's comman stock.

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation

Compensation expense for DOF awards is caleulated based on
the nottonal value of the award granted, adjusted for changes
1n the fair value of the referenced imvestments that employees
select. Compensation expense 15 recogmaed over the vesting
period relevant to each separately vesting portion of deferred
awards

The Fum inwvests directly, as a prncipal, in financial
instinments and other investments 1o economically hedge
certann of s obligations under fs DOCP. Changes in the value
of such investments are recorded m Tradmg revenues and
Investments revenues. Alihough changes in compensabion
expense resulting from changes n the fair value of the
referenced investments will generally be offset by changes in
the farr value of investments made by the Firm, there is
typically a tming difference between the  immediate
recopnition of gains and losses on the Firm™s investments and
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the deferred recogmition of the related compensation expense
over the vesting period

Retiremien t=-Fligible Employee Compensation

For vear-erd stock-based awards and DCF awards anticipated
e be granted 1o retirement-eligible emplovees under award
terms that do nod comtain & Tuture service requirement, the
Frrm accrues the estimated cost of the awards over the course
of the calendar year preceding the grant date, which reflects
the peniod over which the compensation i camed

Carried Interest Compensation

The Firm generally recognizes compensation expense for any
portion of camied interest (both realized and unrealized) that
is allocated to employees, For information on performance-
based fees 1n the form of camied imterest, whach are directly
related to camied interest compensation, see “Hevenue
Recogniteon—Carmied Interest” herein.

Incume Tuxes

Dieferred tax assets and labahities are recorded based upon the
temporary differences between the fnancial statement and
income X bases of assets and lnbilites using curmently
emacted tax rates in effect for the vear in which the differences
are expected to reverse. The effiect of a change in tax rates on
deferred tax assets and labilities is recognized in income tax
expense (benelit) in the pertod that includes the enactment
date. Such effects are recorded m Provision for income laxes
regardless of where deferred taxes were orgimally reconded.

The Fumy recognizes net deferred 1ax assets to the extent that
it believes these nssets are more likely than not 1o be realized.
In making such a determination, the Fum considers all
aviilzble positive and negative evidence, mcluding future
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, progected
future taxable income, Wk planning srategies and resuls of
recent operations. When performng the assessment, the Firm
constders all tvpes of deferred tax assets in combination with
each other, regardless of the origin of the underlving
temporary difference. IF a deferred tax asset is determined 1o
be unreahzable, a valuation allowance s established. If the
Firm subsequently determines that it would be able to realize
deterred tax assets in excess of their net recorded amount, it
would make an adjustment to the defermed tax asset valumion
allowance, which would reduce the provision for income
taxes.

The Firm recognizes lax cxpense asscctated with Global
Intangible Low-Taxed Income as it s incurred as pact of the
current income takes 1o be paid or relunded for the cument
perod

Uncertain tax positions are recorded on the bases of 8 two-step
process, whereby (i) the Firm Jdétermines whether it is mose
Iikely than not that the tax positions will be sustained oni the
basiz of the technical merits of the position and (1) for those
tax positions that meet this threshold, the Firm recogmazes the
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larpest amount of tax benefit that iz more likely than not to be
realized wpon ulimate setlement with the related tax
authorty, Interest and penalties related 10 unrecopnized tax
benefits are recognized as & component of the provision for
ncome txes

Foreign Currencies

Assets and Labihities of operations with non-U.S, dollar
functional currencies are ranslated at vear-end rates of
exchange, Gaing or losses resulting from translating foreign
currency linancal Aatements, net of hedie gains or losses and
related tax effects, are refllected in ACCT in the balance sheet.
Gamns or losses resultng from remessurement of foreign
currency tmnsactions are included in net income, and amounts
recognized in the income stalement are translated at the mle
of exchange on the respective date of recogmtton for each
amount

Accounting Updates Adopted in 2023

Fair Volne Measurement = Egmity Securities Subject to
Coyriractual Sale Restrictions

The Firm early adepied the Fair Palwe Measwrement of
Eguity Securities Subyect fo Contractual Sale Restrictions
accounting update on July 1. 2023, with no matenal impact
on the Firm s financial condition or results of operations upon
adoption. The wpdate clarifies that a contractual sale
restriction 1s not considered part of the unn of account of an
equily security and, therefare, is not considered n measuring
fair value.

Financial Instruments - Credit Losses

The Firm adopted the Financial Instnments-Credit Losses
aceounting update on January 1, 2023, with no impact on the
Firm's [mancial condition or resublls of operations upen
adoption,

This accounting update elmimates the accounting puidance
for troubled debt restructunings (“TDRs™} and requires new
discloseres regarding certaan  modifications  af financing
recevables  (ie, prncpal  forgiveness,  nleresl  rale
rechections, other-than-nsigraficant payment delays and term
extensions) to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty,
The update also requires disclosure of current pericd pross
charge-offs by year of ongination for Ninancing receivables
measured at amortized cost. Refler to Note 9, Loans, Lending
Commitments and Related Allowance for Credit Losses, for

the new disclosures.
Accounting Update Adopted in 2022
Ieference Kate Reforn

The Firmn has adopted the Reference Rate Reform accounting
update, which extends the period of tme entities can utilize
the reference rate reform relief puidance from December 31,
2022 to December 31, 2024, The relief provides optional
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Vialuation Technigues for Assets and Liabilities Measured
at Falr Value on a Recurring Basis

105, Treasury and Agency Securilies
LS Treasury Securities

Waluation Technique:

= Far valee 15 determined wing quoted market prices.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level |—as nputs are observable and in an active market
L8, Agemey Secuvities

Waluation Techniques:

« Won-callable agency-issued debt securities are generally
valued using quoted market prices, and callable apency-
issued debt secunties are valued by henchmarking model-
derived prices 1o quoted market prices and trede data for
compmrable instruments.

The fair value of agency morigage pass-through pool

secunties 15 model-dnven based on spreads of comparable

to-he-announced securities,

= CMOs are generally valued using quoted markel prices
and trade data adjusted by subsequent changes i related
indices for comparable mstruments.

Valuation Heerarchy Classification:

* Level 1—on-the-run agency Bswed debt securites if
setively traded and inputs are observable

* Level 2—all other agency 1ssued debl securities, agency
morgage pass-through pool secunties and Ch0s af
actively traded and inputs ane observable

« Level 3—in instances where the trading activity is limited
of inputs are unobservable

Orther Sovereign Government (bligations

Valuation Techniques:

* Fur value 15 determmned usmg quoted prices in active
markets when available When not available, quoted prices
in less active markets are used. In the absence of position-
specific quoted prices, fair value may be determined
through benchmarking from comparable instruments.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level I—if actively traded and inputs are observable

* Level 2—if the market i less active or prices are
dispersed

* Level 3—in instances where the prnices are unobservable

Htate and Municipal Securities

Valuation Techniques:

« Fair walue 15 dJetermined using recently executed
transactions, markel price quotilions or prcing modals
that factor in, where applicable, interest rates, bond or
CD3 spreads, adpmted for any basie difference between
cash and derivative instruments

Valuation Heerarchy Classification:

» Level 2—if value based on observable markel data
supported by market liquidity for comparable instruments

« Level 3—in instances where markel dma are ot
observable or supported by market Liguidity
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Mortgage- and Asset- Backed Securities
Valuation Techniques:

Mongage- and asset-backed secunties may be valued
based on price or spread data obtained from observed
transactions of independent extermal parties such as
vendors or brokers

When posmtion-specific external price dota are not
observable, the fair value determmation may reguire
benchmarking to  comparghle mstruments, and'or
analyzing expected credit losses, default and recovery
rates, andior applving discounted cash flow techniques
When evaluating the comparable instrumems for use i the
vahmton of each secunty, sécunty collateral-specific
attributes, including pavenent priority, credit enhancement
levels, type of collateral, delinguency rales and loss
severity, are conssdered. [n addition, for RMBS borrowers,
FICO scores and the level of documentation for the loan
are considered.

harket standard cash fow models may be wilized 1o
moddel the specific collateral composition and cash flow
structure of each transaction. Key mputs to these models
are markel spreads, forecasted credit losses, and defult
and prepayment rates for each msset category

Valution levels of RMBS and CMBS indices are used az
an additional dite point for benchmarking purposes or 1o
price outright index positions.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification;

Level 2—if wvalue based on observable market data
supposted by market hquedity for comparable instruments
Level 3—if external prices or signaficant spread inputs are
uncbservable or not supported by market hauidity or i the
comparabality assessment involves significant subjectivity
related to property  type  differences, cash  flows,
performance or other inputs

Loans and Lending Commitments
Vahation Technigues,

Faar value of corporate loans 13 determined wsing recently
execuled ransaclions, market pnce quedations (where
observable), implied yields from comparable debt, market
observable CDS spread levels obtained from independent
external parties adjusted for any basis difference between
cash and derwative nstruments, along with proprictary
valuation models and default recovery analysis where such
transactions and guotations are unchservable.

Far value of contingent corporate lending commitments is
determined by using executed transactions on comparable
loans and the anticipsted market price based on pricing
indscations  from syndicate banks and customers, The
valuation of loans and lending commitments also takes
into account fee income that is considered an attnibute of
the contract.

Farr value of morgage loans 15 determined using
observable prices based on transactional data or therd-party
priceg for comparable mestrum ents, when avalable

Where position-specific external prices are not observahble,
farr value s estimated based on benchmarking 1o prices
and rates observed in the primary market for similar loan
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or bomower types of based on the present value of
expected future cash Mows using the Firm's best available
estimates of the key assumptions, meluding forecasted
credit losses, prepayment mates, forward yiebd curves and
digcount rates commensurate with the nsks involved or a
methodobopy that utilizes the capital structure and credi
speends of recent compartble securitiztion transctions
Fair value of equity margin loans 15 determined by
discounting future imterest cash flows, net of potential
lnsses resulting from large downward price movements of
the underlving marngin lean collateral. The potential losses
are modeled wsing the margin loan rate, which 15
cilibraled from markel observable CDS spreads, imiphed
debt yields or volatility metrics of the loan collateral,

Waluation Hierarchy Classifecation:

Level 2-—if value based on observable market duga
supported by market liquidity for comparable mstruments.
Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread
inputs are uncbservable or net supported by market
liquedity or af the comparabality assessment mvolves
significant subjectivity

Corporaie amd Oiher Debit

Corparate Bonds
Valuation Techniques:

Farr value 15 determimed using recently  executesd
transactions, market price quotalions, bond spreads and
CS =preads obfaimed from independent exterrml parties,
such as vendors and brokers, adjusted for any basis
dif ference between cash and derivative instruments,

The spread data used are for the same mawmty as the
bond. If the spread data do not reference the issuer, then
data that reference comparable ssuers are used. When
position-specific external price data are not observable,
fair value 15 determined based on ether benchmarking 1o
comparable nstruments or cash flow models with vield
curves, bond or single-name CDS spreads and recovery
rates of boss given defaull as sigrificant inputs

Valuataon Heerarchy Classification:

Level 2—if value based on observable market data for
comparable instruments

Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread
inputs are unobservable or if the comparabality assessment
mvolves significant subjectivity

[
Valuation Techniques:

The Firm holds cash CDOs that tvpacally reference a
tranche of an underlying synthetic portfolio of single-name
CDS spreads collateralized by corporate bonds (“CLM) or
cash portfolio of ABS/eans (“asset-hacked CDOs™)
Credit comelation, a primary inpat wsed to determine the
fair value of CLNs, 15 usually unobservable and denved
using a benchmarking technique. Other mode] inputs, such
as credit spreads, ncluding collateral spreads and interest
rates, are wpicnlly observable

Asset-backed CD0s are valued based on an evaluation of
the market and model nput paramelers sourced from
comparable instruments as indicated by market activity.

December 2023 Farm 10-K
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Each asset-backed CDO postion 15 evahmbed
independently taking into  consideration  available
comparable  market  levels,  umderlving collateral
performance and pricing, deal structures and liquidity.

Vahmtion Hierarchy Classification

= Level Z—when either comparable markel transactions mre
observable or credit correlation wput i3 insignificant

* Level 3—when either comparable market transactions are
unichaervable or the credit comelation input 15 s fican

Equity Comtracts with Financing Features

Valustion Technigues:

= Fair value of cetain equity comtracls, whech are not
classified as OTC denvatives because they do nod meet the
net inwvestment criteria, i3 determined by discounting
future interest cash flows, inclusive of the estimated value
of the embedded optionality, The valuation uses the same
denvative pocing models and valuation techniques as
described under “OTC Denvative Contracts™ herein,

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification:

= Level 2—when the contract is valued using observable
inputs or where the unobservable input is not deemed
sigrificant

* Level 3—when the contract 1 valuwed using an
unebzervable input that s deemed significant

Corporate Equitics

Vahuaton Technigues:

+ Exchange-traded equity securities are generally valued
based on quoted prices from the exchange.

= Unlisted equity securities are generally valued based onan
assessment of each security, considering rounds of
financing and third-party transactions, discounted cash
flow anmalvses and market-based information, meluding
comparable transactions, trading multiples and changes in
market outlook, among other factors.

» Listed fund umits are generally marked to the exchange-
tradedd price if actively wraded, or o NAV il pet Unlisted
firnd units are generally marked to NAV

Vahaton Hierarchy Classification:

* Level 1—actively traded exchange-traded securities and
fumd umits

+ Level 2—if not actively traded, inputs are observable or if
undergeing a recent MEA event or corporate action

= Level 3—if not actively traded, mputs are unchservable or
if underpoing an aged M&EA event or corporate action

Derivative and Oiher Contracts
Exchange-Traded Derivalive Contracts
Vahation Techniques:
» Exchange-iraded denvatives that are actively traded are
varlwed based on queted prices from the exchange.
= Exchange-traded denvatives that are mol sctively traded
are valued using the same techniques as those applied 1o
OTC denivatives as noted below,
Valuation Hierarchy Classification:
= Level l—when actively traded
* Level 2—when not sctively traded
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QT Denivative Comracts

Valuarion Techniques:

» OTC dervative contracts inclede forward, swap and
option contracts  related to  nterest mates, foreign
currencies, credit standing of reference entities, equsty
prices of commadity prices

* Depending on the product and the terms of the transaction,

the fair valwe of OTC derivative products can be modeled
using & serics of techmiques, including closed-form
analytic formulas, such as the Black-Scholes option-
pricimg  model, simulation models of a combination
thereof. Many pricmg models do not entall matenal
subjectivily as the methodolomes emploved do not
necessitate significant judgment since model inputs may
be observed from actively quoted markets, as is the case
for genenc interest rale SWAps, many equity, commodiy
and foreign currency option contracts, and certain O, In
the case of more established dervabive products, the
pricing models used by the Firm are widely accepted by
the financial services induwstry.

More complex OTC derivauve products are typcally less

liqued and require more judgment n the implementation of

the valuation technique since direct trading activity of
quotes are unobservable, This includes certain types of
interest rate denvatives with both volatility and comelation
exposure, equity, commodity or foreign  curmency
denvatives that are cither longer-dated or include exposure
to multiple underlvings, and credit derivatives, ancluding

CDS on cenain mortgage- or assel-backed secunties and

basket CDS. Where required mpats are uncbservable,

relationships to observable dsta points, based on historcal

andlor amplied cbservations, may be employed as a

technigque 1o esumate the model pat values, For further

information on  the valuation techniques for OTC

denvative products, see Note 2

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification:

# Level 2—when valued using observable inputs aupported
by market liquidity or where the unobservable input 5 not
deemed sipnificant

+ Level 3—when valued using observable inpuis wih
limited market liquidity or if an uncbservable input is
deemed sigraficant

Invesiments

Valuation Techniques:

« Investments include direct invesiments in equily securities,
ms well s various investment mamgement funds, which
inehde DEP nyvestments

+ Exchange-traded direct equity invesiments are generally

valued based on queted prices from the exchange.

For direct mnvestments, initially, the transaction price is
generally considered by the Firm as the exit price and is nis
best estimate of far value.

After initial recognition, in determining the far value of
non-exchange-traded intemally and extermlly managed
funds, the Firm generally considers the NAV of the fund
provided by the fund manager 1o be the best estimate of
fair value. These investments are included in the Fund

100
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Interests table i the “Net Asset Value Measurements”

section hergin,

For non-exchange-traded investments either held directly

or held within intemally managed funds, fwr value after

initial recognition iz based on an assessmemt of each

underlying nvestment, considering rounds of financing

and thard-party transactions, discounted cash flow anslyvses

and market-based information, including comparable Firm

transactions, trading multiples and changes n market

outlook, among other factors.

Vahation Hierarchy Classification:

= Level I—if actvely traced

= Level 2—when not sctively traded and valued based on
rounds of fimncing or third-party transaclions

+ Level 3—when not actively traded and rounds of
financing or third-pary transactions are not avalable

Physical Commuoditics
Valuation Techmiques;,
= Farr wvaluwe is determined using observable mputs,
ineluding broker quotations and published indices
Valumtion Hierarchy Classification:
+ Level 2—valued using observable inputs

Investment Securities—AFS Securities

Valuation Techrigues:

+ AFS securities are composed of U5 government and
agency securities {eg., U5 Treasury sccurities, agency-
ssued debt, agency mortgage pass-through securities and
CMOs), CMBS, ABS, state and municipal secunties. For
further information on the determination of far valee,
refer to the comesponding  assetlabaliy  Valustion
Technigue described herein for the same insiruments

Vahation Hierarchy Classification;

+ For funher information on the determination of valustion
hicranchy classification, see the corresponding Valuation
Higrarchy Classification deseribed herein

Depaosils

Valuation Techmgues:

* The Firm issues FDIC-insured certificates of deposit that
pay either fixed coupons or that have repayment terms
linked 1o the performance of debt or equily secumities,
indices or currencies. The fwr value of these cerificates of
deposit 15 determined uwsing  valuation models  that
incorporate  observable inputs  referemcing  identical or
comparable securities, including prices to which the
deposits are linked, imerest mate wield curves, oplion
volatility and currency rates, equity prices, and the impact
of the Firm's own credit spreads, adjusted for the impact of
the FDIC insurance, which s based on vanilla deposit
ISSUANCE rales.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

v Level 2—when valustion inputs are observable

* Level 3—in instances where an unobservable npul 15
deemed significant
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Securities Purchased under Agreements to Hesell and
Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase
Valumtion Technigues:

+ Fair value 15 computed using a standard cash flow
discountimg methodobogy.

* The inputs 1o the valuation include contractual cash flows
and collmeral funding spreads, which are the incrementsl
spread over the OIS rate for a specific collateral mte (which
refers to the mte applicable to a specific type of security
pledged as collateral)

Valustion Hiersrchy Classification:

= Level 2—when the valuation inputs are observable and
supported by market Liquadity

* Level 3—in instances where the valuabion input is
observable bul not supporied by market liquidsty or if an
unobservable input i deemed sigmiicant

Other Secured Financings

Valuation Technigues

= Other secured Nnancings are composed of short-dated notes
secured by Corporate equitics, spreements to repurchase
Physical commodities, the liabilities related to sabes of
Loans and lending commiments asccounted for @
fimancings, and secured contracts that are not classified as
OTC derivatives because they fail net investment criteria
For further information on the determination of far value,
refer to the Valuation Techniques described herein for the
corresponding  instruments, which are  the collateral
referenced by the other secured financing liability.

Valustion Hierarchy Classification:

+ For further information on the determination of valuabion
hicrarchy classification, see the Vablwmtion Hierarchy
Clnssification  described herein for the comesponding
instruments, which are the collateral referenced by the other
secured financing labality.

Borrowings

Valumion Technigues

= The Firm carmes certain borrowings a1 far value that are
primarily compesed of insiruments whose payments and
redemption valees are linked to the performance of a
specific mdex. o basket of stocks, a specific equity security,
a commodity, a credit exposure or basket of credn
exposures; and mstruments with various mterest rate-related
featurez, including step-ups, step-downs and zero coupons.
Also incleded are unsecured contracts that are not classified
as OTC denvatives because they Tl mitial nel investment
criteria

» Fair value 15 determined using valuation models for the
denvative and debt postions of the instruments, These
models incorporate observable inputs referencing identecal
or compareble secunties, including prices to which the
instruments are hinked, interest rate vield curves, opbon
volatility and currency rates, and commodity or equity
prices,

= Independent, extemal and wraded prices are considersd, as
well as the impact of the Firm's own credit spreads, which
are based on observed secondary bond market spreads
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The previous table provides nformation on the valstion
technigques, siprficant inobservable inpats, and the ranges
and averages for each major category of assets and liabilities
measured ai fair value on a recwrming and noarecurring basis
with a significant Level 3 balance. The level of aggregation
and breadth of products cause the range of inpats 1o be wide
and not evenly distributed across the imventory of financial
wnstruments, Further, the range of unobservable inpuls may
differ across firms in the fnancial services industry bocause
of diversity in the types of products included in each firm’s
inventory. Generally, there are no predictable relationships
between multiple significant uncbservable inputs atiributable
o & gaven valuation technigue,
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During 2023, there were no sipnificant revisions made to the
descriptions of the Firm'"s significant uncbservable inputs

An  increase (decrease} to the following  sipnificant
unohservable inputs would generally result in a higher (tower)
fair value.

v Comparable Bond or Loan Price. A pricing input used
when prices for the identical nstrument are not availzble.
Significant subjectivity may be involved when fair value is
determined wsing pricing data available for comparable
matruments. Valimbion usmg comparable instruments can
be done by caleulating an implied yield {or spread over o
liquid benchmark) from the price of a comparable bond or
loan, then adjustmg that vield (or spread) to denive a value
for the bond or loan. The adpsiment to yield {or spread)
should sccount for relevant differences in the bonds or
loans, such as mawnly or credit quality. Aliermatively, a
price-to-prece  basis can be assumed between the
comparable instrument and the bond or lean being valued in
order 10 establish the value of the band or loan.

+ Comparable Equity Price: A prnice derived from equity
raiscs, share buvbacks and external bid levels, ete. A
discount or premum may be included 1 the far value
estimate

Contingency Probabilie. Probability associated with the
realization of an wderlying event upon which the value of
A assél ks contingent.

EBITDA Multiple/®xit Multiple. The ratio of enterpnse
value (o EBITDA, where :n‘h;rprls: valug 13 the aggregate
value of equity and debt minus cash and cash equavalents.
The EBITDA muluple reflects the value of & company i
terms of its full-vear EBITDA, whereas the exit multiple
reflects the value of a company in terms of its full-year
expected EBITDA st exit  Either multiple allows
companison  between companies from  an operational
perspective as the effect of capatal structure, taxation and
depreciationamortizatson is excluded

Annerense  (decremse) to the  following  significent
unohservable inputs would generally result in s lower (hagher)
fair vahe.

« Cash-Syheric Basis. The measure of the price differential
between cash [inancinl instrumems and ther synthetic
dervative-based equivalents. The mnge disclosed in the
previcus table sipnifies the number of points by which the
synthetie bond equivalent price 1z higher than the quoted
price of the underlving cach bonds,

+ Funding Spread The cost of bomowing defined as the
incremental  spread over the OIS rate for a speaific
collateral rate (which refers 1o the rae applicable to a
specific type of security pledged as collateral)

Loxs Giver Digfanlt,. Amount expressed as a percentage of
pear that is the expected loss when a credit event ocours,

105

+ Margin Loon Rate. The annualized rate that reflects the
possibility of bosses as a result of movemenis in the price of
the underlying margin boan collateral. The rate is calibrated
from the discount rate, credit spreads andior volauliy
Mmeasunes

WACT, WACC represents the theoretical rate of return
reguired to debt and equity investors. The WACC 15 used in
a discounted cash flow model that calculates the value of
the equity. The model assumes that the cash flow
assumplions, nchuding projections. are fully reflected in the
current equity value, while the debt 1o equiy ratio 15 held
constant.

An oncrease  (decrease) to the  following  sigmificant
unobservable inputs would generally result in an impact io the
fair value, but the magnitude and direction of the mpact
would depend on whether the Firm 15 long or short the
ENPOSUNE,

= Carrelamon, A pricing input where the payvoell is dnven by
mare than cne undertving nsk. Comelation ks 8 measure of
the relationship between the movement of two varnables
{i.e., how the change in cne variable influsnces a change in
the other vanable).

* Credit Spread The credit spread reflects the additional net
wield am investor can eam from a security with more credit
risk relative 1o one with less credit risk, The credit spread of
a particular secunty 1s often quoded i relation to the vield
on a credit risk-free benchmark secunty or reference rate.

« atevest Rate Cuwve. The term strocture of interest mates
(retatsonship  between  interest rales and the ume o
maturity’} and a market's measure of fulure interest rales at
the time of observation. An interest rate curve is used 1o sel
interest rate and foreign exchange denvative cash flows and
1% & pricing inpul wsed inothe discounting of any OTC
derivative cash Mow,

Volatility. The measure of variability in possible returms for
an mstrustent given how much that irnstrument changes in
value over time. Volanhty =5 8 pricing inpat for opdions,
ardl, penerally, the lower the volstility, the less nisky the
option. The level of volatility used in the valuation of a
particular option depends on a number of factors, including
the mature of the risk underlying that aption, the tenor and
the strike price of the eption.

* Volatility Skew. The measure of the difference in implied
volatility for options with identical underhiers and expiry
dates but with different sirikes
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Fund Intarasts
AL December 31, 2023 Al Decmmber 31, 2002
Camying Caming
Fammcn  Vale __Commiment  vahe  Commimer:
Priwate aguly k] BEES I 5 26X % B30
Ranl eslale 2. T68 Hn &R e
Hadgs L 3 e 3
Total YT 63 5 hand 3 iy

Amounts 1 the previous table represent the Fim's camying
value of general and limited parinership miterests e fund
investments, as well as any related performance-based income
in the form of camed interest. The camying amounts are
mieasured based on the NAY of the fund taking into account
the distrsbutson terms applicable to the interest held. This
same measurement applies whether the fund nvestments wre
secounted for under the equity method or fur value

Private ' Equitv.  Funds that pursie multiple  strategies,
including leveraged buyouts, venture capital, infrastructure
growth capital. distressed investmenis and mezzanine capital,
In addition, the funds may be structured with a focus on
specific geographic regions.

Real Estate. Funds that invest in real estate assets such as
commercinl office buildings, retatl properties. multifamily
resadential propertees, developments or hetels. In addition, the
funds may be structured with a focus on specific geographic

FEgInns.

Investmenits i prvate equity and real estate funds generally
are not redecemable due to the closed-end nature of these
funds, Instead, dstributions from: esch fund will be received
as the underlying investments of the funds are disposed and
mienetized,

Hedge. Fumds that pursue vanous mvestment strategles,
including long-short equity, fred income/credit, event-driven
and multi-strategy. [nvestments in bedge funds may be
subject o itial penod lock-up or gate provisions, which
restrict an mvestor from withdrawing from the fund during
certamn imitial period or restrict the redemption amount on any
redemption date, respectively

See Nowe 14 for information regarding general partmer
guarantees, which include potential ohligations 1o retum
performance fee distributions previcusly received. See Note

22 for information regarding wnrealized casred interest at risk
of reversal

Nonredeamabla Funds by Contractual Maturity
_Garrying Value a1 Decembar 11, 2083

iy i Private Eouity Flsssl Eatnln

Las fhan 5 years 3 1413 § 47
-1y 1,188 1,778
Cver 10 yasrs (] A
Total & L] LTES
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Murgan SIEH'IIE}I'
Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabflities Measured a1t Falr Value on a
Nonmcurring Basis

At December 31, 2023

51 o Lerdl Lewst 37 Tistal
Aasaty
Loans 5 426 5 4512 §  BTAT
Crirmer msseiS=<{HP a0 irvesimans — & '
Crioeer mvanta—ROU s 23 - bl
Tedal $ 4230 5 4836 § AT
Lisblites
O'!wllbl:l.ull\-um.ld

Ik L s iy = & 10 § Eb § o
Taal 5 110§ L] 170

Al IDweeenier 31, 2032

oo ez Lewd Tow
e : -
Loans |3 4183 § 6510 & IGA3
Cries masais—{nher imvestiments —_ T T
Criaed miaatsi—ROU asaat 4 - &
Tatal 5 4187 § BB §  I0A84
Liabilities
Crioee linbiliien and accnined
expenses—Lending commizerts  § 275 § 153§ 4m
Total ] 276§ 153§ Asi

A Fer significant Livel 3 balunce, i'er 15 Sigeifean Unstastvibin nguts Lised in
Risaming anc) Morwecinriong Ll 5 Fair 'Wako Wsimaraments’ section hersin &
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i i HE R parrd]
Loans 3 {8y 5 (nE3} S B8
Gooatwlll — — )
Intangiking - - FEs]
Cries musats—{ther irvestmants’ (15 (14 (57}
B R TR R, I.*llﬂt

n::mm' N [LH 1] 114}
Ofae aseats—ROU enie’ ; L . UL S
Total ] {484} % [hisd} § | 168
Liakiitios
Crober Bl e & AcCILgg Rupanses

LN oM M 3 ™5 (137} § ar
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i Hha ey i Bl foe sl pthenwise, they ans iscosded in Othes saparnees

2. Momwemaving changss in tha s valos o loans and lendeng comemdmsnis. which
it Bel dmpact o relybed soonomec 5. are colodatad as ‘oliows for tha
Tkl Fe irvepirnd cofegery. bamed on B valm of Be andarying collsberal angd
for e Pekhforsale calegory based oo eecently aerculed ansackicns. markst
prica quotsions. valkishon modeis thal incorpomis masis! cbsarcabls npits whees
pernnais %hmﬂﬁhﬁhﬂ#ﬂ-lﬂfﬁvmmm
for sy Basi dffeesncs b sawh ancd

PRy Ml whiste tanh gl o Ll
Swrmumm—mmmﬂtwm
Wikl S el Sw mcciels mePodsicgs ihl
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dRConirantd Marked propenag
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Morgan Stanley

The previous tables exclude all non-financial assets and
lighilitses, such as Geodwill and Intangible assets, and certain
finance] mstruments, such: as equity method mvesiments and
certan receivables

5. Fair Value Option

The Fum has elected the fair value option for certain eligible
instruments that are risk managed on a fair value hasis to
mitigate ncome statement volatility caused by mensurement
basis differences between the elected instruments and their
associgled nsk manapement transactions of 1o eliminate
complexities of applving cenain accounting models,

Borrowings Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

AL Al

§ it o bor 31, 2EY O 302002
Busk knit R bl for Fisk M

Erwsty - 46073 § BAS
Ininres] mins 31,055 2HOTF
Commadies 12,798 10717
Cormeit ZAM 1 b
Formigr sachangs 1574 1417
Tedal 5 33904 5 THT0

Wet Revenues from Borrowings undaer the Fair Valee Option

3 by rltiamy. BOEY AT 0T
Traging revenies 3 Fa) 3200 8 ase
i:llmlllw;:li 503 3 305
ot pworues' $ (hamd) 8 12007 5 s

1. Ansamts 06 nel mlect sy gaas o losses Sor radated sconcimis hedgm

Gains (losses) from changes in fair value are recorded in
Trading revenucs and are manly atinbutable to movements in
the reference price of index, interest rates or foreign exchange
rates,

Gains (Losses) Due to Changes in Instrument-Specific Credit
Risk

Trading

$ iy s Ravanusg CH

23

Loans ard oder reckivabies’ 5 1z & -
Lmndirg comminments Ad e
Crapisits —_ 17
Bomowings (1% (1.726)
g2

Losns ard other reosvabias’ 3 (10E} § -
LBngirg comminans (12} —
DCposits == (24}
Blaowings - ]
2

Loans ard oher reosvabies” L 2 % _
Lendirg comménisnis 2 -
Dhaposits - 10
Barrowings ) Ll
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£ b il Diecembar 34, 2023 December 31 3033
mm‘m&mpﬂnﬂw: ’. 5 i !llﬁltﬂlﬂ;::rh 2023
recoenized in ACCI §2,166) _fasT) i mmc MDTB angs- e
1 Lo ond offus decebobing-spacifie ool phim {lidsn) wans S8 lanvined By Drslgneted &4 ting hidg
aschuchng ihe reon-crdi corwponents of ana and losses Frlaraat ri '] 3wy — 8 g a4
Difference batwean Contractual Principal and Fair Valus' Forslgn sabign L L] = 12
Tl 0 5 - 35
” . “Ner dosgasind s sesouring hedg
£ iy mifia Dacambar 31, D0FY  Decsenlar 11, 2022 - i of loams
Loans and ciber recshables’ F 11,088 5 11818 & v B & i &
Nnﬂlm:lblra." 8,588 0,128 : frveey
Bomwingy 3090 ki Intemst min LT FEFRT o 244 148,182
1. Aangueds indecate contracual principal greater than o flass Han e valus Creest 5712 4,896 — o608
2 The majory of the G*armnce betesen prncipal and (e vakie amounts for bass i
A o i it ot s ran pemal gt o s Foowes accfisngs Bog 25T 1% M2
wl Baloa pa Ernity 20X - W 58,075
1, Eschudes bompsngs where the mpayment of the wstial principal smount fchstes Commodty and oher 13538 2, TIAY 18,281
based on changes in 3 iw'srenca price o mdas s PEBO4E 37407 40988 226415
The previous tehles exclude non-recourse  debt  from Total gross detvathves S2SBATE 32TA1T 3 40060 328450
consolidated VIEs, labilities related to transters of financial dmouniz offeet
Counimrpariy ratling (TB4,552) (23,8681} (38,570 [246,914)

assets  teated  as  collmteralized Brancings.  pledged
commaodities and other habihines that have specified assets
atinbiable to them.

Fair Value Loans on Nonacorual Slatus

At AL
§ i mitm Dwcembar 31, 2023 Dacembar 31, #2F
s ‘ P e
Honacnual loars (0 of mios
Sy pasl due 5 LEE ] 118

6. Derivative Instruments  and
Activities

Hedging

The Firm trades and makes markess globally in listed furures,
OTC swaps, forwards, oplions and other  denvatives
rcﬂ:rcncmg,. among other things, interest rates, L‘I'.ILLTLI.(‘H..
currencies, Investment grade and noneinvesiment  grade
corporte credits, loans, bonds, U5 and other sovereign
securfies, emerging markel bonds and loans, credit indices,
ABS indices, property mdices, morigage-related and other
ABS, snd real estate loan products. The Firm uses these
instruments for market-making, managing foreign currency
and credit exposure, and assetTability munagement.

The Firm manages its market-making positions by employing
a variety of risk mitigation strategies. These strategies include
diversificaton of rsk exposuwres and hedging. Hedging
sctivities consst of the purchase or sale of positions in related
securities and fmancial instruments, includmg a varety of
dervative products (eg, fures, forwards, swaps and
opons). The Firm manages the market risk associated with
its market-making activities on o Fimwide basis, on a
worldwide trading division level and on an individual product
basis.

Diecember 2023 Form 10-K

Cash colateral ratteg {I9,453) (3730) — (42,2234

Total In Trading ssasts
Amauris net offsst’

5 M0 53 BN O 2ASD B 37,313

Finanell newrgrtccottiee e = — Uisse
Mt amounts 5 18, 5 i 5 m l E‘IMI
Mt aimserianis for witch master resang o collatenal agmaimenis i

il it plece or muay fol be legaly enforestls £ 2844

LiabEhien 51 Decamber 31, M3

Bilswrad  Clagrnd  Exchange-

e, o7 OTC  Teded L.
Deesignated as accounting hedges

Iniarest s % dgr ¥ — % — % 487
Foewige axchange TR S
ol 1 £ - v2a
Mk dealgneted as ascounting hedges

Econanide badged of leans

Crecit 43 T2 - T45
Ortiver danivathes

Intarest min 120604 1TATY 50 138,373
Crecit 5330 4427 — 10T
Formigr suchangs BTADL X654 16 BO,504
Ematy 545 =, MR Ga8M
Caminidty and ol 12,337 - 240 15087
Toral 2ETASY 25,002 40ATS 323,330
Total gress deratives S25B33L 525048 § ADATS 5324354
Amaurts offeat

Couniaparty rating (TBA553] (3081)  (ESI0) [RA6.514)

Mmknmh _ Wger)  fpad) — i42.088)
mulln'ﬁungllu:lﬂ-n $ Jz.ﬂi $ 8 s % :!Mrn-

Amouris net offset’
Financial s ruments collaienal B b (L] ) (6,009

Mt amaueis § 28825 § 200 & 23 5 2866

Mt amounis for which master nesing or collaierl apesmants are
ot i placas or may e B hagaly arosrosshls § 551
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Desigrated as aooounting hedges. )

Inimras: min ] & 5 1% - =}
Fotslon dchangs 154 = 30

al G a e 5

Wok dasl ELY ting kg

Ecomamic hedges of loams

Crsit 2 ] - B1
Cifrev darivatives

Intamst min 141,38 =00r 153 1T
Coreecit L S B - 2
Fomigh aschanga 13S0 2338 (- Y]
Ecnity 16505 = MMAsD  413sh
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Total B A TATRE b 4GS AR
Totnl groas Serbvatives S301 801 SA3A00 F A0S SAG5HA0E
Amaunts ofust
Counlamarty neting TN (250 (RN (RTR295)
Caih collatieal nafiieg TN LR —  dADaD)
ToinlinTradingsasats § 42017 § a0z § 1860 § aadn
Amounts net oM’

Financial i srumins colaanl {19408} — —  {imana}
Nt amaurts § 22711 5 N2 5 1853 5 J4RD6
Wat amoumnss for which masier resing or colaiemi BRI A0

ot I i of My Pl B lagalky enderosable g dia

Linbdides ! Docesnb=sr 31, 022

Biateral Claared Exchange-

Lhmtrn o6 OTC  Treded T
Il- ‘_d- L L dl-

Intmrast rats 5 4575 45 — %5 461

Fomsign sxchargn 550 L] - sl

Teeal 1007 105 - L1z

Hnldulgm;tld 1% acoounting h-i-ciun
Ecoromic badges of loans

Crasit @ 368 - arr
itfbar darivatived

Intmms! min 1S HLBE1 455 WA AOT
Creil AN 2300 - T
Fomsign mschangs 11032 26512 iod 112038
Exury T8 - BWASA  BELAM
Commodiy and o 10531 - ErdE 8570
Tesal Frar o ML) A0 36T
Tedal groas derkatives SI05303 §31085 £ IAA00 §1R4TED
Amaunts ofset

Counlemary naiting (14773 (322600 (3221 (279.235)
Cash collataral ranieg (BB} (1.605) — T8
TotdinTording Rablies 5 MBE 5 201 § 3284 § 38138
Amaunts not offset’

FAnCl iU cote RS — {9 (s
ot smourits § Ea001 § 1 5 2145 5 Sddbi
Hit armours for which miiber nesing o colmenml agreamianiy are

sk in place of My £ B legaly snfeoilie $ 430

1 Aot (alits 10 roshe neRing agrearuents and colsierl SgRReTens Bl b
b caierrurad by the Fim i be lsgally sr'omeabie in the seent of defsult bl
whees cestain cihes critesia aoe rot met in accoedance with appicatin ofseiting
E it T T R

See Note 4 for information related to the unsettled fair value
of [utures contracts not designated as accounting hedges,
which are excluded from the previous tables,
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Morgan Stanley

Notionals of Derivative Contracts
___ Pasats st Dacembar 31, 2023
Bimeral Clane Exchiegs.
v bnomn oTe oTG e Tozal
Dl d &% ting hedg
Inlerms! e 4 — 4% W3 — 1 2
Foreigr axchargs 1 1 — 2
Tral 1 %] - 54
Mot designated as __"_-"' g
Econamic badged of fsans
Creecit —_ 1 - ]
Otfver denivatives
Infnresi min 4,483 8.7 580 134T0
Dt 214 178 - =0
Eorsigr anthargs 3378 184 T 350
Ecuity 528 - 440 68
Commodey and oher 142 = BS 07
Torel BATS 8689 1,072 18,1886
Total grows derhrathves § 8418 $ 8792 § 1072 § 18.280
Lishilities at Decembar 31, 2023
Bimaml Clanres Excharg
§ i bl OTS [apye Trad Todal
Dealgnated s fing hadg
Intras] e 5 14 183§ ]
Forsigr sxchargs 14 3 - 1w
Tl 1] 138 - 03
e e i v
7 e haoges of loams
Cracit 3 k- — 4
Dtver dervatives
Intarms! s 4531 BAW 458 13383
Creesit 229 185 - B4
Forsigr sachangs 1408 187 LE] BEME
Enity sa7 - 12 1,299
Commadity and ather M - i) R
ok G046 8541 1279 18866
Tetal grose dedvathoes 5 9,081 § &727T § 1,279 § 19,069
__ Hasals x Decembar 31, 202

§ iy bR B.ﬂ'r'i"?l c?.l'l'gn E!l'm Todal
Designatad as Hng hedg
Intirwsst it 5 2% B82S -5 B4
Foraigr suchangs 2 2 o F
Tonnl 4 B4 - [
‘Hot deaignated as accounting hedges o a o
Ecamamic bedged of leans
et — 3 — 3
Ottver denivatives
Intmrest min 3404 7EDG B4 11827
Crasit 100 130 — X0
Fremigr sxchangs 3477 128 18 agi8
Enuity din - Ini R
Commadity and oher 141 - 1] 200
L T 1088 18814
Total growe didhvathios § 7704 § 7032 § 1045 § 15882
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Biateral Clwared Exchargs-
£ o QIC LG Towle TN
Desigrated as aooounting hedges. ) ) -
Intnas: min 5 3% a7 5 - 150
Fotslon dchangs 12 & = L.
e £ Ty = o
Mot dask as ting 'L
Ecomamic hadges of loans
Creesi! - 1] - 18
Cifver devivatives
Insms! e 3438 TR 457 118
Coraecit Bl LFid - ad
Fomign axchangs A516 =] 35 1850
Ecnity 4n8 e BhZ 1040
Commosity and ather 160 - i) 180
Tosal Iranr  A0dd 1168 LAy
Totsl grods deffvalives £ iree SAN3 S I:.1E £ 'Ii'.'I:LI

The nottoral smounts of derivative contracts generally
overstate the Firm's exposure In mosl circumsiances,
notional amounts are used only as a reference pomt from
which to calculate amounts owed between the parties to the
contract Furthermore, notional amounts do not reflect the
benelnt of legally enforceable metting asmangements or nsk
mviligating tansaclions.

Gains [Losses) on Accounting Hodges

Fooeow Wy Hm H
Fair valus hadgas—A in in

Inims! e carTREs 5 (STEYS 1523 § 742
Investmen| Securises—AFS L RN ] {B2

Fair vElus hadgas-—=F
Intmmest min corracs

gnized in Intarest

A

§ BEd 5150850 § (4008

Deposits 88y i L]
Berriwings [B884) 15042 4204
Het investmeant hadges—Foredgn exchargs cortracts
Rucsgrize in OCI £ e s Bar § RA
Forward poirs axchiosd from hacgs

mﬂ‘mmm ;ﬁag—ﬁmm n

4 433) {53y

Cash flow hidg mute eorimets’
Ruosgrized in OCI 8 35 145 —
Luss: Ruakred {lorsamn] et

e u.ilud nm:;:cjmhcm1:qm kL] - -
Hat o i cash o Facgns itck.oes

wehin APC| ED 14 -

. Fior the year soded 2023, then wans no iorscased irnrm s Tl Selsd Io Do
Tha el e (Mossas | asstoived with caal fow Pedges aapeciad io ba secliseiSad
from AGG wihing 13 montha a of Deosniber 31, 2500 s approndimaiedy §{586]
milion The masirusm length of Sme over which ‘oecasisd cash flows aew Fadged
i 18 micnite

Drecember 2023 Form 10-K
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Fair Valua Hodges—Hodged Hems
L A
Decomber 31, Decembsr 31,
3 by i 2T painrl
Inwesrmant sezudtos— AFS
Facged ot ' 41410 8 .07
Benis adjurneents iPchoded in smaodived oot § (732) 5 (1.628)
Depeosits.

m-rm:wmq ¥ PR, k] e § REEL ]

Basks 15 iUt i camng

'.’_""‘."u'!dm ) 3 [IHE 118
Borrowings

Camying smoun! aurmendly or previcusty
Freges 5§ 1850 5 14B028

Bash rebutt i cameg

et Coutsareing hedges S BHNS (27

Blariis aupuunieris rchaoad i carmying
=Tt tad hadges

{3 (i) & {15

1 Hsdge accounting hask adumirwnts aim primaily related 1o cutstancding hedges

Gains (Losses) on Economic Hedges of Loans

Ascognized in Other revenuss
Cresit coromcs” (%E2) [Lrd] ]

1. Arsouwis elated o hedges of cmdsn held. foe dwesimisnt i Feld-for. sale loans

Drerivatives with Credit Risk-Related Contingencies

Wat Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Posted

At Al
Descembar 31, December 31,
Finmions - s maT
st darivasvs Babdiias wilh oredc) mak-
dalated coniigan: faaiunes 5 &.p57 £ . b
ochuterul poed A3 12268

The previous tble presents the aggregate far value of certain
derivative contracts that contain credit risk-related contingent
features that are in a net habahty positon for wiach the Firm
has pested collateral in the nomal course of business

Incremantal Collateral and Termination Payments upan
Potontial Fulure Ratings Dewngrada

Ay
Decembar 31,
§ 11 mations 03
Cwraanot o Cowngracs 1 450
Tan-roich Grwngrage i
Bilalaral downgradas agrasmants inchided in ths smounts
dn:' § 2

1 Amount ERpressnts. Batweban (el Firey and offs paniss wham Lgon

the dowegiade of Oes farty, B doangraded party must deliess collsied 10 tha

oihr pafy Thess bdsleal dosngrads amangsments as wssd by tha Fem o
g% thia rak of Pty ooy n

The additional collateral or termination payments that may be
called in the event of a future credit rating downgrade vary by
contract and can be based on ratings by Moody's Investors
Service, Inc, S&P Global Ratings and'or other mating
agencies. The previous table shows the future potential
collaternl amownis and termination payments that could be
called or required by counterpartics or exchange and clearing
organizations 1 the event of one-notch or fwo-notch

(1]
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downgrade scemarics based on the relevamt contractual Pratection Purchased with COS
dewngrade triggers. Hoikrat
Maximum Potontisl PaysubMolionasl of Credit Pratection Bt | D &
Soid' §iniomons 2023 iz
Sirgla name k] 166 2 140
_-Meark b Malurity Wl Danmrdver 34, 2000 indix et baskat #a 173
£ v b <1 1-3 5 Owarh Tolal Trarchad index and baskst 0 %
Single-nams COG Toral 3 s 5 e
Imvestmen| grade § w3 ®»E MBI 105 o7
oriryesimen grade B AR VIR SN e Yoot Adaer o)
Toal ) 5 263 433 863 115 138 Ddcanbar 1, Bicenibarsi,
Incex wnd baskei COB Snmmons S ..
Investment grade 4 B3 19 % 853 4% 118 Sirgla nama L) 'ﬁ.?ﬁj 5 l.-ﬁil
Hon-rvesimen] grade ] 14 L3 ir 134 ndax & baskel {1,200 1240
Toaal 3 183 3\ wey N 0 S T adowt {3813) Lok
Tital COS sold § 42% 76 % e s 2285 M Total 5 iB018) § )
Sebwrcecore. 0 — 2= = ¥ 03
Totul credit protection sold __ § 42 L] EL ] The Fum enters into credit denvatives, prmcipally CDS,
COS protecon sokd with kerticl protection purchases 5 330 under which it receves or provides protection against the risk
Yeuwrs i Mty Al Daceartse 31, 203 of default on a =2t of debt obligations ssued by o specified
£ iy mer <1 13 35 Overs  Toml reference  entity o entities,. A majonty of the Fiom's
‘Bingle-nome COS S counterparties for these derivatives are banks, broker-dealers,
Inyasimen grade 5 125 ®E W™F 8§ 1 and insurence and other financial institutions
Hon-maument i 5 13 18 2 18
Teal § 17§ 425 4585 1185 1 The fair value amounts as shown in the previous tables are
index ard basket CDS prior 1o cash collmernl or counterparty nelting.
It GrAd e 3% 13 W5 3% M
Mofdnvestmen prade 8 17 18 18 152 The purchass of credit protection does not represent the sole
Tl 5 11§ 35 us 5 5 pd manner m which the Firm risk manages its exposure 1o credit
Total COS sald 5 85 725 1905 335 33 derivatives. The Firm manages s exposure to these
st et codvreces = - = - - dervative comtracts through a vanety of nsk mmgation
Totd el proticthon ol 3 20 450 & A0 9008 5 sirategies, which include managing the credit and comelation
CD% [MORCHn 5080 with Iertical pIoection puihased 3 w2

Fair Value Assot (Liability) of Cradit Protection Sobd"

At A

Decsmbar 3,  Dacmmiber 11,
et 2023 b2
Singla-name COG
Invasimen! grade ] 1004 2 FEY
Hondnvesiment grade M Any
Tl o F; Lo & il
Index and badkat COS
Invas st grada i 103 § 50
IWon-mesiment gmade 45 e
Toral 3 100 3 1565%)
Total COS sald § 4317 1R
Ortar cres conmncs i 0}
Tital cradit grataction skl i L8818 1o
1 Inwastment srensirant grade defenmination is based o Be il

e non
el ralng of B refelencs cbBgation inleensl cred® rvings senve o the CRM's
ansaanrand of cradit sk and Bie basls for a corpaalensies cadi b Samework
usad i confrol cosclt ralk. The Fam uses quaniisive models and judgment to
aahiruye the vaicas risk paremsters. relsled 1o aath ohllgor.

111

risk across single-mame, non-tranched indices and baskets,
tranched indices and baskets. and cash posttions. Aggrepate
market risk imits have been established for credit derivatives,
and market risk measures are routinely monitored against
these hmits. The Firm may also recover amounts on the
underlying reference oblation delivered 1o the Firm under
CI08 where credit profection was sold.

Single-Name CDE A CDS protects the buyer against the boss
of principel on o bond or loan in case of a default by the
issuer. The protection buyer pays a periodic premmum
{penerally quarterly) over the life of the contract and s
protected for the period. The Firm, m tum, performs under 2
CDS if o eredit event as defined under the contract occurs,
Typical credit events inchide bankruptey, dissolution of
inselvency of the referenced entity, fmlure to pay and
restructuring of the obligations of the referenced entity

Index and Baxket CDS. Index and basket CDS are products
where credin protection 15 provided on a porfolio of single-
name T8, Generally. in the event of a defauli on one of the
underlving names, the Firm pavs a pro mata portion of the total
notional amount of the CDS.

The Firm alse enters into tranched mdex and basket CDE
where credit protection is provided on a particular portion of
the porifolio less distribution. The most junior tranches cover
initeal defaults, and once losses exceed the notional of the

Diecember 2023 Farm 10-K
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tranche, they are passed on to the next most sentor franche in
the capatal siruciure.

Other Credil Comracts The Firm has mvested in CLNs and
C[M¥, which are hybrd instruments containing embedded
derwvatives, m which credit protection has been sold 1o the
issuer of the note. I there 5 a credit event of a reference

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
Morgan Stanley
Irvestment Sacurities in an Unrealized Loss Position
At Dacamber 31, a1 Dacenbar 38,
E . W
[ Gmas
Fabr  Unmeakred Ear  Unrealrsd
£ L. N Ve  Lossss  Vels Losses
WS, Treasury secundes
Less thar il months § 14785 § 22 % 42044 % LT

entity underlying the instrument, the principal balance of the 12 manths o orger 33485 1,081 11454 543
note may not be repaid m full to the Firm. Totsl 47,753 1903 53508 2258
LS. spercy sscuriies
7. Investment Securities i ani2 months AT &3 lagsz 1,271
12 months or lorger 18405 2ARE 7 a0 1482
AFS and HTM Securities i 22,756 2528 Hre 2|
Agercy OIS
.'t..u.'\._.. - 1&1_,_@_!_: Lacs Fari2 months — — 5508 ddh
Amonized Urrealired Unmealzed  Fair .12 months or bnge L5l doa 1% L
£ in miicom Cait Chaifi L. Wil ool BT ABG Lrre ] 4l
AFS sscurites S arg nwricel e, it
ULE. Trassury secuitins. % BR4B4 § M8 1103 57408 Lasa Pard? months i ] 208 &0
L BNy ST s 4 LA aaan L i il - 2 [ 2
Ageray CMBS 58T _ 458 5415 Total L83 l 24N az
Emate ard municipal FFELP sucar: | AES
Lk i LA Lm:nl:m:r: 5 1 527 b
_F_F.EI'.EWIE{.W Bt — 18 ?_* 12 M"*“‘h’ﬂ“ 6 i FE Fr
Total ARS sacuntes 092,140 ™ 4410 EB111 - ’
HTM sscutities Totel &2 i .63 45
Todnl AFS sscurities i bn unresized loss positon
WS, Treasery socuiing 23,222 - 1,285 21907 L sz s 194 & 203
UE, agency sacuriins’ 40,54 - ThA8 A5 Aere o oz s
s i _ i 1216 12 e g oF Bsnger TS 4,041 10,240 2011
Moragenay CNBS 4,381 2 428 1,908 Yol 3 FTASS § 4110 § &322 3 G664
Tecal HTM nacurtins 66,604 F 9,243 57453
Totul investmont sscurities § 188,043 3 TS 13,381 $145.560 For AFS secunities, the Firm believes there are no secunties in

ey gty Mgt o 8,
AFS sacurities
W5 Treascey secunthes 5§ 55,003 § LERE S £
U5, speecy saoriins 23525 1 253 2L
Ageroy CAES 500 — 40 Esm
waﬁ 2808 n F-R Y -
EEELF slucen loar ABS" 1047 - 4 1102
Tocal AFE securiies LRl i) S50 B0V
HTH sacurition
U, Traasury seourties A - 18s e
UE. agency seoutins’ 44008 a BABT  3nANE
Agarcy CMES 1215 = 152 1867
Hon-agercy CMBS 1478 - 4410
Teral HT saouties 75 A —  i0EDE 8500

Total Investmont securitles § 185408 5 B0 § 16192 5145000

1 Arieuns i e of ey ACL

2 WS agency ssnniies consisl moendy 0f E)Eency MOAgage pass heoughe pool
senurities. CAMCS and fgancy issusd debi

3 Undeilying loans ane backes by & guiantes, ulirutely from e U S, Depanmend
of Education, of of leaat B5% of tha principal balsnos snd isteeest cutslancing

Diecember 2023 Form 10-K

an unrealized loss positton that have credit losses after
performing the analysis described in MNote 2. Additionally, the
Firm does not intend 1o sell thess securities and is not likely to
be required to sell these securities prior 1o recovery of the
amortized cost basis. As of December 31, 2023 and December
31, 2022, the securities in oan unrealized loss positton are
predominantly investment grade.

The HTM sccunties net camying amounts a1 December 310,
2023 and December 31, 2022 reflect an ACL of 344 mallion
and £34 million, respectively, predominantly relaed 10 Non-
agency CMBES, See Note 2 for a description of the ACL
methodology used for HTM Securities. As of December 31,
2023 and December 31, 2022, Non-Agency CMES HTM
securities were  predominantly on  accrual status  and
investment grade

See Note 15 for additional information on securities 1ssued by

VIEs, including 1.5, agency morigage-backed secunties, non-
agency MBS, and FFELP student loan ABS.
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Invesiment Securities by Contractual Matusity At Decambae 31, 3023

Arryakead
At Decembar 31, 2023 Fak
) ik “Arryalbed 5y oo ""?.’5"’ ks w

£ mim ot Viakis Ve HTM sacuriies

AFS sacurities LLE, Traasdy Sacidihas,

L5, Traasury seousties: Dug withic | ymar $ 8403 § &WT 21%
Dok it 1 et 3 18311 5 1660 13 Aftar 1 yaar through b years 12,088 1487 15%
Afier 1 year fwough b years 01z ETs % Afier b yeaeu rough 10 years 3,202 2965 ETL
Alat iy hrough 10 years 1,764 4,758 40 % Al 1)y 1,558 1158 3%

Toal — C R - ol nam ey

U5, agknsy tacurng: LS, ngency securiies:

Dum withie: § yoar 2 n (B8 Aftar 1 yoas thicugh 5 year 6 ] 18%
AR | ooty Fartugh § ywars a7 s 16% Afims 5 paars rough 10 years: 204 e 2%
Afur b ysars hrough 10 years 547 [ 15% Aftnr 1 yars 40,504 32513 18%
At 10 years 20885 zz4m 6% . _AGAM e

Teeal 28,852 FIT50 Apenoy CHEBS:

Agiery CHES: Crum withic | ywar a0 ] 25 %
Duswithin § ynsr 1 1 (2.21% Al 1 year through § years 1,063 388 14%
Afine | yoar fwough 5 yaars 2401 2380 e Afar b yairs Erough 10 yean. 117 EEY 1A%
At 5 yeears tRrogh 10 paar 2,478 ETTE] 0% Aftar 10 ywars 1ir 102 16 %
Alnr 10 yaars 1,200 T 144 Lo T 1,337 1,216

Toal BATL mats Wiy GGG

£itrs and muriopal securtins: D withie § pmar 208 128 L0 %
D withie: § yaar 27 . 52 % After 1 yoar though b years 343 ET 3] A
Afir | yaar fuough § years 185 184 PR Alief § yaars Frosgh 10 yean. G4t 551 AT
Atar b ymars through 10 years 6 8 4% Aftar 3 yoars 40 41 7%
Afer 1 years (1) a3 A% Tl 1241 1,08

Tocal 1,432 1473 Toval HTM sacutins: B,BD4 ET 48 1%

FFELF sacent loan ABE: Total Inwestmant securitlos 150841 3 148500 3%
Adigr 1 yaear Furcugh & yeark L L 6% 1. Amousts are et of sy ACL
Afer b years Frough 10 yeams 1] [ B0 % o Nﬂﬂlﬂmﬂpﬁlﬂhmﬂuﬂwhlﬂmﬂ,ﬂ waighisd barsed on
Afiar 10 ysars BB Py 2% the amorioed cosd of sach sscly The afective yiell & sbown practas and

5 tha e%ect of eelaied hedgang devatiees
Teodal ain T2 3. M Decsmbar 11, 2023 e sreobzed sverage peld nchicing the adsnssi rais
Toral AFE sncLries TR P YT g icnasl o related Baciges. was 1 E% for AFS securiSes conactaaly mahng

Wity § yhau el 3.6% fou ol AFSS macaritien

Gross Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of AFS Securities

3 st 203 oer] Farrdl

Grnas walired gars. : oF e 5
Genss akired (lossas) (1] o} 17
Total' 5 49 % ]

1 Foasiiced ghns and loasss o miogelred n Other imess in Be ncome
b

B, Collateralized Transactions

The Firm enters into securities purchased under agreements 1o
resell, secwmies sodd under agresments 1o repurchase,
securities borrowed and securities loaned transsctions to,
among other things, acquire securities to cover short positions
and settle other securities oblipations, o accommodate
customers” needs and 1o finance its inventory posations,

The Firm monitors the fair value of the underlying securities
as compared with the related receivable or payable, including
acerued  interest, and, as necessary, regquests additional
collateral, as provided under the applicable apreement 1o
ensure such transactions are adequately collaterahzed, or
returns exeess oollateral.

December 2023 Farm 10-K
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The risk related to & decline in the market value of collateral
pledged or received s managed by setting appropriate markel-
based muargm requirements. Increases in collateral mangin
calls on secured financing due te market value declines may
ke mitigated by increases in collateral margin calls on
sgeurities purchased under agreements to resel] and securities
borrowed  ansactions  with  similar  quality  collateral.
Addmonally, the Firm may request lower quality colbateral
pledged be replaced with higher qualtty collateral through
collateral substitution rghts in the underlying agreements

The Firm actively manages its secured financings in a manner
that reduces the potential refinancing nsk of secured
financings of less liquid assets and also considers the quality
of collateral when negotiating collateral eligibility with
counterparties, The Fim  wlilizes shorter term secured
financing for pghly Bguid assets and hes established longer
tenor limats for less hiquid assets, for which funding may be at
risk i the event of & market disruptaon

Offsetting of Certain Collateralized Transactions
it Bacamber 31, 2021

Balencs  Amounis
Groas  Amenrie  Shest Nal N Mat
] Amounis  Offsst Amounts  Ofse’  Amounts
Annnby
Epcunthes purchases

l:ﬂllfliv'ltmﬂ'ﬂ'l

o rasal $I00.242 S(189,802) § 110,740 W108ER3) § 1,847
Becurithe borownd 142453 (24,368 124,081 [(115,960) B2z
Liskitlen

Bauilhin Mlﬂ-nw
repuichass STALASY S0189.802) § G651 5 (50.387) § 4,204
i aisnad 419 m aut 18087 nmlp "
Nﬂlmfﬂhﬂﬂlmmﬂﬂﬁﬂ nmmnuhﬂu«m
ot ba legally snforcaable
Sazuritienn purchatsd Leder Sgepamenia o el § 1
Becurities borrowed BOF
Saecunithes 2000 LNCAr AGTETHTCS 10 MepUIChass 3014
Seiritiod laened 2

2 Decnmber 11, 200

Balenoy  Amounts
Gross . Amouris  Shesl Net Hot | Hai
£ i1 mitan Amaunts Oﬂ'n-: Mmu”ml. Adneaaris
Securitisd urchass
[Ea.0

BPTRRTHSTL
5o rasadl S0 255 S1MA48) 3 112007 100002} 5 4006
Secufilien borrowesd 145340 (11D6R) 133304 (128073 530
Liabélities

Szt ok urer

ASTRRIITS 0

FEpIchELs S18R5E7 S1M448) % G2a0 5 (B736S) 5 B30
Emcuimthes bnsned ZTE4S {11.D68} 15670 415, 100 A8
N“Itmmfwnhkhmb:brnﬂﬂm sgreemarts sre not in place or may
Sgcurilien purchassd yrder soremsmsnts (o ressl § 1E9
Sacunihn bomovwend fi2d
Sacyritig 20k0 LnCE AgnRTEOT 10 MpUchahe 3.861
Sacuriths lasned 250

§ Argunts relals 1o masier eflng agessments et faes Been deferrenasd By the
Firrm 42 b Ingally aroroedbis in Sa awint of el bl whiar cartsn ot critrs
arm sl Et i accordines. wilth apgiicabls d¥aating scotunting guidlanca
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For information related to offsetting of denvatives, see Note
&

Grosa  Secursd Financing Balancea by  Remaining
Confractual Maturity
Mmm E:!:I .

Crearmigh l.mm SU-DG I!?Mtl.'lﬂ

5oy i and Open  30Dmys  Dmys  Dws Towl
Secuiges 5ok urosr
Wlm
raprurchais $ BOITE F1T4838 25510 S48 5252983
Securites Insned 21,508 1345 789 1LB57 16418
“Fotal inchuded in the
ofsatiing disclosure S401,884 SH464T1 S26,240 $44,008 33357
Tracing bhabdier—
Dhlpumﬁum

ARl MGy
a colaiersl _ Aasm - e | .
Totat :11M1t :I-ﬂl;,'ln HI-.zﬂ Wﬁﬂ lnﬂdh-

Al Dwoansher 1. D0dE
Crearnighs Leag thar  30-00  Cver (6

Smmdons and Open ND-P Dmys  Days  Toinl
Sty nokd urder
Wl'.ﬂ
mpurchass § 4551 5 7789 S20.5B6 535485 5183560
SELATED |0arad 165,150 832 158 A ITEdE
Tl irchuded i the
ofsatling disclosure § 9701 § TA24N S22500 S46,115 S215E2T
Trasing abdlcss—
Oligan i 15 Ftuv
RACRLATIE T A
colatecal 2 hh — - — g
Tetal 53 U25A1 3 78241 FI25K0 46115 FEws0T

Groas Secured Financing Balances by Class of Collateral
Pledged

AL Al

Dacambar 31, Decembsr 31,
& vy 2023 W2
Socurities sold under agresments o repurchase
LLE, Treamury and agency securites % BT & 7,6
Crias sovamioh Sivarrense] obligaliang 122,342 TR A3
Sorpornin eoulties 18,144 10,340
rter S L S
Total 3 252.144 g 1A DR
Securities leansd
Ot soivaniigh gowemener! oblgations 3 13M § &h2
Compornis eouiing WA o ]
ore e i
ool L) AT £ 2754
Tord imciuged in the ofiesing dindoaurs 5 ZEESTE § 2B BT
Tradieg llabdikns—I ] 13 et i i a5 wl
Crrpocnie epdting 3 14,502 5 833
O B s
L= % 1!.5“ § 2880
“Toral 302100 § 207

Carrying Value of Assels Loaned of Pledged without

Countarparty Right to Sall or Repledge
AL A
December 31, December 31,
§ o e 023 T
Trasiny asssls £ Tk & bl

The Fim pledges certain of s trading assets to collaterafize
secunties sold under agreements to repurchass, securities
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Ioaned, other secured financimgs and dermvatives and 1o cover
customer short sales. Counterparties may of may ned have the
right 1o s2ll or repledge the collateral.

Pledged financial instruments that ¢an be sobd or repledged by
the secured party are wdentified as Trading asseis {pledged to
vanous parties) m the balance sheet

Fair Valua of Collateral Received with Right to Sell or
Repledge

A Al
Decomber 31, Ducandwr 31,
F by it 2023 202

Colamml recabed wit Aight i seld or egledge 8 735,830 § BI040
Collaieral that was soks urlpldg_-i-d' 553,336 485 A20

| Doss not wchids seoaites ysed o mssl Indand regulafions for the Femvs U5,
Eavbar daslers

The Fum receives collateral in the form of secunties in
connection with secunities purchised under agreements 1o
resell,  securities  borrowed,  securities-for-securities
transactions, derivative transactions, customer margin loans
and securities-based lending [n many cases, the Fim is
permitted to sell or repledge this collateral 10 secure securitics
sold under agresments to repurchase, 1o enter into securities
lendng and  derivative  transactions o o delver 1o
counterparties to cover short positions.

Securities Segregated for Regulatory Purposes
Ax Al
December 11, Cecembar 31,
&1 it 2033 Bl
Sacsmpaied teouiies 5 HETO 5 12,254
1 Seouites sapegaind under federsl iegalaticons for tha Fierd's U5, beokes -dealsrs

ae aoadcad ory Secuites puichisad wnder agiesmenis o easll and Trading
aasels bn the balaros shesl

Concentration Basad on the Firm's Total Assats

AR Al
Docomber 31, Decamber i1,
202 2nz2

W5, gewsmment and a wecurities and

otheer sovarsign nwmnl ob¥gions
Trasing wisets’ 12% %
0 balance sheet—Colaml feceived® % 2%
A Dt Seremimige grvmmieiant obigsrs ackaind in Tiadng risels priesaily consi

of eblgaticns of the UK . lipas and Bl

2 Collabersl peosbad i primasly rebsed 0 Seneities purchassd tndasr agresments io
il il Bais s Boinowied

The Firm 13 subject to concentration risk by holding lorge
pesitions in cerlain ivpes of securities, loans or commitm ents
1o purchese secunties of o single sswer, mcluding sovereign
governments and other entities, issuers located i a particular
country of geopraphic area, public and private issuers
involving developing countries of issuers engaged in a
particular mdustry,

Positions taken and underwriting and fmancimg commitments,
including those made in conmection with the Firm's private
equity, principal investment and lending activities, often
involve substantial amounts and significant exposure 1o
indavidual issuers and businesses, including mvestment grade
and non-1nvestment grade issuers.
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Custormaer Margin and Other Lending

At AL
Bacembear 31, December 31,
& iy i 023 02

Mangin &nd oer Becing 3 AR 5 HLsd4

The Fim provides margin lending armangements that allow
customers 1o borrow against the value of qualilying securities.
Recewables from these amangements are incheded within
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheet Under
these amanpements, the Firm recerves collsteral, which
includes UL, government and agency securities, other
sovereign govemment obligations, corporate and other debt,
amd corporate equities. Margin loans are collateralised by
customer-owned securities held by the Firm. The Firm
menitors required margm levels and established credit terms
chaily and, pussuant to suwch guilelines, requires cuslomers 1o
deposit additional  collateral, o reduce positions, when
MECORSAry.

Margin loans are extended on o demand basiz and generally
are nod committed facilities, Fectors considered in the review
of margin loans are the amound of the loan, the imended
purpose, the degree of leverage being emploved in the
aceount and the amount of collateral, as well a3 an overall
evatuation of the panfolio o ensure proper divessification or,
1 the case of concentrated positions, appropnate liquadity of
the underlying collateral or potental hedging strategies 1o
reduce nsk. Underlymg collsteral for margin leans s
reviewed with respeet to the bguidity of the proposed
collateral positions. valustion of securities, historic irading
range, volaulty analyses and an evaluation of indusiry
concenirations. For these transactions, adherence to the
Firm's collsteral policies significamtly  limits its  credit
exposure in the event of a customer default, The Firm may
request additional margine collateral from  customers,
appropriate, and, if necessary, may sell securities that have
not been pard for or purchase securities sold but not deliversd
from customers,

Also included in the amounts in the previous fable 1s non-
purpose securities-based lending on entitics in the Weahh
Management business segment.

Other Seeured Financings

Other secured financings mclude the lmbilities related to
collateralized notes, transfers of financial assets that are
accounted for as [inancings rather than sales and consolidated
VIEs where the Firm 15 deemed to be the primary beneficiary.
These liablities are generally pavable from the cash flows of
the related assets accounted for as Trading assets (see Notes
13 and 15} Addinonally, for certain secured fnancing
transactions that the Firm entersd into during 2023 that mest
applicable nettimg critenia, the Firm offsets Other secured
financimg  habilities against financing receivables recorded
within Trading assets in the amount of 33,472 million al
December 31, 2023,

December 2023 Farm 10-K
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2. Loans, Lending Commitments amd Related
Allowance for Credit Losses

The Fim's  held-for-myestmem  and  held-for-sale  foan
perifolios consest of the following types of loans:

& Covporate, Corporate includes revalving Lhines of credit,
term kans and bridge loans made to corporate entities for a
vanety of purposes.
Fecwred Lending Facilites.  Secured lending facilities
include loans provided to clients, which are collpteralized
by variows assets, including residentinl and commercial real
estale morigaze loans, nveslor commilments for capital
calls, corporate loans snd other asses
» Commercial Real Estate. Commercial real estate loans
include owner-occupied boans and income-producing loans,
* Residontial Real Estate.  FResdentinl resl estate lomns
mainly inchxke non-conformmg loans and HELOC,
Securifies-based Lemdling and Other.  Securities-based
lending includes loans that allew clients to borrow momey
agmnst the valee of qualifying secunties, generally for any
sultable purpose other than purchasing, trading. or camving
securities or refinancing margin debt. The majority of these
loans are structured as revolving lines of credit. Caher
prmarily mcludes cenam loans ongmated i the talored
lendmg business within the Wealth Management business
sepment

Loans by Typa
__ AtDecembar3t, 2023

T mem WFlLoans  HES Loans  Totsl Loans
Carpore % 6758 5 11,862 § 18,620
Sacumes endieg faclnes A 3,181 AT G5
Commersial real #sat 078 08 an7
Fasidantial eal sitate [ 10 23 60, 3T
Sacuitiesbased bnding and

Crhar laans B, 248 1 B3, 246
Teral loari 204,55 15,258 219,800
ACL (1.163) (1,116
Tolal lans, net 5 Z0LS 5 15,255 § 215,640
Loans o nondl 8 boroesn, rel § 2142 § 5,083 & 2,185

i PRGOS0
HFlLoans  HFS Loans  Tolad Loans

F i ol
Corporals 5 Bhn § e384 & 1T
Securms landing faciiies 35 608 3,178 8,762
Commurcial imal &xate anis 626 044
Rasudartal real sca's B 450 4 54 4R
Secyritie-Durkad banding and

rhat kaank b i &l Tl T4
Total koars 108 538 4,788 214,624
A (] ]
Todal lcane, ni 5 12T 5 14,788 §  213.7RS
Loans i non-U. 8, bormeen. nel 3 1rave & 5852 3 Fali]
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Loans by Inarest Rata Typa
Al Decambsr M, 2023 At Decemnbar 31, 20022

Floafng o Fioadng or
Finied Rlain % Finnc Rlas Wﬁ:ﬂ.

5.5 mtione
Corporuia % — % k8N 3 = % iz
Sucuned landirg facities - 42655 - 38,782
Commsncial real sste a41 BTG el Baar
Recitarin reaal assms 78,534 1484 24,003 28551
SacLTes- At kanoing

and Odhar lnans 5,033 5.3 24077 TAST

Totalloans, bafore ACL  § 2997 § 106892 § 40184 5 16640

See Mote 4 for further mformation reparding Loans and
lending commuments held at fair value. See Note 14 for
details of curment commitments 1o Jend an the future.

Credit (uality

The CEM evaluates new obligors before credit transactions
are imitally approved and st least anmally thereafier for
corporate and commercial real estate lcans For Corporate,
Secured lending facilities and Other loans, credit evaluations
typically invelve the evahmtion of financial stalements,
assessment of leverage, hoquedity, capital strength, asset
composition and quality, market capialiabon and access to
capital markets, caish flow projections and debt service
fequirements, and the adequacy of collateral, if applicable,
The CEM abso evalustes strategy, markel position, indusiry
dynamics, obligor’s management and other factors that could
affect an obligor’s risk profile.

For Commercinl real estate loans, the credit evaluation is
focwsed on property and transaction metrics, including
property type, LTV ratio, occupancy levels, debt service ratio,
prevailing capitalization rates and market dynamics.

For Residential real estate and Secunties-based loans, the
initeal credin evaluation typically meludes, bt is not limited
to, review of the ohliger’s income, net worth, liquidity,
collateral, LTV rawo and credit bureau  information.
Subsequent credit menitoring for residential real estate loans
15 performed ot the portfolio kevel. Securities-based loan
collateral values sre monitored on an ongoing basis.

For nformation related to credit quality mdicators considered
in developing the ACL, see Note 2

e
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Yaar el
St b sed —
At Decembar 3, 2073 A1 Dwcenbar 31 002 Sy mons Lendirg L L L Teal
Coponte Hm; 1 TATd § 5230 § 4,362 § 78,068
& iy Mg [ HIG Tl 1B HIG Toal 23 1812 azr kL 2,585
Ravcbirg & 2390 § 3063 8 G213 § 2560 & 3458 § 6010 e 1Azt #16 Bt 2748
0% - 88 -] ikl 165 30 arr are
a0z - 166 168 & 10 112 0 = 435 414 Bag
2021 15 ] 104 = 130 129 A1 e Ll L o 1410
2020 » 15 " e 58 P Pricr 02 1,387 1,488 2,718
2019 = 133 ey - 154 sy Tanl 5 TaE04 3 D8M 3 S117 §  Ba2as
Price — — — 118 - 1% A Dwcamber 31, 2022
Todnl § I I § TEY 5 267h § 39014 § 650
= - - .. LS
At Becembar 31, 2023 Al Ducsmber 31 2022 2 i Lending L) sl Tocal
Sucured Lendng Facities Ravohing & TIs § ATED § 1480 §  A4aBS
Fhmeom IS MG Towl 16 WG Tewl apas L hAn I o
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[y I3 il — it
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2022 -t 500 184 arn 2201 2580
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2021 3 A LB I LR LA : = z g e
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B 1W.927 2484 IS 1REsd 1080 4LTee
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;n.-rtr- ?I_F4I:I BELTHD S&6/9 !-Bﬂ"t ’B-E_l'ﬁ_ 'TDCIJ &0 ACL M & ne
Rivbicg § 008 205 5 5 148 — § 1 1. Them s 10 omns teld lon isasiment fhal wens B3 days o mon past dus and
ol pocnsey bl o Decarber 31, 2073 and Decarba 31, 2020 For Aihes
2022 1481 2,633 411 13,278 b.140 14 425 o et FiTTfs: Koy, ness Mole T4 Hha fi A
2021 TAM 2402 287 13HE 078 14363
2020 raee  1sm e 8442 Anb B.008 The Fum may modify the terms of certain loans for economic
2019 4.208 e A 49 328 sam of legal rensons related to o barrower's financinl difficulties,
Price Bdma  am19  ae2 10487 B0 1359 and these modifications include interest rate reductions,
Toinl F93.163 10000 1377 § S0.060 3 3005 F 54480 principal forpiveness, term  extensions and  other-than-
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insignificant payment delays or a combination of these
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aforementioned modifications. Modified Ipans are typically Gross Charge-offs by Origination Year
evaluated individually for allowance for credin losses. As of
Decernber 31, 2023, there were no loans held for imvestment = e "-";'-*-"". = : “-m"-”-
medified in the current year with subsequent default. Larcing s foriry
Snmecms  Comporse Facliies CRE  Exwie  Ciher Tocad
Modified Loans Hald far Investmant Revdving § (4% =% =8 - - i24)
Modified during the year snded December 31, 023" e = or - o 2
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Securties based lerding o e Corporais  Facliies CRE HLIF__'c.l‘.n G T-:mL
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Adoed & years. ¥ months to the if'e of the Yoar Ended Decembar 19, 2022
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Last 12 months Provision (releasa) ] 10 (s 3 (3 =
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Your Ended Deosmbar 31, 2021

Saournd 5B

Lisnidding Reskdenial ano
Comedaln Faclies CRE Faal Esie Ofee Total

Fonmmos
ACL==Loars
Gegicningbalancs 3 X0 5 1 S200 3 59 SBA SAXS
Gross drarpe=s 123} {BTy 7] LLY] [T - ]
Prosdsion (relessa) (115} ad 5 1 11 a8y
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Pﬁmdﬂmw
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Morgan Stanley

Emplovee loans are granted in conjunction with a program
established primarily to recruit certain Wealth Management
finance] advisors, are [ull recousse and genemally require
periodic repayments, and are due m full upen wermination of
employment with the Firm, These loans are recorded in
Customer and other recervables in the balance sheetl, See Note
2 for o descripion of the CECL allowance methodology,
includmg credit quality ndicators, for employes loans,

10. Groodwill and Intangible Assets

Beginningbalance 5§ 323 0§ 38 I 523 5306 Gaoodwill Rollforward

Prosision (rdagse a 2 = 3 i

ke , (4} 1 - = W il ] I8 W e Total
e T e S A Dicaeribar 31, 2020° § 475 $10325 5 A003 S18.833

Ending balance 5§ 8 3 4 L) =

Tetal wnding Formigr: curency [ moopy
balance 5 E21 5 Md 522 % Bl SBE 5104E _M L4 (118) — 1123}

i p bl sl eaganie s ol for iy oo g 191 F-IWN.M' 34X 310302 § 4021 S9A65T
ol Wi fo] oo iR v Formgr GUTErGy i) F] T [

) ) Anquired - - L3 oh

The s!ll.uwmc:_ for credn_ losses for _Ina.rts_ and lending Disposals. U is)

commilments mereased m 2023, prmanly  related 1o AR Bpcpimbar 11, 2027 5 434 310499 § 6044 S18.707

deteriorating conditions in the commercial real estale sector, Accumulated impaimsess $ 635 —§ 7§ 7100

ineluding provistons for cemtain specific loans, mamly in the
office portfolio, and modest growth in cemain other loan
portfolios, Charge-offs in 2023 were peimarily related 1o

1 Balwnves repimsand fhe around of dhe Fievs goodwill afer atosmelated

paETets
T Thusim vl e sty e n 2003, 2002 o 200

Commercial real estate and Corporste loans The basc Intangible Assets Rolforward
soenario used I our ACL models as of December 31, 2023
was generated using a combingtion of consensus economic o L] o it i,
forecasts, forward rates, and intemally developed and 4 eeeersnERt $ IR EAGLAM A0
valudlated models, and assumes slow ecomomic growth ok i :; ~ t::
2024, followed by 4 gradual improvement in 2005 Giventhe et o
nature of our lending portfolio, the maost sensitive model ingat o = ) i 5
1113, GDP A1 Ducerbar 31, 2002 5 35 % 3511 5 3671 § 7618
See Note 2 for a description of the ACL calculated under the ooy =
CECL methodology, including credit quality indicators, used Amotization sxpansa (0 4E1 (M [BO4)
for held-for-invesment boans Crtae B 4 2 5
S A& Docembar 31, 2023 S 76 % 3437 8 3602 § T0SK
Intangible Assels by Type
ACL fov loara o totel HE| loans Horramanizable Amonirsbla
Monacenusl HEY inans o tntal M2 loans P e A
AL lex bars 10 ronascfual HET e & oy A AT Ay Armoariaion
At Dscambar 31, 2023 . o
Empl-n}rn Loans Managemar cortnesis 4 213 3 24£8 § b
Cuniomes relalior-ships — B,T63 4,582
M-':wm_ Al 5 Trace ranves - 787 107
F i e Furad Fured — '.‘Hn-r a— M s
Courrenty senploped by 1he Fams' 3 FETTY a0z Tats] 3 AL ] hlsh 3 3847
Ho longer smpioyed by the Sims’ B2 oF Al Dacambar 31, 2022
Exployss bans 5 440§ 4120 Wanageman corirecis 2110 45 &
AL e (136 Cuklamied milaticeabipn = R ADeE
Emplowiss ans, re: o ACL 5 4378 § 358 Trmce ranss = 36 151
Rsmairing mepaymerd erm, seghted Criiar = 14 Ll
WG i RArs EE 5.8 Total 5 Elm k1 mI61 § ‘E

1 Theks ks aon pradorinanty aamen
2 Thass kang s pradersinanty pasd dus i & peried of 80 days & ricen
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Intangibla Assats Estimated Future Amortization Expansa

A1
£ 2y e Dacember 31, 2023
2024 5 L
2025 dzs
026 Ha
2na7 Ha
2028 i

The Firm's anmanl poodwill and non-amortizable miangible
assel Imparment testing as of July 1, 2023 did not indicate
any impairment. For more information, see Mote 2.

11. Other Assets—Equity Method Investments
and Leases

Equity Mathod Investments
A1
Docembse 31, Deosnshar 31
1 mE 2023 Fiire
Invesiments 3 s
Fameon L T
| o [Rsa) -3 i £ M 5 1

Equity method investments, other than mvestments n ceftsin
fund interests, are summarized above and are inchuded
Oither assets in the balance sheet with related income or loss
included in Cther revenues in the income statement. See “Net
Asset Value Measurements—Fund Interests™ i Note 4 [or the
carmving valee of certam of the Firm's fund imterests, which
are composed of general and limited parmership mierests, as
well as any related carried imerest

Japanese Securities Joint Venture

5 it miine 0
Incomes (Basl om PaoesTeat i WUMES  § 129 % as £ 18

The Fiem and Musubishi UF) Financial Group, Ine
("MUFG™) formed o pomt venture in Japan comprising their
respective myestment banking and securities businesses by
forming two joint venture companies, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan
Stanley Securities Co., Lid ("MUMSS™) and Morgan Stanley
MUFG Securiies Co. Ltd. (“MSME™ (collectively, the
“Jomnt Venture™). The Firm owns a 408 economic inferest in
the Joint Venture, and MUFG owns the other 6084,

The Firm's (P46 voting nterest in MUMSS is accounted for
undder the cquity method within the Instinutional Securities
business sepment w15 mcluded i the equity methesd
investment babances above. The Fim consoledates MSMS
into the Institutiona] Securities business ssgment, based on its
51% voling mierest.

The Firm engages in transaétions m the ordinary course of
business with MUFG and its affiliates; for example,
inwvestment banking, finencial advisory, sales and trading,
denvatives, investment management, lending, secuntization
and other financial services transactions. Such tansactions are
on substantially the same terms as those that would be
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Morgan Stanley

available to unrelated third parties for comparable
Irnsactions.

Lenses

The Firm’s leases are principally non-cancelable operating
real estale benses.

Balance Sheet Amounts Related to Leases

M Al
Dwcembar 31, December 31,
§ i o flired fres
Ot nsats—ROU aoets 1 4,368 % 4013
O Rabdi e 80 SCOMLST BN SE—
Lotess bl AT 4.501
Wiagh!ad averaga!
Foamiaiieg baass bams, in years &y ik
1 Driscoent s 40 % ad %%
Loasa Liabilities
At At
Ducember 31, Decembs 31,
Anemon ] o
M % &
ma 1 13 ThS
M 24 &3
M2h Tl Lo
Har TE ]
poiF2:) B dh2
Tharas'er AT 1,747
Tl Lncsacnaad cash Tras AN bl
NPT NENEM | RACLE §ret)
Amours on balanos shea! ] sA1T 3 4501
G bnases mlymwt 5 248 5 am_
Loase Costs
§ 11 malons Fair s 23 ;T
Fludel 353 £ 545 A5 AR
anable 2o’ 06 ] 167
Lesa: Eutisana incoma {18 [Ed] L]

Toisl lesss Gosl nat § 11M £ 1004 5 1033

1. Inchelis Sorumsn miny maTRsnancs chigin ahd Sther wiriabie touts fol ched
i1 s risureriaed o ROLT rdats Sncl lice kaees

Cash Flows Statement Supplemental Information

# i o 3 M2 202
Coaslh ool —Laa e labdites $  m2 8 A £ Ao
Monsmashe=F0L] Futets recnrded foF s

e o 1055 B4 &TH

Ogeupancy  lease apreements, 1 addition 10 base rentals,
generally provide for rent and operating experse escalations
resulting from increased assessments for real estate taxes and
other charges.
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12. Deposits
Daposits
At A

December 31, December 31,
T4 e e | 2032
Swingh ard defmand deposits 5 288,252 § 309 53
T depeets. G3,558 P
Tedal depasits 5 354804 % A8 B4R
Dieposits subjec: i FONG insumncs 5 276,600 & A
Deposlts et subpest o FOC insuranoe 1 5206 § oL T2
Time Daposit Maturitios

L1
Cecember 31,

2024 3 el
025 A6
2026 Lrm
2027 LTET
028 L7
Thare et a3
Todal 5 63552

Uninsured Non-U.5. Time Deposit Maturities

At
Dpcsmbar 31

;rr.-rﬂ;r- _ﬂ_t‘l_
Loss than 3 morts § 1,602
F -8 morths B4
& « 12 months 381
Owver 12 months &8
Total ] 3871

-

Deposits in U.S. Bank Subsidiaries from Non-U.5. Depositars

At December 31, AL Dwcambaer 31,
] o7 e
Deposit in US, bank subsidisses.
from non-LLE, deposiion 5 LET-H 1220

121
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Morgan Stanley
13. Borrowings and Other Secured Financings

Maturities and Terms of Borrowings
P! Compssry 1 a4

M M

1
— e R e omo e
gl st ioiien. of 07 o (v baka:
Mesd tZmorths  # o~ 83— B B4 3 NS B 1138 5 LRL
Original matiriies. greatsr than sne yase
b §
o] 53338 5 3 5 BOT SWAI B IS Bz
0 WA DM 2855 W03 35823 05
P T 1ATE AT a4 8z e
e WA MT 4T3 spe3 2308 58
] TS 3 e wies . 15 4
Thasaniar EPAN BT BEE ZRR4Y 22T 8 53
Toasl B30 § BATE IA00T SSREN § MITIZ 5 F[SA

i

g e
e RS BAN RIW MW 8% 2%

1 rulﬂflﬂbhw“luhlmwﬁlﬂp-w anap-down dnd o Sgon

2 Yh%mmwmmwwqmpnwpl
o, inchufing SOFR and federal buncts rtes in S diien i cediien NS Cairied

o wakod wih el i, Beikaic] B3 the

[l than ne e Wisghted
wmﬂnnﬂnﬂ.—dﬂm@us andd non S, dolle kel caes and

snchiches fnancal wetnamsnts I8 wlech ths tee valis opon wies elecied Watially
ol of thew variabde mils nobes issued by silsadeies e camed of T epkis S0 8

g e g SOPOn B ol kgl
Borrowings with Original Maturities Graater than Ona Yoar
At A1

Dacamber 31, Decembar 31,
Ll ] - |
Sarior 3 s 5§ zRiEET
Sadeinae 12,970 12200
Total §  DE0SAd §  FRISAT
Weighing average Stated marity, an yeans (3] LX)

Certmin senior debd securitics are denomimated i various non-
115, dollar currencies and may be structured to prm'i.d-c a
refurn that 5 hnked 1o equity, credit, commodity or other
indices (e.g.. the consumer price ndex). Sensor debt also may
be structured to be callsble by the Firm or extendible at the
option of holders of the senzor debi securities

The Fim "s Borrowings include notes camed and managed en
a fair valee basis. These inchude nstruments whose payments
and redemption values aré hnked to the performance of a
specific ndex, o basket of stocks, a specific equity security, a
commodity, m credit exposure or basket of credin exposures;
and imstruments with vanous imerest rate-related featunes,
including  step-ups, step-downs and zero coupons. Also
included are unsecured contracts that are not classified as
OTC derivatives because they fail initial net investment
eriter@. To minimize the exposure from such nstruments, the
Firm has entered into various swap contracts and purchased
options that effectively converl the bomowing costs nto
floaning rates. The swaps and purchased options used 1o
economically hedge the embedded features are derwvatives
andd alse are camed a1 far valwe, Changes m fair value related
to the notes and economic hedges are reported in Trading
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reveres. See Motes 2 oand 5 for further information on
berrowings carried at fair value.
Sanior Dabl Subject ta Put Options of Liguidity Oblig#tions

At |
December 31, Decembaer 31,

F by A fro ik | 20eT
Pt egitions ekt in ety & 5 1571 % 496
Liguisty ohligatiors’ g 3166 5 242
] g o e ¥ sl g
Subordinated Debt

hEn Fires
Conraciusl weighisd Feerips Soupon 43 %, 41 %

Subordinated debt generally is issued 1o meet the capital
requirements of the Firm or s regulated subsidiaries and
primarily s UZS  dollar denominated Matuntes of
subcrdinated debt range from 2025 to 2038,

Rates for Borrowings with Original Maturities Graater tham

One Yoar
. AiCwoemberdf,
FiiFa] 3T Fores )
Commacual weighied averegs coupon” ME  OIIW LTS

Wmmm l-"!llrwh:rl

. Weighind avemgs coupon wi calhalsied ulllicng U S wnd non U 5. dolsl indises
Fnvrn e sk e o Wittt sl re Do vokon Stz won mbeciac

45% Si%N 8%

In general, cther than securilies inventories and customer
balances financed by secured funding sources, the majanty of
the Firm's assets are financed with a combanation of deposits,
short-term funding, floating rate bong-term debt or fixed rate
long-termy debt swapped to o Moating rate. The Firm uses
interest rate swaps 1o more closely match these bomowings 1o
the duration, holding period and imerest rate charactenstics of
the assets being funded and to manage interest rate rsk. These
swaps effectively convert certain of the Firm's fixed rate
borrowings into floating mie obligations. In addition, for non-
iP5, dollar currency borrowings that are nol used to fund
assels i the same cumrency, the Firm has entered into
currency swaps that effectively convert the bomowings mio
LS, dollar obligations

The Firm's use of swaps for assel and lability management
affects its effiective average bormowing rate.

Othar Sacured Financings

L1 L
Decembar 31, Decsmber 11,

_Shﬂh"l 2023 202
Driginal maiundes:
O yair of lass g 5732 § bl
Graatar than one yaar &5 L4
Tedal 5 12655 § 8, 1h8
Trars'srs of asats aocountsd for &

saouned firarangs 5348 1119
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Maturitios and Terms of Other Secured Financings®
M Db’ 31, 3009 A
Fiied " Dracemnber 31,
5 iy i Fae Toisl i
Crginal maturitien of one year of lass:
Maat 12 mectks 3 8% — 8 & % s
Ixighll maniritas rllhu thin one ru-r
223 1 & 300
24 3 — % 85,085 § 5,083 M
LG - o5 95 LEd]
ik L] ar a3 F
i - - = -
A - FLT] FLT] =
Tharas!ier 7T 1,088 1,093 852
Total 3 42 § BEr  § AT % 6518
wiﬁm |m-mu‘ N Bl % 6.6 % 49%

1. Exchudas rans‘sis of asssis soonied for as senasd Snancings  Ses subsequan

Fabin
2 Variable rate other secunsd feancings. bear inberes! basad on a vaniely of indices,

o o indices
3 inchudes ondy pfes secunsd fnancings Wil orignal mahaies grester
W“#mh:ﬂﬂlﬂﬂnq WS awd nonll S ol
wl#ll'ﬂ i that are Brkoscd b wesn- intisteed
mmhma—hmmmm

Other secured [inancings mclude the habilities related 10
collateralized notes, trnsfers of financial assets that are
accounted for as financings rather than sales and consolidated
VIEs where the Firm is deemed to be the pnmary beneficiary.
These liabalities are generally pavable from the cash flows of
the related assets accounted for as Trading assets. See Note 15
for further information on other secured financings related to
VIEs and securitization activilics

Maturities of Transfers of Assels Accounted for as Secured
Finangings'

At Al

Dacgambar 31, Cecemsbar 31,
1 vy 20T fiirrs
fuirs] 5 SET
24 H 748 4
25 El &0
26 an b
027 3 2
@neA 11 —
Trarester - 12
Total § 8,640 % 1,118

1 Exchudes Sacurition sold urdar agrascsnts b isgurciis e Sacmities snnd

For transfers of assets that fail o meet sccountms critena for
a sale, the Firm continues to record the assets and recognizes
the associzted linbilines in the balance sheet,
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14. Commitments, Guarantees amd

Contingencies
Commitmants
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Since commitments associated with these instruments may

expire umesed, the amounts shown do not necessanly reflect

the actual future cash lunding requirements.

Types of Commitments

Lowncdiveg  Comimitnierts. Lending commitments primasily
represent the notional amount of legally binding obligations to
provide funding to clients for different types of loan
transactions. For syndications thal are led by the Firm, the
lending commitments accepted by the borrower bt not yel
closed are net of the amounts agreed to by counterparties that
will participate in the syndication. For syndications that the
Firm participates in and does not lead, lending commitments
secepled by the borrower but not vet clesed inclede only the
amount that the Firm expects i will be allocated from the lead
synadicate bank. Due 1o the nature of the Firm's obligations
under the commitments, these amounts include certain
commitments participated to thard parties.

Forward-Swarting  Secured Financing Recervables.  This
amount includes secuntics purchased under agreements to
resell and secunties borrowed that the Fum has entered inta
priar to the balance sheet date that will settle after the balance
sheet date. These transactions are primanly secured by
collateral from US. government agency securities and other
sovereign government obligations when they are fundead

Central Cownterpanty,  These commitments relate to the
Fum's membership i certain  cleanmghouses and  are
contingent upon the default of & clearinghouse member or
other siress events
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Underwriting Commitments. The Firm provides underwnting
commilments in connection with its capilal rasing sources to
a diverss group of corporate and other instibtional clients,

Investmenmt Activities.  The Firm sponsors several non-
consolidated inwestment management funds for third-party
investors where at ypically acts as general partner of, and
nvestment adviser 1o, these funds and typreally commits 1o
mvest @ minoity of the capital of swch funds, wih
subseribing third-party invesiors contribating the majority.
The Firm has contractual capital commitments, puarantess
and counlerparty  armngements  with respect o these
investment mansgement funds.

Letters af Credit and CGher Finamerad Guarantees The Firm
has outsianding letters of credit and other financial guarntees
wssued by third-party banks to certmn of the Finm's
counterparties. The Firm &= contingently liable for these letters
of credit and other financial guarantees, which are primarnly
used to provide collueral for securities and commodities
traded and 10 satsly vanous mangin requirenaents m lew of
depositing cash or seeurities with these counterpariies.

Guarantees
2 Sk Decmber 3. 2030
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Types af Guarantees

Newe-Credit Derivatives. Certain derivalive contracts meet the
aceounting definiion of a puarantee, mcluding certain written
options, contmgent-forward contmcts and COE (see MNote 6
regarding credit dervatives in which the Firm has seld eredit
protection to the counterpanty which are excluded from the
previous table). For non-credit derivative contracts that meet
the accounting definition of a guarantes the notional amount
13 used as the maximum potential payout for certain denvative
contricts, such as wrilten imlerest rate caps and written foreign
currency options. The Firm evaluates collateral requirements

for all denvatives, mcluding denvatives that do not meet the
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accounting definition of & guarantee. For the effects of cash
collateral and counterpary netting, see Note 6,

In certan situations, collateral may be held by the Firm for
those contracts that meet the definition of a puarantee.
Generally, the Fim =ets collateral requirements by
counterparly 5o that the collateral covers varows ransachons
and products and 15 not allocated specifically o individual
contracts. Also, the Form may recover amounts related 1o the
underlying asset delivered to the Firm under the derivative
contract,

Stanghy Letters of Credit and Cther Financial Guaranfees
Issned Generally, in connection with its lending businesses,
the Firm provides standby letters of credin and other fnancial
gumrantees to counlerpariies. Such armngements represent
oblgations 10 make pavments to thard parties i the
counterparty fails 1o fulfill s obligation under & bomowing
arrangement or other contractieal obligation. A majority of the
Firm™s standby letters of credit are provided on behalf of
counterparties that are mvestment grade. I the counterpanty
fails 1o fulfill its contractual obligation, the Firm has access 1o
collateral or recourse that would approximate ts oblization.

Market Valwe Guorantees, Markel value guaramees are issued
to guarantee timely payment of a specified return 1o mvestors
in certain  affordable howing tax credit funds These
guarantees are designed 1o refurn an investor's contribution 1o
a fund and the investor's share of tax losses and e credits
expected to be generated by a fund

Liguichty Facilites The Frm has entered o liquedity
facihities with SPEs and cther counferparties, wherehy the
Firm is required to make certain payments if losses or defaulis
cocur, Primanly, the Frm acts as Diquedity provider 1o
municipal bond securitization 5PEs and for stand-alone
municipal bonds in which the holders of beneficial imteresis
issued by these SPEs or the holders of the individual bonds,
respectively, have the right to tender their interests for
purchase by the Firm on specified dates a1 a specified price.
The Firm often may have recourse to the underlying assets
held by the SPEs i the event payments are required under
such liguadaty facilities. as well as make-whole or recourse
provisions with the tnet sponsors. The recourse amount often
exceeds the maximum potential payout amount of the
guarantee. Substantially all of the underlving assets in the
SPEs are mvestment grade, Liquidity facilities provided 1o
mumcipal tender option bond trusts  are  classified as
denvatives.

Whole Loan Sales Guaramfves, The Firm has provided, or
otherwise agreed 1o be responsible for, representations and
warranties regarding certain whole loan sales. Under certain
circumstances, the Firm may be reguired to repurchase such
assets or make other payments related to such assets if such
representateons and warmanties are breached. The Firm's
maxmum potential pavoad related 10 such representations and
warranties 15 equal tothe current UPB of such loans. Since the
Firm no longer services these loans, it has no mformation on
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the cument UPB of those loans, and, accordingly, the amount
included i the previous table represents the UPE at the time
of the whole loan sale or at the tme when the Firm last
serviced any of those foans. The current UPB. balances could
be substantially lower than the maimum potential payout
amount incleded i the previous table, The related habalny
primarily relates to smles of loans w the fedesa] mongage
AZCTICICS.

Secnrfization Representaiions and Warranties, As part of the
Firm's  Imstitutiona]l  Securities business  segment’s
securitizations and related activities, the Firm has provided, or
otherwise apreed to be resporsible for, representations and
warranties  regarding  certain assets  tramsferred  in
securitization transactions sponsored by the Firm, The extent
ansd mature of the representations and warranties, 1f any, vary
among different secuntizatins. Under certan circumstlances,
the Firm may be required to repurchase certain assets or make
other payments related to such assets if such representations
arkd warranties are breached. The maximum potential amount
of future pavments the Firm could be reguired 1o make would
be equal to the curent oulstanding balances of, or losses
associated with, the assets subject to breaches of such
representations and warranties. The amount incleded m the
previeas table for the maximum potential pavout includes the
curreni UFE or historical losses where known and the UPB at
the time of sale when the current UPB is not known.

CGeieral Parteer Guaraniess, As a genéral panttner in cerlamn
investment manasgement funds, the Firm receives cedain
distributions from the parneships when the retum excesds
specified performance tarpets according 1o the provisions of
the partnership mgreements. The Firm may be required to
return all or a portion of such disnbubons 1o the limited
partners in the event the limited panners do not achieve a
certain retum as specified in the vanious parnership
agreements, subject to certain limitations

Cllasit Clearing Grargtees The Fimm 15 8 sponsoring
member of the Government Securtties Davision of the FICC's
Sponsored Clearing Model. Clients of the Firm, as sponsored
members, can mansact in overnight and term securities
repurchase and resale agreements, which are cleared through
the FICC. As sponsoring member, the Firm guarantees to the
FICC the prompt and full payment and performance of is
clients” obligations. In 2020, the FICC™s sponsored clearing
medel was updited such that the Firm could be responsible
for hguidstion of a sponsored member’s account  and
guarantees any resulting loss 1o the FICC in the event the
sponsored member fals to fully pay amy et bguidation
amount due from the sponsored member to the FICC
Accordingly, the Firm's maxmum potential pavout smount
reflects the total of the estimated net liquidation amounts for
sponsored member accounts. The Firm minimizes credit
exposure undder this guarantes by oblaming a secusiy inlerest
s sponsored member  clients”  collateral and ther
contractual nghts under sponsored member transactions.
Therefore, the Firm's exposure is estimated to be an amount
substantially lower than the maximum potential payout
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amount. The collateral amount 1n which the Firm has a
securily inderest is approximately equal to the macimum
potential payout amount of the guarantes,

(ther Guarantees and Indemmnitics

In the normal course of business, the Fum provides
gumrantees and indemnifications in a varety: of (ransactions,
These provisions generally are standard contractual terms
Centain of these guaranices and indemnifications are
described below:

+ Indemnities. The Firm provides standard indemnities 1o
counterparties for certain contingent exposures and taxes,
including 175, and foreign withholding taxes, on interest
and other payments made on derivatives, securities and
stock lending transmctions, certain annuily  procucts and
other fimancial amangements. These indemmity payments
could be required based on a change in the tax laws, a
chunge in inerpretation of applicable tex mdings of
change in factusl circumstances. Cerlain contmels contain
provisions that enable the Firm to terminate the agreement
upon the occumence of such events The Firm may also
provide indemnitics when it sells a business or assets o a
thard-party, purstiant 1o which it indemmfies the thrd-party
for losses meurred on assets acquired or habilities assumed
or dus 1o actions taken by the Firm prior to the sale of the
business of assets, The Firm expects the risk of loss
associated with indemnities related to the sale of businesses
or assets to be remote. The maximum potentanl amoum of
future payments that the Firm could be required to make
under these indemnifications cannol be estimated.

Exchange'Clearinghouse Member Guarariees. The Firm is
a member of vanows exchanges and clearinghouses that
trade and clear securities and'or derivative contracts.
Associated with its membership, the Firm may be required
1o pay a certain amount as determined by the exchange or
the cleannghouse i case of a default of any of its members
of pay a proportionate share of the fmancial obhgations of
another member that may default on its oblipations to the
exchange or the cleannghouse. While the rules governing
different exchange or clearmghouse memberships and the
forms of these guarantess may vary. i general the Firm's
ohlipations under these rules would anise only if the
exchange or cleaninghouse had previously exhausted its
FeSMITCES.

In addition, some cleannghouse mles require members 1o
assume a proportionate share of losses resulting from the
cleannghouse’s investment of guarantee fund contributions
and mitial margin and of other losses unrelated 1o the
default of a clearing member, if such losses exceed the
specified resources allocated for such purpose by the
cleannghouse.

The maxmum potential payoul under thes: rules cannot be
estimated The Firm has not recorded any contingent
liability in s {fmancel statements for these agreements and
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believes that any potertial requirement to make pavments
under these agreements is remote.

* Merper and Acquisition Guaranives. The Firm may. from
time to time, in its robe as imvestment banking advisor be
required to provide guarantees in connection with certain
European merger and acqusition transsctions, 1§ reguired
by the regulating authorities, the Firm provides a guarantee
that the acquirer in the transaction has or will have
sufficient funds to complete the transaction and would then
be required to make the scquisition payments in the event
the acquirer’s [unds are insulfictent at the completion date
of the transaction. These amangements generally cover the
time frame from the transaction offer date to its closing date
and, therefore, are penerally short term in nature. The Firm
believes the Iikelihood of any payment by the Firm under
these amangements Is remole piven the level of its due
diligence 1 its role as investment banking advizor

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, the Firm
guarantees the debt andor centmin rading  obligations
{including obligations associated with dervanves, foreign
exchange contracts and  the settlement of physical
commodities) of certain subsidianies, These guarantees
generally are entity or product specific and are requared by
investors or treding counterparties. The activities of the
Firm's subsidiaries covered by these puarantees (including
any related debt or trading obligations) are incleded in the
Nnancial statem ents.

Finance Swbsidiany

The Parent Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the
securiies issuved by Morgan Stanley Finance LLC, a wholly
owned lnance subsichary, No other subsiciary of the Parent
Company guarantees these seeurities.

Contingencies
Legal

In addiion 1o the matiers described below, in the normal
courss of business, the Firm has been named, from time 1o
ume, a% o Jdefendant in varous legal actions, including
arbitrations, class actions and other litigation, ansing in
connection with its activities as & global diversified financial
services instrtution. Certain of the actual or threatened legal
achions inclede chums for substantial compensatory and/or
puniive damages or clams for indeterminate amounts of
damages. In some cases, the third-party entities that are, or
would atherwise be, the prmary defendants in such cases are
bankrupt, in Onancil distress, of may nol honor applicable
ingemnification obligations. These actions have included,
are not limited to, antitrust clams, claims under various false
claims act states, and matters ansmg from our sales and
trading businesses and our activitses in the capital markets.

The Firm s also involved, from tme 1o time, in other reviews,
investigattons and proceedings (both formal and mformal) by
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governmental and self-regulatory agencies regarding the
Fimm®s business, and mnvolving, ameng other matiers, sales,
trading. financing, prime brokersge, market-making activities,
investment  banking  advisory  services, capnal markels
activities, financil products o offerings  sponsored,
underwritten or sold by the Firm, wealth and imvestment
management  services, and accounting and  opemtional
matters, certain of which may result in adverse judements,
settlements, fines, penalties, disporgement, restitution,
forfeiture, injumetions, limitations on our ability to conduct
certann business, o other reliel.

The Finm contests liability and'or the amount of damages as
appropriate i cach pending matter.  'Where  available
information indicates that i is probable s hability had been
incurred a1 the date of the financial siaterments and the Firm
can reasonably estimate the amount of that loss or the mange
of loss, the Finn accrues an cstimated loss by a charge to
income, including with respect 1o certain of the individual
proceedings or investipations descnbed below

£t e 2023 mez 2021
LLagal sxperses. 5 488 5 443 § 87

The Fimm's legal expenses can, and may in the furure,
fluctuste from period 1o penod, given the curment env ironment
regarding government or self-regulatory agency mvestigations
and private htigation affecting global fimncial services firms,
inchading the Firm

In many legal procecdings and mvestigations, it 15 inherently
difficult to determine whether any bss @8 probable or
reasorably possible, or to estimate the amount of any loss. In
addition, even where the Firm has determined that a bess 1=
probable or reasonably possible or an exposure to loss or
range of loas exists in excess of the liability already accrued
with respect 1o a previously recognized loss contingency, the
Firm is often unable to reasonably eatimate the amount of the
loss or range of loss. 1015 particularly difficult 1o determine of
a loss 15 probable or reasonably possible, or o estimate the
amount of loas, where the factual record is being developed or
contested or where pluntiffs or government entities seek
substantial or mdeterminate damages, resttution, forfeiture,
disgorgement or penaltiies. Numerous issues may need to be
resodved In an investigation or procecding  before a
determination can be made that a loss or additional loss (or
range of ks or range of addivonal loss) is probable or
reasorably possible, or w estimate the amount of loss,
including through  potentially  lengthy  discovery o
determination of impentant factual matcers, determination of
issues relmted 1o class certificatson, the ealculation of damages
or other reliel, and consideration of novel or unsenled legal
questions relevant to the proceedings or investgations in
question

The Firm has identified below any mdividual proceedings or

investigatioms where the Firm believes a matenal loss {or
where an accrual has occurred, a material loss beyond the
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amount already accrued) to be reasonably possible. In many
legal proceedings in which the Firm has determined that a
material loss (or where an scorual has ocoumed, a matenal
loss bevond the amount already accrued) is reasonably
possible, the Firm i3 unable to reasonably estimate the loss or
range of loas, There are other matters m which the Firm has
determined a loss or range of loss 1o be reasonably possible,
but the Firm does not believe, based on curment knowledge
and after consultation with counsel, that such bosses could
have a material adverse effect on the Fum's financial
statements a5 a whale, although the oculcome of such
proceedings or iwvestmations may sigmiicantly impact the
Firm's businéss o resulls of operations [or any particular
reporting period, or cause significant reputational hirm,

While the Firm has adentified below certain proceedimgs or
investigations  that the Firm  believes to be material,
individually or collectively, there can be mo assurance that
material losses will not be incurred from claimis that have not
vel been ssserted or those where potential losses have nod vet
been determined 1o be probable or reasonably possible

Block Trading Matter

On January 12, 2024, the US. Anomey's Office for the
Southern District of New York ("USAO™) and the SEC
announced they had reached setilement agreements with the
Firm in connectian with their investigations into the Firm's
blocks business. Specifically, the Firm entered into a three-
veur non-prosecution agreement (NPA™) with the USAO that
included the payment of forfeiture, restitution, and a eriminal
fine for making false statements in connection with the sale of
ceriain block trades from 2018 through August 2021 The
NPA required the Firm 1o sdmit responsibality for cenain acts
of is emplovees and to conlinue to cooperate with and
provide certam information to the USAO for the term of the
agreement, Additonally, the SEC charged the Firm wah
vielatons of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule
10b-5(b) thereundder for the disclosure of conladential
information about block trades and also violations of Sectien
156g) of the Exchange Act for the faidure to enforce s
policies  concerning  the mususe of materml non-public
information relsted to block trades As part of the SEC
agreement, the Firm pad disgorgement and a civil penalty.
After the agreed-upon credits were applied, the Fim paid a
fcedal amount of approximately 5249 million under both
seftlements. The Firm alse faces potential civil labilny
arising from claims that have been or may be asserted by,
among others, block transaction participants who contend
they were harmed of disadvantaged including, among other
things, as & result of a share price decline allegediv caused by
the activities of the Firm and'or its employess, or as a result
of the Firm's andior 11s emplovees’ falure 10 adhere to
applicable lews and regulations. In addition, the Firm has
responded to demands from sharcholders under Section 220
of the Delaware General Corporation Law for books amd
records concemmg the mvestizations.
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The Firm and other frumcial mstiigions are respondimg 1o 2
number of governmental investigations and civil hitgation
matters related o allegations of anticompetitive comduet in
various aspects of the financial services ndustry, ncluding
the maters described below

Beginning in February of 2016, the Firm was named as &
defendant in multiple purponed antitrust class actions now
consolidated inle a single proceeding m the United States
Distnet Coun for the Southern Dhstrict of New Yok
(“SDNY™) stvled In Re: Imioresi Rate Swaps Antitrust
Littgation. Plaintuflfs allege, inter alia, that the Firm, together
with a number of other firencial instiution defendants,
vipluted 105, and Mew York state antitrase laws from 2008
through Diecember of 2016 in connection with their alleged
efforts to prevent the development of electronic exchange-
based platforms for interest rate swaps trading Complaints
were filed both on behall of 8 purponted class of investors
who purchased interest rate swaps from deflendants, as well as
on behalf of three operators of swap execution factliies that
allegedly were thwarted by the defendants in their efforts 1o
develop such platforms. The consolidated compluints seek,
amang cther relief, certification of the mvestor clas of
plaintiffs and treble damages. On July 28, 2007, the court
granted in part and denied in part the defendants” motion to
dismigz the compliints. On December 15, 2023, the cour
denred the cluss pluntiffs" moton for class certification. O
December 29, 2023, the class plantiffs petitioned the United
States Court of Appeals for the Second Crrount for leave 1o
appeal that decision

In August of 2007, the Firm was named as a defendant in a
purported antitrust class action i the Urnited States District
Court for the SDNY siyled fowa Public Employees’
Retirement Svstem el al v. Bank of America Corporation et
al. Plainuffs allege, inter alm, that the Firm, together with a
number of other financial institution defendants, violated U5,
antitrust laws and New York stale law mn comnection with
their alleped ¢ffarts 1o prevent the development of electronic
exchange-based platforms for secunties lending, The cless
action complamt was Oled on behall of a purported class of
borrowers and  lenders who entered inle stock  loan
transactions with the defendants. The class aetson complaint
secks, among other relief, cenification of the class of
plamtiffs and treble damages. On September 27, 2018, the
court demied the defendants’ motion to dismess the class
action complamt. Plantiffs’ motion for class certification was
referred by the District Court 1o a magistrate judge who, on
Juise 30, 2022, ismued a report and recommendation that the
Distnet Count ertify a class. On May 200 2023, the Firm
reached an agreement in principle to seitle the Iitigation. On
September 1, 2023, the court granted preliminary approval of
the settlement,

The Fim is a defendant in three antitrust class action
complaints which have been corsolidated info one proceeding
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in the United States District Court for the SDNY under the
cepion City of Philadelphia, et al v Bank of America
Covporation. ef af. PlamufTs allege, mter alia, that the Firm,
along with a numbser of other financial institutson defendants,
violated 1.5, antitrust laws and relevant state laws in
connection with alleged efferts to amtificially inflate imterest
rotes for Variable Rate Demand Obligations (“VRDO™)
Plantffs seck, smong other relief, treble damages. The class
action complamt was filed on behalf of a class of municipal
isawers of VRDO for which defendants served as remarketing
agenl On November 2, 2020, the court granted mn part and
dermed in pant the defendants’ motion o dismss the
consolidated complamt, dismusing stale law clams, bt
denying dismissal of the U3 antitrust claims. On September
21, 2023, the court granted pluniffs’ motion for class
centification. On October 5, 2023, defendants petitioned the
United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit for
leave to appeal that decision, which was granted on Febnuary
5, M024,

i Tarn Matters

The Firm and other financial institutions are defending agaims
qui tam litigations browght under various state false clams
statutes, includmg the matter deseribed belew, Such matters
may mvolve the same types of clams pursued in multple
Jurisdictions and may include claims for treble damages.

On August I8, 2009, Relators Roger Hayes and C. Talbot
Heppenstall, Jr, [bed a qui tam action in New Jersey state
court stvled State of New Jersey ex. rel. Haves v. Bank of
America Corp,, et al The complaint, filed under seal pursuant
to the New Jersey False Claims Act, alleged that the Farm and
severnl other underwriters of murnicipal bonds had defrauded
New Jersey issuers by musrepresenting that they would
achieve the best price or lowest cost of capital in connection
with certmn mumcipal bond ssuances, Om March 17, 2006,
the couit emered an order unsealing the complaint. Om
Wovember 17, 2017, Relators filed an amended complant 1o
allege the Firm mispriced certain bonds issued in twenty-three
bond offerings between 2008 and 2017, having a total par
amount of 369 hillion. The complaint secks, among other
relief, treble damages. Un February 22, 2003, the Firm moved
1o dismiss the amended complaint, and on July 17, 2018, the
court denied the Fim's motion. On October 13, 2020,
following a series of velwitary and involuntary dismassals,
Relators limited their claims o certain bonds issued in five
offenings the Firm underwrote between 2008 and 2011,
having & total par amoum of 339 bilion. On August 22,
2023, the Firm reached an agreement in principle to settle the
litigeation

European Mutiors

Tax

In maters styled Case nunrher 153637 and Case number
154353, the Dutch Tax Authority (“Dutch Authority™) is
challenging 1n the Dutch courts the prior set-off by the Firm
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of approximately €124 million {approcamately 5137 million)
plus accrued nterest of withholding 1ax credits against the
Firm's corporation tax liabilities for the tax vears 2007 10
2012, The Duch Authority alleges that the Firm was not
entitled to receive the withholding tax credits on the basis,
inter alia, that a Firm subsidiary did not hold legal utle 10
certain secwrities subject to withhalding 1ax on the relevant
dates. The Dutch Awthority has also alleged that the Firm
faited to provide certain information to the Dutch Authonty
and 1o keep adequate books and records. On Apnl 26, 2018,
the District Court in Amsterdam issued a decision dism issing
the Dutch Awthonity’s claims with respect to centain of the ax
vears m dispute. On May 12, 2020, the Court of Appeal n
Amsterdam granted the Duich Authorily's appeal in matters
re-sivled Case mumber 1800318 and Case momber 1800319,
On January 19, 2024, the Dutch High Coun granted the
Firm*s appeal in matiers re-styled Case mumber 20001884 and
referred the case to the Court of Appeal in The Hapue

On June 22, 2021, Dutch criminal suthorties sought varicaes
decuments m connection with an investigation of the Firm
relsted 1o the cvil claims asserted by the Dutch Authonty
concerning the accuracy of the Firm subsidiany™s tax retums
and the maimenance of its books and records for 2007 1o
2012, The Duich cnnunal ssthonities have  requested
additional information, and the Firm 8 contimuing to respond
to them in connection with their ongoing investigation.

Dranish Underwrising Matier

On October 5, 2007, varous mstitutional investors filed a
claim against the Firm and another bank in a matter now
styled Case mimmber B-803-18 (previously BS 9060082017,
in the City Court of Copenhagen. Denmark concerning their
roles as underwriters of the wateal public offering (“IPO™) i
March 2014 of the Danish company OW Bunker ASS. The
clasm seeks damages of approximately DEER329 million
{approdimately 579 million) plus imerest in fespect of alleged
losses ansing from mvesting i shares in OW Bunker, which
entered mto bankruptey m November 2014, Separately, on
Maovember 29, 2017, another group of institutional mvestors
joined the Fimm and another bank as defendants fo pending
proceedings in the High Court of Eastern Denmark agamst
vanous other partics involved in the PO in a matter styled
Case number B-2073-16. The claim brought against the Firm
and the other bank has been given its own Cave number
B=2504-17, The wrwestors clam damages of approximately
DR Te? millhion (approximately 3114 million) plus inlerest
from the Firm and the other bank on a joint and several basis
with the Defendants 1o these proceedings Both clums are
based on alleged prospectus liability, the second claim alzo
alleges professional hability of banks acting as financial
intermediaries. Om June ¥, 20018, the City Coun of
Copenhagen, Denmark ordered that the matters now styled
Cazwe number B-203-18, Case munber B2073-16, and Case
rraimber B-2364-17 be heand together before the High Court of
Eastern Denmark On June 290 2018, the Firm filed s
defense to the matter now styled Case mumber 8-2564-17, On
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February 4, 2019, the Finm filed its defense to the matter now
sivled Case munber B-R03- 18

UK, Gavernment Bond Matter

The Firm 1s engaging with the UK Competition and Markets
Authonty in connection with 15 investigation of suspected
anli-competitive amangements in the financial services sector,
specifically regarding the Firm's activities concerning certain
liquad fixed income products between 2000 and 2012 Cn
May 24, 2023, the UK, Competition and Markets Authonity
isswed a Swiement of Objections selting oul s provisional
findings that the Firm had breached UK. competition law by
shaning competitively sensitive information in connection
with gilts and it asset gwaps between 2000 and 2012, The
Firm 15 contesting the provisonal OGndings. Separately, on
June 16, 2023, the Firm was mamed as & defendant in a
purported antitrust class action in the United States District
Court for the SONY styled Ohlahomia Firafighters Penston
aind Relivument System v Dewtsche Bank ARttengesellschafi,
el al, oalleging, wter alim, that the Fimm, together with a
number of other financial institutson defendants, violated U.S.
antitrust Jaws in connection with their alleged effort to fix
prices of gilis traded in the United States between 2009 and
2013, On September 28, 2023, the defendanss filked a pomi
molion o dismiss the complaint, which has been fully bnefed.

rther

On Auwgust 13, 2021, the plamtiff in Camelot Evernt Dimven
Frnd a Series of Frank Fumds Trust v. Morgan Stanley & Co,
LLC, er al Dled in the Supreme Coust of the State of New
York, New York County (“Supreme Coun of NY") a
purported class action complaint alleging vielations of the
federal securiies laws againsgt ViacomCBS (~“Viaecom™),
certamn of its officers and directors, and the underwriters,
including the Firm, of two March 2021 Viacom a[ﬁ:rings: a
317 hillion Viacom Class B Common Stock offering and a
51 billion offering of 5.73%% Series A Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock {collectively, the “Offerings™). The complamt
alleges, mter alia, that the Viacom offering documents for
both issuances contained materm omissions beeawse they did
not disclose thal certaan of the underwriters, mcludhng the
Firm, had prime brokerage reluionships and served ==
counterparties o certain denvative  transactions  with
Archegos Capital Management LP, (" Archegos™), a fund with
significant exposure 1o Viacom secunties across multiple
prme brokers. The complant, which seeks, among other
things, unspecified compensatory damages, allepes that the
offenng documents did not adequately disclose the nsks
associated with Archegos's concentrated Viacom pasitions ol
the vanous printe brokers, including that the unwind of those
posiions could have a deleterioas impast on the stock price of
Viacom. Cn Movember 5, 2021, the complaing was amended
o add allegations that defendants failed o disclose that
certain underwriters, meluding the Firm, had intended to
unwind Archeges's Viscom positeons whike simultaneously
distributing the Offerings. On February 6, 2023, the coun
isaued @ decision denving the motions to dismiss as to the
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Firm and the other underwriters, but granted the motion to
dismass as 1o Viacom and the Viacom individual defendants
Cm February 15, 2023, the underwriters, mcluding the Firm,
filed therr notices of appeal of the denil of their motions 1o
digmige, On March 10, 2023, the plainuff appealed the
disrnassal of Viacom and the individual Viacom defendants,
On Janusry 4, 2024, the cournt geanted the plantffs motion
for class certification. On February 14, 2024, the defendants
filed their notice of appeal.

Cn May 17, 2013, the plaintiff n FKB Intermakonal 8.4, i
Liguredatron, ¢t al v, Morgan Stavley, ef al. Oled a complaimt
aginst the Firm and certain affiliates in the Supreme Court of
MY, The complaint alleges that defendants made material
misrepreseniations and omissaons in the sale to plamniff of
certain mortgage  pass-through  cemficates  backed By
securiization rusts conlainmg residential morgage loans
The total amount of certificales allegedly =ponsored,
underwritten andor sold by the Firm to pluntiffs was
approximately 5133 million. The complunt alleges cawses of
sction against the Firm for common law fraud, fraudulem
concealment, ading and abetting fraud, and negligent
musrepresentation, and seeks, among  other  things,
compensatory and punitive damages. On October 29, 2014,
the coun granted n part and dened in part the Firm''s mobon
o disnizs. All claims regarding four certificates were
dismissed After these dismissals, the remaining amount of
certificates allegedly issued by the Firm or sold to plaintiffs
by the Firm was approsimately 5116 million. On August 11,
2016, the Appellate Divisson, First Department affirmed the
trial cowt's order denying i part the Firm's motion o
dismiss the complaint. On July 15, 2022, the Firm filed o
motion for summary judgment on all remaining clums. On
March 1, 2023, the court granted in pari and densed an pan the
Firm’s motton for summary judgment, namowing the alleged
misrepresentations at issie m the case. On March 14, 3023,
the Firm filed itz notice of appeal, and on March 21, 2023,
plaintifTs filed their notice of cross appeal

15 Varable Interest Entities and Securitization
Activities

Ohverview

The Firm is involved with vanous SFEs in the nommal course
of business In most cases, these entities are deemed to be
VIEs

The Firm’s vanable mmterests in VIEs include debt and equity
inferests, commilments, guarantees, derfvative instruments
and certain fees The Firm's involvement with VIEs anises
primarily from:

+ Interests puschased m comnection with markel-making
activities, securities held in s Inwestment securities
portfclio and retained interests held as a result of
securfization  activities, including  re-securilization
ransaciions.
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s Guarantees sssued and residual mierests retamed in
connection with municipal bond securitizations

= Loans made to and invesiments in VIEs that hold debt,

equity, real estate or other assels,

Derivatives entered into with VIEs

Structuring of CLNz or other assel-repackaging noles

desipned 1o meet the investment objectives of clients.

= Other structured transactsons designed to provide tax-
efficient yields to the Firm or its clicnts.

The Firm determines whether it i the primary beneficiary of a
VIE wpon its intial involvement with the VIE and reassesses
whether it 15 the prmary beneficiary on an ongoing basis s
long as it has any contimuing mvolvement with the VIE, This
determination is based upon an analysis of the design of the
VIE. inclading the VIE s struchare and activities, the power 1o
make significant economic decisions held by the Firm and by
other parties, and the vanable mterests owned by the Firm and
olber parties.

The power 1o make the most significant economic decisions
may take a mmmber of different forms in different types of
V1Es. The Firm considers servicing or collateral management
decisions as representing the power to make the most
significant economic decisions in transactions such as
securizanons or CDOs. As o result, the Fim does not
consoladate securitizations or CD¥0s for which it does not act
as the servicer or collateral manager unless it holds certain
other rights to replace the tervicer or collateral manager of to
reguire the hqudation of the entity. If the Fom serves as
servicer or collateral manager, or has cedain other nghts
described in the previous sentence, the Firm analyzes the
inferesis in the VIE that it holds and consolidates only those
VIEs for which it holds a potentially sigmificant mterest in the
VIE

For many transsctions, such fs re-securifization Fansactions,
CLNs and other asset-repackaging medes, there are no
sipmficant economa decisions made on an ongoang basis, In
these cases, the Firm focuses fis analysis on decisions made
prior io the mitial closing of the transaction and ai the
termination of the ransaction. The Firm concluded i most of
these transachions thal decisions made prior to the mutial
closmg were shared between the Fuam and the imtial mvestors
based upon the nature of the assets, including whether the
assets were issued in a transaction sponsored by the Firm and
the extent of the information available 1o the Firm and to
investors, the number, nature and involvement of investors,
olher nphts held by the Firm and investors, the
standasdization of the legal documentation and the bevel of
continuing involvernent by the Firm, inchuding the amount
and 1ype of interests owned by the Firm amd by other
investors. The Firm focused its control decision on any nght
held by the Firm or investors related to the termination of the
VIE Mest re-securitization transactions, CLNs and other
assel-repackaging notes have no such lermnation rghts.

December 2023 Farm 10-K

375/427

oOoOooodn



OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Table of Contenis
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Consolidated VIE Assets and Liabilities by Type of Activity Non-consolidated VIEs
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Consolidated VIE assets and lisbalities are presented in the
previous tables after imercompany climmnations. Generally,
micat assels owned by consolidated VIEs cannot be removed
umlmterally by the Firm and are not available 10 the Firm
while the related lisbilities issued by consolidmed VIEs e
non-recourse 10 the Firm, However, in certan consolidated
VIEs, the Firm either has the umitateral right o remove assets
or provides additional recourse through derivatives such as
todal return swaps, guaraniees or other forms of invelvement

In general, the Firm's exposure to loss in consolidated VIEs is
limited to losses that would be absarbed on the VIE net assets
recoghazed in s fimncial statements, net of amounts
ahsorbed by third-party vanable nterest holders,
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The previous tables include VIEs sponsored by unrelated
particz, as well az VIEs sponsored by the Firm, examples of
the Firm's involvement with these VIEs mnclude its secondary
market-making activities and the secunties held in s
Investment securities portfolio (see MNote 7).

The Firm's maximum exposure o loss is dependent on the
mature of the Firm's vanable interest in the VIE and 15 limated
to the notional amounts of certain lquadity facibities and other
credit support, total retern swaps and written pui options, as
well as the fair valwe of cerain other denvatives and
investments the Firm has made in the VIE,

The Fim's maximum exposure to loss in the previous tables
does not include the offsetting benefit of hedges or any
reductions associated with the amount of collateral held as
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part of a transaction with the VIE or any party to the VIE
directly against a specific exposure 1o loss

Liabahities ssuwed by VIEs generally are non-recourse to the
Fum,

Datall of Mortgage- and Asset-Backed Securitization Assats
AL Decambior 31, 20X Al Deceanbse 01, 2022

Dbt &g Dnabd and
£ it e vﬁi‘ﬂ.‘ LIPS lnilm
Rusiinrtal morgeges § 1THE § 3358 § 2042 5 FLT) ]
Commarcial morgages T4, 500 8,342  frA4 + i
ULE. ipanay enliaserelined

e gage cbiigatnng AT [ 7 T 4T
Ok conmaer or

o oL T SO R -
Total S144508 5 1300 51600 5 13104
Securitizstion Activitics

In @ securitimtion transaction, the Firm tansfers assels
{generally commercml of residentinl mongsee loans of
securiies) to an SPE; sells 1o iwestors most of the beneficial
infteresis, such as nofes or certificates, isswed by the SPE; and,
in many cases, retaing other beneficial interests. The purchase
of the transferred assets by the SPE is Ninanced through the
sale of these interests.

In many secuntization transactions involving commercial
moetgage loans, the Firm transfers a portion of the assets 1o
the SPE with unrelated partees transferring the remaming
assets. In additton, mamnly in secunbization transactions
invedving residential mortgage loans, the Firm may also enter
into derivative transactions, primarily interesi rate swaps or
interest rale caps, with the SPE

Although not obligated. the Firm generally makes a market in
the sacurities issued by SPEs in securitization transsctions. As
a market maker, the Firm offers 1o buy these securilies from,
and sell these securilies 1o, mvestors. Secunitis purchased
through these markel-making activities are nod considered 1o
be retained interests; these beneficial mterests pencrally are
included in Trading assets—Corporate and other delt and are
measured at fair value

The Firm: enters into derivatives, generally interest rate swaps
and interest rate caps, with a senior payment priority in many
sacuritization transactions. The risks associnted with these and
similar derwvatives with SPEs are essentmlly the same as
similar derivatives with non-SPE counterparties and are
managed as part of the Firm's overall exposure. See Note 6
for further infosmation on defrvabive instruments and hedging
aclivaties,

Imvestment Securifies

The Firm holds securities issued by VIEs within the
Imvestment securities portfolio, These securities are com posed

of those related 10 tramsactions sponsored by the federal
morigage agencies and predominantly the most semsor
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securities issued by VIEs backed by student loans and
commercial morigage loans. Transactions sponsored by the
federal mortgage agencies include an explicn or mphicn
guarantee provided by the US. government. Addmionally, the
Firm holds certain commercial mongage-backed securities
insued by VIES retaimed a5 a result of the Firm's secuntiztion
activities See Motz T for further information on the
Investment secunties portfoli

Municipal Tender Cption Bond Trusis

Inn & mumicipal tender option bond trust transaction, the client
transfers & mumcipal bond 1o a trust. The trust 1ssues shon-
term secunties that the Firm, as the remarketing agent, sells 1o
iwvestors. The client generally retains a resadual interest. The
shori-term  secuniies are supported by a lquidity [acality
pursuanl to which the investors may pat their shoer-term
interests. In most programs, a thord-party provider wall
provide such liquidity facility, in some programs, the Fimm
provides this hguadsty faciliny,

The Fim may, in liew of purchasing short-term secunbes for
remarketing, decide to extend a temporary foan to the trust.
The chient can generally termirmte the trarsaction at any time.
The hquidity provider can generally terminate the transaction
upon the cecurrence of certam events. When the tansaction is
terminated, the municipal bond 15 generally sold or retumed 1o
the client, Any losses suffered by the liguidity provider upon
the sale of the bond are the responsibility of the client. This
obligation 15 generally collateralized  Liguidity [acilities
provided to municipal tender option bond trusts are classified
as derivatives. The Firm consolidates any municipal tender
option bond trusts in which it halds the ressdual interest.

Cresdit Protection Purchased throwgh CreditLinked Notes

CLN transactions are designed 1o provide mvestors with
exposire to cértain credit fisk on referenced nssets. In these
transactions, the Firm transfers assets (generally high-qualiy
secunies or money-markel investments) to an SPE, enters
into & derivative transaction m which the SPE sells protection
on an unrelated referenced asset or group of assets, through a
credit derivative, and sells the securities sswed by the 5PE to
investars. In some transactions, the Firm may also enter mto
nferest rale or currengy swaps with the SPE. Depending on
the structure, the assets and liabilities of the SPE may be
consolidned and recognized in the Firm's balance sheet or
accounted for as a sale of assets,

Upon the ocourrence of a credit event related to the referenced
assel, the SPE will deliver securities collateral as pavment 1o
the Firmi, which eéxposes the Fim 1o changes in the
collateral’s vahes,

Deerivative payments by the SPE are collateralized. The risks
associaled with these and similar denvatives with SPEs are
essentally the same as those with non-SPE counterparties amd
are managed as partl of the Firin's overall exposure,
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The Fam invests an anterests ssued by entibies that develop
and own low-income communities {including low-income
housing projects) and entities that construct and own facilities
that will generate energy from rencwable resowrces. The
inieresis entitle the Firm to a share of fax credns and tax
losses generated by these projects. In addition, the Firm has
issued puarantees to Investors i cerlam Jow-meome housing
funds, The guarantees are designed 1o retum an investor's
contrbation 10 & fund and the invesior™s share of Bx losses
and s credits expected 10 be generated by the fund. The
Fum 15 also imvolved with entities designed 1o provide tax-
elficient yields to the Firm or its clients,

Collateralized Lown and Debst bligations

CLOs and CDXOs are SPEs that purchase 3 pool of assets
consisting of corporate lowns, corpomate bonds, ABS or
symthetic exposures on similar assets through denvatives and
s multple tranches of Jdebl and equity securmlies 1o
investors. The Fum underwntes the securiies issued in
certain CLO transactions on behalf of wnaffiliated sponsors
and provides advisory services to these unaffiliated sponsors,
The Fim sells corporate boans to many of these SPEs, in
some cases representmg a sigmifcant portion of the total
assets purchased. Although not obligated, the Fimm generally
makes a market in the securities issued by SPEs in these
transactions and may retam wnesold securities. These benefcial
interests are incheded in Trading assets and are measured al
fair vahue.

Equiny-Linked Notes

ELN transactions are designed to provide investors with
exposure 1o certam risks related to the specili equity security,
equity mdex or other index. In an ELN transaction, the Firm
wvpacally transfers to an SPE either & note issued by the Firm,
the payments on which are hinked 10 the performance of &
specific equily security, equity ndex or other mdex. or debt
securities issued by other companies and a derivative contract,
the terms of which will relate to the performance of a specific
equity security, equity index or other index. These ELN
transactions with SPEs were not consolidated at December
31, 2023 or December 31, 2022
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The previous tables include transactions with SPEs in which
the Furm, acting as principal, transferred financial assets with
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contimuing involvement and received sales treatment The
transferred  assets are camed st fair valee pnor o
securtization, and any changes in fair value are recogmized in
the income stalement. The Firm may act as underwriter of the
benelicial interests issuad by these securitization viehicles, for
which Investment banking revenuwes are recognized, The Firm
may fetain interests in the securitized Mnancial assels as one
or more tranches of the secuntization. Certain retained
interests are carried at fair vabue in the balance sheet with
changes in fair value recognized in the income statement. Fair
value for these mierests 15 memsured using techmques thil sre
consistent with the valuation techmigques apphied to the Firm's
major calegories of assets and liabalitics as desenbed m Notes
2 and 4. Further, as permitted by applicable guidance, certain
transfers of assets where the Fim's oaly continuing
invelvement 15 a derivative are only reported in the following
Assets Sold with Retained Exposure table.

Proceads from Mew Securitization Transactions and Sales of
Loans

£ 1 M oy 03 aE

i tarsacions’ $ 2080 § IS 5 67628
Rataired inlsmsts 4,311 4852 LR i=r
Eaims of compomie loans to CLO SPEs” 7 4 [ ]

T Ml gains on new transachions and sales of cosporale loans o CLE antties ol He
tam o fha s-ale weene 0! makerial for ad pariods pressnind

7 Sponsomd by non APt

The Firm: has provided, or otherwise agreed to be responsible

for, representations and warmanties réegarding certain assetls

transferred in securiization transactions sponsored by the

Firm (see Note 14)

Assets Sold with Ratained Exposune

AL L
Decpmbar 31,  Dacamiuer 31,

Ll N S |- B
Gross cash procesds frem sale of assets” 8 BOTEE 5 40055
Fair valus
Asati wakd 3 82,221 § 47281
Crnrivaivg S3580E MSIGRER in T bal
whasl 1,008 18
Daarcatian e 5 18

1 Tha carping vakss of assets derscognized o e Gme of as apgrsmsles griss
£ prncssds

The Firm enters into transactions in which it sells securnities,

primarily equities, and contemporancously eners  imo

bilateral OTC denvatives with the purchasers of the

securtties, through which 1t retains exposure 1o the sold

SECUrIIEs,
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Morgan Stanley
16. Regulatory Requirements
Regulatory Capital Framework

The Firm iz an FHC under the Bank Holding Company Act of
1956, as amended, and &5 subject io the regulation and
oversight of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (“Federal Reserve™). The Federal Reserve establishes
capital requirements for the Fim, incheding “well-
capitalized” standards, and evaluates the Firm's compliance
with such capital requirements. The OCC estabhshes similar
capital requirements and standards for the Fim's U5, bank
subsicdianies, including, among others. MSBENA and
MSPENA  (wgether, “US  Bank  Subsiiaries”), The
regulatory capital requirements are largely based on the Basel
11 capual standards established by the Bascl Committee on
Banking Superviaton and also mplement certain provisions of
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act In addmon, many of the Firm's regulated subsidianes are
subject o regulatory capital requirements, including regulated
subsichanes repwstered as swap dealers with the CFTC or
conditionally registered as security-based swap dealers with
the SEC or registered as broker-dealers or futures commission
merchints.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Firm s required to mantan minmmum nsk-based and
leverage-based capital ratos  under regulatory  capital
requirements. A summary of the calculations of regulatory
capital and RWA follows,

Risk-Based Repulatory Copirel, Risk-based capital ratio
requirements apply to Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1
capital and Total capital (which includes Tier 2 capital), each
ag p percentage of RWA, and consist of regulatony minimum
required ratios plus the Firm's capatal buffer requirement.
Capital requrements require certamn adjustments (o, and
deductions from, capital for purposes of determming these
oS

CECL Deferral. Beginning on Jamuary 1, 2020, the Firm
elected to defer the effect of the adoption of CECL on its risk-
based and leverage-based capital amounts and ratios, as well
as RWA, adjested average assets and supplementary leverage
exposure calculations, over a five-vear transition percd, The
defermal mpacts began to phase moat 25% per vear from
Jarmary 1, 2022 and are phased-in at 508 from January 1,
2023, The deferral impacts will become fully phased-in
beginning on January 1, 2025
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Capital Buffer Requiremants

Dmcamber

At Al 3, BbE3 ard

Dacaanibad 31, Cacamber 31, Dot 31,
2023 ;o HEE

...._.......... _35"____’5__

.clﬂlﬂﬂhll'ﬁﬂ'l

Captal consanmiion buffar - - 2E%,
08 A 6 A
G5B capial sorchargs 30% 0% 3.0%
CCyd’ o 0% L

1, Tha OB can be sel i 15 2 5% Bl i cusmitly Gal By th Faclansl Possarve o
phis

The capital buffer requirement represents the amount of
Common Equity Tier 1 capital the Firm must mamtan above
the mimimum risk-based capital requirements in order to avoid
restrictions on the Firm®s abslity to make capital distributions,
including the payment of dividends and the repurchnse of
stock, and 1o pay discretionary bonuses o executive officers.
The Firm's capital buffer requirement computed under the
standardized approaches for caloulating eredit nsk and market
risk RWA (“Standardized Approach™) 15 equal to the sum of
the 3CB, G-SIE capital surcharge and CCOyE, and the capital
buffer requirement computed under the applicable advanced
approaches for calculating credit risk, market risk and
operational rigk KWA (" Advanced Approach”™) 1= equal to the
sum of the 2.5% capital conservation buffer, G-SIBE capital
surcharpe and CCyB.

Risk-Based Regulatory Capital Ratio Requiraments

Dcamber
At Al W, 2EY ara
Deecambar 31, Cucamber 31, Decsmied 31,
ulatory 2023 w2 022
MMl Standanired  SUNTARSER]  ASERDED

T

Cammon Exquity
Thr 1 capial
FaE

4.5% 129% 133% 160%

Ther 1 capital
4] Y% 14.4% 14.8% 11.5%

Tocal capital
] 0% 1EA% 188% 1348%

¥ Fisewr s e capial Bufer

i
Resk-Werghted Axvels

EWA reflects both the Firm's on- and ofl-balance sheet nsk,
as well as capimal charges attnbutable 1o the risk of loss
arising [rom the following:

* Credit Risk: The falure of a bomower, counterpasty or
issuer to meet its financial obligations to the Firm,

* Market Kisk: Adverse changes m the level of one ar more
market prices, rates, indices, volahilities, commelations or
other market factors, such as market liquidity; and

+ Operational Risk: Inadequate or faitled processes or systems
from human factors or from external events (e.g., frand,
theft, legal and complance nsks, cvberattacks or damage 1o
phvsical assets),

Dicember 2023 Form 10-K
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Morgan Stanley

The Firmi’s nsk-based capital ratios are computed under both
(i} the Standardized Approach and (u) the Advanced
Approach. The credit nsk RWA calculations between the two
approaches differ in that the Standardized Approach requires
calculation of RWA using prescribed risk weights, whereas
the Advanced Approsch utilizes models to caloudate exposure
amounts and rsk weights, At December 31, X233 and
December 31, 2022, the differcnces between the actual and
required ratio were lower under the Standardized Approach.

Leverape-Based Regulatory Capital Leverage-hased capital
recuirements include a minimum Tier | leverage ratso of 4%,
a minimum SLE of 3% and an enhanced SLE capital buffer
of at least 2%

The Firm's Regulatory Capital and Capital Ratios

Fuq.ln-u .M:Dﬂ-ﬂ'nbu R.lq:l.rl"d
Ratia'

Ll 3, 2 H, 2082
Risk-based capital
Comman Equity Ter 1 capital L ] £ E2ATD
Thar 1 capital TS AL
Terndd copital BBET4 25 578
Tonal FiiA A56,053 44740
mml'igwq e 129% 16.2% §13% 16.3%
Tiar | capital msia 14.4% 1TA%  148% 17.2%
Toad capital mia 164% 1B4%  18A% 103%
N nw unum-:?un. A.D.umgum.
Lawarnge busad caphsl
Acjsted pantge assecs’ $  1N0EEE 5 1180772
Thar 1 lsvarags ratis &£,0% LI LV
Sugplemantany kerage mpoaure® 5 1428552 § 1356400
ELR 5.0% A% 5.5%

1. Finguired ratics arm nclenive of any bufter applicatls os of the date prassnisd
2 Akt avesage assets epresents e dencrinaior of e Ter 1 leeeage o
w-mﬁnmrdwhﬂmafamdﬂh-uhumm
Mhhmn-ﬁmn-wmmm rachrnd By
gesciwill, le wupaiy, i cEvaed hanchs, defieed
Barwft panmicon pleh Seekts, el gen on adle Yo aesets ookl do
mienriicalisen, iwwabments 5 e Fer Swn cagitsl nslneits, Catan defiresd
b st A otte Coplal dech it
3. Supplarraniey vaings soposua 1 i som of Adpsied sverage sels weed n
hTﬂfhﬂrﬁgﬁrﬂnﬂaﬁuwmk 0} for deeabiess
al hhn nnd i el | ik of ol e
mmhmﬂmmmmhmm
orndd sk e repo sigls asaactiona. wnd (8) the coed aguresbend Mmound foo o
Eaarn s sogosinng

1.5, Bank Subsidiaries” Regulatery Capital and Capital
Ratios

The OCC establishies capital requirements for the 175, Bank
Subsidianes, and evaluates their compliance with such caputal
requirements. Regulatory capital reguirements for the U5
Bank Subsidiaries are caloulated m a similar manner to the
Firm's regulatory  capital requirements, ahhough G-3IB
capital surcharge and SCB requirements do not apply to the
115, Bark Subsidiaries.

The OCC's regulatory capital framework mchedes Prompt
Comective  Action  (“PCA”) standards, incleding  “well-
capitalized” PCA standards that are based on specified
regulatory capital ratio minimums, For the Firm 1o remain an
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FHC, its U.5. Bank Subsidiaries must remain well-capitalized
in accordance with the OOC"s PCA standards. In addition,
fwlure by the U5 Bank Subsidianes to mest minimum
capital requirements may resull in certain mandatory and
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could
have a direct matenal effect on the LS, Bank Subsidiaries”
and the Firm's financial statements

At December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, MSBRA and
MEPFENA risk-based capital ratice are based on the
Standardized Approach rules. Beginning on January 1, 2020,
MSBENA and MSPENA elected 1o defer the effect of the
adoption of CECL on risk-based capital amounts and ratios,
as well as RWA, adjusied average assets and supplementary
leverage exposure caleulations, over a [ive-vear transition
periodd. The deferral impacts began to phase inoat 25% per
vear from January 1, 2022 and are phased-in at 3Fs from
January 1, 2023. The deferral mpacts will become fully
phased-in beginning on January 1, 2025,

MS8NAs Regulslory Capital
At Dscombar Al Dacovber
L A i, W33 3. 0

Fan s Asquiemsnt  Aato'  Amount  Rato  Amoum  Rato
Common Equity

Tiar 1 capeal EB% TON ESEE 7% $20043 6%
Tier 1 capital 0% 5% 21925 M7 20043 205%
Toral capital T00%  10.5% 228K ZREYW 208 211 %
Laverage-based capltal

Theer 1 leverage 50w 0% $ 21528 106 % 320043 1001 %
SR EO%  3O0% PISES BINW D00MT B1%
MSPBNA's Regulatory Capital

I, 023 s

L mims Fdreunar. | R e Fass At Fas
Rink-Baped capital

Coamman Equity

Tiar 1 capfal E5%  TO% 10,388 208 % SISAME b %
Toer | capital E0%  B5% 15380 MSAW ISEME LW
Tesal capital 160% 103 % 15678 MW 1545 ArA%
Laverage-hansd capltsl

Tiear | lvwrage 0% 40% 515388 TSW InAE TEN
SLR EO% 0% 15388 TIEN IBAME 74N

1. Ragueed mvos an nchshe 0! a0y bu*ss appcable as of the deis prassnted
Falun b st ihe bufen woulkl ol i resiricons on T Sy & maks

capital tistributions. Inckickng the papmant of dvidands

Additienally, MSENA i3 conditiomally registered with the
SEC a5 a securaty-based swap dealer and 15 registered with the
CFTC as & swap dealer. However, as MSENA is prudentially
regulated as a bank, #s capital requirements contmue to be
determined by the OCC.

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
MDI‘QEI’I S[EH'I[E}I'
rther Hegulatory Capital Hequirements
MS&Co. Regulatory Capital
At o
§ 1% A o beor 31, 2023 D ke 31, A0ET
Mt ol 3 18,421 § 17324
Excass na! cagital 13,676 prdd ]

MS&Co. 15 regstered as a broker-dealer and a futures
commission mercham with the SEC and the CFTC,
respectively, and is registered as a swap dealer with the
CFTC,

A< an Ablemative Net Capital broker-dealer, and in
accordance with Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (*Exchange
Act™) Rule 13¢3-1, Appendix E. MS&Co. is subject to
minamum net capital and tentative net capital requirements
and operates with capital 1n excess of its regulatory capital
requirements.  As o fulures commission merchant and
registered swap dealer, M38Co. iz subject to CFTC capital
requirements. In addition, MS&Co. must notify the SEC if ns
tentative net capital falls below certam levels. At December
31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, ME&Co. excesded its net
capital requirement and had tentative net capital in excess of
the mrnmiiim and notileation requirements

OHher Hegulated Subsidiaries

Certain  other subsidiaries ase also subject o various
regulatory capital regquirements. Such subsidiaries mchsbe the
followmg, esch of which operated with capital 1n excess of
their respective  regulatory  capital requirements as of
Diecember 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, as applicable:

= MSSE, a registered US, broker-dealer and mtroducing
broker for the fistures business, 15 subject 10, respectively,
the minimum net capital requirements of the SEC and
CFTC

MSIP, o London-based broker-denler subsidiary, i3 subjest
to the capital requirements of the Prudential Begulation
Authority (“PRAT). MSIP 15 also conditionally registered
with the SEC as a security-hased swap dealer and registered
with the CFTC as o swap dealer. I8 currently complies with
home-country capital requirements m bew of SEC and
CFTC  capital  requirements pursuant to  applicable
substinuted compliance rules and intenim nosaction relicf,
respeciively.

+ Morgan Stanley Ewrope Holdings SE Growp (“MSEHSE
Group™), ncleding MSESE, a Germany-based broker-
dealer, 15 subject o the capital requarements of the
European Central Bank, BaFin and the German Central
Bank. MSESE is also conditionally registered with the SEC
as a security-based swap dealer and registered with the
CFIC as a swap dealer. It cummently complies with home-
country capital requirements i bew of SEC and CFTC
capital requirements pursuant 1o apphecable substituted
compliance rules and imterim no-action relief, respectively,

MSMS, & Tokvo-based broker-dealer subsidiary, 15 subgest
to the capital requiremenis of the Financial Services

s

&
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Agency. MESMS iz abso registered with the CFTC as a swap
dealer but is cusrently complying with home-coumry capital
reguirements in lieu of CFTC capital requirements pursuant
1o milerim no-action relief

MSECS, a US entity and the Firm's primary non-bank
securiy-based swap dealer, 1 condstionally registered with
the SEC a5 2 security-based swap dealer, registered with the
SEC as an OTC denvatives dealer and registered with the
CFTC as & swap dealer. MSCS 18 subject to the capital
requirements of both regulators

MSCG, a LS, entay, is registered with the CFTC as a swap
dealer and 15 subject 1o its capital requirements.

Certain other U5, and non-17.5. subsidiaries of the Firm are
subject to varicus secusitics, commoditics and hanking
regulations, and capital adegquecy requirements promulgated
by the regulatory and exchange suthorities of the countries in
which they operate. These subsshanes have also consistently
operated with capital in excess of their bocal capital adequacy
requIreMents.

Resirictions on Paymenis

The regulatory capital requirements referred to above, and
certain covenants contained N VANOUS agreements goverming
indebtedness of the Firm, may restrict the Firm's ability 1o
withdraw capital from itz subsidiaries. The following able
represents net assets of consolidated subsidiaries that may be
restricted as to the pavment of cash dividends and advances 1o
the Parent Company

Al Al
Decombar 31,  Decamber 11,
£ by o k] 2022
RasTicind na! asseis ] AR.008 3 45808
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Morgan Stanley
17. Total Equity
Morgan Stanley Sharcholders” Equity
Prefarred Stock

Shares
_Ouisanging: Lmying elus
fammewm g i, o, it S
MnE 2023 e Sl 23 022

Saign
A Adp00 5 5000 3 1480 § Lna
7] 510,882 1,000 ana 08
E 34800 25000 23 B2
F M 00 28000 B ]
I 400,000 25,000 RE 1000
K 40,800 26,000 1064 1,000
L o0 25000 sow 500
M 400,000 1,000 A 430
N 3,000 100000 100 300
o] 52,000 25,000 1304 1,300
s w0 amow  isee 1o
Todal 3 750 3 2,750
Shares mborrad 0 GO0 D00

| Senes C prafwmad siock & hald By MLIFG

The Firm's preferred stock has a preference over its common
stock wpon liquidation. The Firm s preferred stock qualifies s
and & incheded in Tier 1 capatal in accordance with regukatory
capital requirements (sce Note 16)

Dascription of Preferred Stock as of Docamber 31, 2023

B

o

Shama  Shares  Price

Saries 7 Iimsumd pr Sharn e Shans” Drais"

A 44 D00 100§ 25000 Cumsrncl recesmable
[ 1180, A 10 Cumenty iesanabls
E 3 500 L] 26,000  Cursnly recesmabls
E 3000 L] 26,0400 Jaruary 15, 2024
] 0,000 1000 26,0400 Ortobear 16, 2024
K &0 000 1,000 25,00 Apal 15, 2027
L 20,000 LR ] 26,000 January 15, 205
W &0 D00 Mk 100 Sephemnber 15, 2006
K 10066 108 OB Ok 2, BlEkS
o 52 000 1,000 25,000 Janunry 18, 2027
d 40,000 1,000 6000 Oewker 15, 207

1. AN showes iwsusd e non-Ciamalatiee. Cach shars bas 5 par valss of 301, ascept

Sy
2 Dhvidrchs on Sarin & ane bassc en A foating rata. and dhidend on Sacles © L
and 0 g hanscd on s fiwsd rate. Divicderde on all offsr Saries i bassd on i s

- floang raba

9. Sawiws A and © hon nachisarnalle 1t nadarmption price s adcrosd and il
dividierts aghrdiing o whattar deidendy S sctuslly deslared, g B Bad
avducing e dun g mederglisn AL o Sades ae ekl o tha
P i phis iy Seclied and gl dheiterts wp b Bl eckng the
e flemd ' pSepeEn

& Sarws A decd © rm Crmently onSeamable al e Firs cption in whel of in pan
froam fml 0 G Saiies E B mdesmaie, wad ol ol Sanes we
rcieamakian, o e Fam's opion () noshby of i pa. oey e 80 Tne, on ey
il parprnt b O o W0 e iecemption 8 of () i ke Bl nol in paet
ol pey e sdhin 50 days folloeing B mpuisiony capEsl eatmant svant (e
davscribadd b b Iitrres of @l Saers)

5 Ses T i nonovoling petpstual pee'eimed siock Dhidesds on e Senies C
pra‘enead siock e paysbls, on 4 nonolirudsbys basie, a8 wnd I declared by the
Boad ol Dveciors, i cash. of the rain of 19% pav annam of e Bgeidation
prateence of 51 000 par shas

1. T Firrm s Ssries O Profermec Saock on October 29, 20011

T, The P mssd Savies P Prfeesd Shock on Sugeed T 7007
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Roliferaard of Commen Stock Qutstanding

i o 2023 a0z

Shasws cutsianding at baginring of pardod 1,678 1,772
Tresmury Hodk purchases” ral] (134
_th'z Fa | &
Shares outstanding af end of period 4,837 1,675

1 The Fervs Doacd o Damctors him mathoriosd e ppechass = the Fars
cutitanding ook unclie @ shatw mapurctuse  progesn (‘Bha Repueching
Progran™}. n sdclizn 1 the Fum's Shiee Repurchise Ty ok
pamchivi invchade Papurchimas of comeon Sock T gk Lk

2 Ofhes ke rer Al s 1 and arteted Fam emplopes dtssh ks and
issuma o REL conwersions

Share Repurchasas

£ v e 2033 2022
Fiapurchares of common iock Lesier e Fimy's
are Fegsretas Progran

$ 5300 §  GAss

On June 30, 2023, the Firm announced that ns Board of
Directors reauthonzed a multi-year repurchase program of up
e 520 ballion of cutstanding commeon steck, withoat a sel
expiration date, begmning i the third quarter of 2023, which
will be exercised from tme to ume as conditions warrant.

Pursaant to the 3hare Repurchase Program, the Fim
comsiders, among other things, business sepmenl capital
needs, as well a5 stock-based compensation and beneli plan
requirements. Share repurchases under the program will be
exercised from time W tme A prices the Firm deems
appropriate subject to variows factors, including the Firm's
capatal position and markel condinions. The share reparchases
may be effected through open market purchases or privately
negotmted transactions, including through Rule 10b3-1 plans,
and may be suspended at any time,

Commean Shares Cutstanding for Basic and Diluted EPS
1 AW 033 oz M

Wialghtid averige comman shares culilendng,
Barsic 1528 LB 1,788

E¥nct of diutive RSLUx snd FiUs % n 0

\‘Imh-d Evankge common shsres outsianding
:mmmﬂﬂmmdlm 1848 LIFA 1A
Witighisg soscage anidil e commen stock
zhﬂkﬂb {umcuded frsm e compuiation of
B e i 2 3 -

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Morgan Stanley
Dividends

S i ' oWl Shaed Tl Shew’ ol
Preferfad Stock Serisa

A 1522 § BT 51061 § 47 51022 5 44
c 100 62 104 -3 100 Bl
E 1,70 8z 1.mil B 17 [+
F Mg 88 LN LU W ) B
" - - - - s o8
I 1504 G4 s ] 1504 .-
d - - - - 3 "
K 1,463 59 1483 50 1463 =
L 1,218 FL I W ] | 1.5 P
' a0 4 5 F 58 B
s 8,160 7 a0 1B BR300 "
Q 1,083 55 1063 25 o] LF
P 1828 L1 el Fe — —
Torsl Prafarred stock 5 557 § 420 5 483
Comman sieck § 125 $60.0030 8 2on Sha00 & 20 SR

1. Common and Prefamed Sock Svidends we payables quarsdy unkess olhensiss
nofed

2 Anotice of pederphion wa mud o Sees M pre'smed siock on Mowambes 19
071 Devidends declarsd on Seres M ‘oliowang the lsausecs of the nolics of
iR greinacl o InBermsl B and arw sk feger tha 2001
amanty

3 Sewian b i payabls seiannualy ondl Septamber 13, 205 and SeneaSer &l be

eyt ety
4. Secn Mowan payatin secinualy ol M 15, 2000 e thensRer i panpable
ey

Accumilated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Pansaon Cash

AFS ang Flow
Db 11,
i 1] $ (TES} S VRT 5 (hOA) S(2456F 8 — 01063
O during the
presfioed [ ] (s3)  es2 - (1.4
Draciribeisr 31,
20 {1,002} 245 (aE1) 1.7ad) — (302
O] dutiesg e
] [FLr (85T} L] 1445 ) [A181)
Dascaarrisr 31,
202 104} SR s08) M) ) (623
0L ouring the
o Ll 1,008 (87} 12880 20 (168)
Dacamber 31,
203 $41.153) & $ 405} S(.UP8 § 16 (64
C T —Caipmalatien ‘orsign auemency bmaliion adamimsnty
1, Aemsunts e net of bas, ferc) nonsonincling ritsrests
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Componems of Period Changas in OC|

# 17 s (Leas] (Podsion)  (Loss)  Iedemeds  Med
CTA
OCH ity $ (Mm% B8 o s 18 B
Racass fed o sarings - — — — —
Hat OCI 5 (T % 5} § (0] § 18 S
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CA sty S1488 & (353 § 1,135 5 = § 1,135
Faclassifed o samings [F1]] ik 37 - {3n
ot OCI 51439 5 (a5 1898 3 — F1008
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CTA
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Changs in net urrealiced geine (lovssa) on AFS securition
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Hut OCI B 700} & 136 S 4437 5 = 544,437}
Penulon and other
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OCH activity 5 45 - 3 5 e
Reciansd e 0 samrings = _— — —_ -
Mt DCI EICE ] = ) 3 — 5 id)

Diecember 2023 Form 10-K

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
Morgan Stanley
KA
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o] S0 3 41§ (643 8 — LA
== =
Penslon and oiher
CrCl mcihviny 3 (1015 W F (V5 E — § ™8
achinsiied o gamirgs 3 1 2 - 2]
Mt GOC| E L] 17 § (53 § — § {53
Change In net DYA
Q1 mcsivity 5 a2 8 (2135 659 5 ™ 5 838
Raclassified o samirgs 6 (f} v - k1
Mt DE| 5 0i# § f2dit 8§ 66 § M 5 BAZ
Cumulative Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments
At Al
Ducember 31, December 01,
iyt 3 2k
A ntng wilh mE] P Imants in
Al baklinfiag with & hon-ll 5, doller
Arsgoral cumercy ] {237 § L3125
Hadgas, rar af tax 1784 1832
Total ] |'1.'|lllﬁ § {1204}
vt walu a7 faliEVeLTHaRT IF Roe-
U2, ol Turesiongl cLmmerey Sobessis
subjed o hedges % ATE 5 17 s

Cumulative foreign curtency translation adustments include
gains or bosses resulting from translating foreign currency
finance] statements [rom  their respective  functional
currencies 10 U135 dollars, net of hedge gains or losses and
related tax effects. The Firm uses foreign currency contracts
o manage the cumency exposuse relating fo s pet
investments i non-L05  doflar  functionsl  currency
subsichznies and determines the amount of exposure to hedge
on 3 pre-tax basis. The Firm may also elect not 1o hedge s
net investments in certain foreign operations due to market
conditions or other reasons, including the availability of
VArIERIS Sumensy conlracts ol acceptable costs. Information
relatng 1o the effects on cumulstive forelgn currency
translation adjustments that resulted from the translation of
foreign currency financial statements and from gains and
leases from hedges of the Firm™s net investments m non=L1 5,
dollar functional currency subsidinries is summanzed in the
previous table.
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15 Interest Income and Interest Expense Stock-Based Compensation Expensa
# iy mairn o B

& iy mi My p i) AL $ 1807 5 1227 § 12M
interest Income PELE 31 FT) ot |
Cash ard citsh squivabants’ § 3408 5 514 § T ESPP 1 8 I
It S s 1552 AoEE Ziss Toeal $ 1,708 5 1ATA 5 2085
Laans 1A LR sttt i il dweeels” 4 178 § 178 § 152
Beecurilied purchaiss LRosd dgreaiieis o

nul}“ T L] CLLE 1 Total o nes mq—. mww-Mm h.MHh
Swcurities 3 5A3 10e0 {1,087 Admrmusry & tha folierwing yae thad diow ned Sombain & fuhors servies iegarsrenl
e Lo ARt 24 EEE ray Benefit Related to Stock-Based Compensation Expense
Cusimar moshabiss and Cehar' Iame. 49 1,504
TeAal Intsrat income § S0 § ises § adn 5 1 i oy Eates 0
e i .
Interest expenss _Tax banafi 5 32§ 437 § 453
Deposits AR 1l 408 1 Exchides icome hax o ces relaind fn smplcyss shane based sward
Bomowings 11437 L3 7 Zim IR
SN S0M LN AGIMNTIT 10

PR A LR 1760 A Unracognized Compansation Cost Related to Stock-Based
Escurition losned" Lt B A Awards Granted
Cusinar payables ang Crha® 14577 3AZS (2262 i
Total intemat sxpenas 3 42851 5 12368 5 1065 Cscirbar 34,
Mot irtarest § BIW 5 9337 § A48 § oo 2023"
1, in ha losih quansr of 2023 intsesl bearing Cash and cish squivalants and Ta b roogrized in:

relund wmsrest wain presanted sepaibely 'S0 e el e The o pesod El] 3 L]

amcunts for Cusiomes moahabies and Othes have been Ssaggregaied 1o aeckde P 2

Gash and cash sgukvalents Ao algn with e ooarent

nchaden leas paid on Securites Total % S

—

s
i
%
|
;
|
%

nchaiin lees recalwad fom Doty Fnancing culomen selsted 1o thel ahod
rarmactions, which e be pnder sither masgin or seciriies isrcding amangarsnis

Interest mncome and Inderest expense are clasaified in the
income stalement based on the nature of the instrument and
related market conventions, When included as a component of
the instrument’s fair valiee, interest is included within Trading
revenues or Investments revenues, Otherwise, 1t is included
within Interest income or Interest expense

Accrued interast
AL Al
Decambaer 31, Decsriee 31,
£ o it B
Cusionms gnd ol mecarvables 3 ai06 3 4,136
Dusiomes snd other prywhies. A3 oL

19 Deferred Compensation Plans and Carried
Interest Compensation

Steeck- Bused Com pensation Plans
Certmin current and former employees of the Firm panticipate

in the Firm's stock-based compensation plans. These plans
include RSUs, PSUs and an ESFP

1 Amoanks do not inchede forlslares or 3000 parforrancs year compenastion
manersied] in Janaary 2024, which wil begin 1o be amoriand in 2024

In  connection with awards wnder its  stock-based

com pensation plans, the Fum 15 authorized 1o issue shares of

common siock held in treasury or newly issued shares.

The Furm generally wses treasury shares, of avmlable, 10
deliver shases 1o employees or employee stock trusts and has
an ongedng repurchise authorization that includes repurchises
in  connection  with  awands  under iz siock-based
compensation plans.

Commaon Shares Available for Future Awards under Stock-
Basad Compansation Plans

Ag
Decamber 31,
el 23
Shares 12

See Note 17 for addibional information on the Fim's Share
Repurchase Program

Restricted Stock Units

RELls are subject to vesting over tme, generally one to seven
vears from the date of award, contingent upon continued
employment and subject 1o resinctions on sale, transfer or
assignment until conversion W common stock All or a
portion of an award may be forferted 1if employment 1=
terminated before the end of the relevant vesting period or
canceled after the relevant vesting percd in certmn situations,
Recipients of RSUs may have voting nights, a1 the Firm's
diseretion, and generally recerve dividend equivalents of the
awards vest
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PSU Awards - Fair Value on Award Date
2% Al o

oOoOooodn

M-E WS Avernge ROTCE! Felaiive AOTCE' § BETE S 10002 § T4AT
[ P Sp— ¥ ..,t " '*;::q r ME Relaive TER — W2 AT o]
RELS a baginnerg of pard @5 M T mpmm—rp—
Anmrind 1@ 3,55 ) ) )
e ————— ) & ic i Rel_ﬂtn'c TSR fair vnhb_es on _ﬂw award date were
Fortakad {1 4.6 estimated wang a Monte Carlo simulation and the following
AEUs ot and of period’ = 5 8682 assumptions.
it e valie of REUG a2 end of pefiod
s i millony) 1 s Monta Carlo Simulation Assumplions
Welghted aversge awand date falr valus
REUs awarded i 2022 95,51 IEche)
1 Rk s fiock Prics  Coerelaiion
REs wwanded in 2001 riam Interwst Rate Volailty
i A Deciribar 31, 2023, tha wasghbed PRI Hdll-rﬁﬁ:lﬂ'l SN Yo
pperinn Sl bracpnstorn.dwifep et " a2 13% W% am
021 02 % 0% a2
Unvestad REU Activity
.o B The risk-free interest mte was determined based on the viekds
gl available on U8 Treasury pero-coupon issues The expected
Musro of  Awars Ban stock price volatility was determined using historical
afa i i e Shases Fair Vakos i 4 .
Unvested REUs &t bagiering of o T volatility. The corelation coefficient was developed based on
Riadad » S historical price data of the Firm and the S&P 500 Financials
A o iy Sector Index '_fhc n:lud:]_ uses an expected dividend vield
Faaind ) B eouivalent 1o remwesting dividends.
Wnweaned REUS 51 ard of pariod’ 35 =18

Deferred Cash-Based Com persation Flans
i Mumwnmmwm,uumhﬁh
T M . DCP generally provide a retum 1o the plan participants based

Fair Value of REU Activity' upon the performance of each panticipant’s referenced
nvestments,
§ iy miina HEY HEE ased ]
‘Conversions & commaon sinck 5 219 5 2300 § 180 pareen ot oeed Compansation Expanse
Wastag TIEE 2433 1647
: . § & Awitac xy rr Ford]
oo Ut e e L === S T e
Rstum or rsfersnosd meesimanis L] (LA L]
Performance- Based Stock Units Total 5 1061 § ds § 1238
| _ Rt i il sl bl iorircts” 3 5 45 M3
PSUs vest and convert to shares of common stock only if the v , e ; i

Firm satisfies, over & three-year performence period,
performance goals that are determined on the award date. The
number of PSUs that may vest ranges from (%6 10 158 of

rorfparation
maciedad i by of M talreing el il does not conlln A bduee s
ATl

Curried Interest Compensation

the target award, based on the Frrm's level of achievement of
the specified performance goals. One-half of a PSU award iz
eamed based on the Firm's average refumn on tangible
common  equity (“MS  Average ROTCE™) over the
performance pertod. The other half of a PSU award 15 camned
based on the Firm's total shareholder return, rebative to the
total sharcholder return of the S&P 500 Financials Sector
Index (“MS Relauve TSR”) for awards granted prios to 2023,
of for PSU awards granted in 2023 based on the M3 Average
REOTCE relative 1o the Return on Tangible Commion Equity
of each member of the defined comparmon group (“MS
Relative ROTCE™), PSUs have vestitg, comversion and
cancellaton provisions that are generally sinilar to those of
RSUs. Ar Drecember 31, 2003, approximately 2.8 mullion
P5Us at target were outstanding

The Furn generally recognizes compensation expense for any
portian of carmed interest (both realized and unrealized) that
is allocated to employees

Carried Interest Compensation Expansa

& it a0Ed R Faral
Enpasr s 3 i I~ -]

Diocember 2023 Form 10-K 140

386/427



Table of Contenis

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Employvee Benefit Plans

Pension Plans

Het Pariodic Banefit Expense (Incoma)

£ it o 2023 202 Foird]
Sarvion 00%!, bene’is sarnad cuing Te
penicd

Inleres! sl on projecied bere'® chligaton 140 111 s ]
Expactid mim on plan assets [EE] 58] [48)
Wul amertizadon af e i e 1 1 1
Aproriation of ret gains and lnsses (5] = k.7
Ptan s B ] i3 - 5 o
Mot periadlo benafit sxpenss 5 B5 & 10d & 110

Certmn current and former ULS. emplovees of the Firm and ns
LS, affiliates who were hired before July 1, 2007 are cavered
by the US. pension plan, a non-comnbutory defmed benefit
penston plan that = qualified under Section 4071{a) of the
Internal Revenue Code ("U1S. Qualified Plan™), The U5,

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley
gains and losses and prior service credit over the average
remaining service period of active participants

Weighled Average Assumplions Used to Determing Met
Pariodic Banafit Expensa (Incoma)
Pansien Plans

Chsoount mim 483N ZEDW 43N
Expacing brg-Lerm rain of refum on plan

it 4 154 “.._ l.?.l_i 142 ‘l;

The accounung for pension plans  volves  certain

assumptions and estimates. The expected long-term rate of
return for the US Cualfied Plan was estimated by
computing o weighted average of the underlving long-term
expected reums based on the investment managers’ largel
allocations

Benelit Obligation and Funded Status

Rollforeard of the Projected Benafit Obligation and Fair Value
of Plan Assels

Cunlafied Plan has censed future benefit accruals. Prarsion Plam
§ in mlione T 2022
Unfunded supplementary plans (“Supplemental Flans™) cover Reitforward of projected banaf® obSgstion
certan executives. Liabilities for benefits pavable under the B bz ation &1 begienieg of yeal 5 2907 5 4,08
Supplemental Plans are accrued by the Firm and are funded Servica aoal mn 1]
when paid. The Morgan Stanley Supplemental Executive Intmres! coat Lol 1"
Betrement and Excess Plan (“SEREP™), a non-contnibutory Acarial (gain} boos' " (1,084}
defined benefit plan that is not qualified wnder Section 401(a) Plar: s Sarmans 13 2
of the Internal Reverue Code, has ceased future benefit Barwics paii (184 1196)
pecruals e’ L 2
Prajectud benaft obilgation at end of year § 2475 5 2007
Certaan of the Fim's non-ULS. subssdiaries also have defined Rialiord (8 Ild ki o phin st
beneffl pension plans covering their elipihle current and Falrynbue of plen azaets o baginning of yeer 3 41 5 il
former tmpln:,'m. Arhual sl or plen areats ™ 15023
Emikoypes consbutions a9 ar
The Firm's pension plans generally provide pension benefils Brits past e (108
that are based on each emploves's years of credited service m’"‘"mu t::’ 1:;;
and on compensation levels specified m the plans T T T P ) Tam 5 a1
Rollforward of Pra-ax ADCI Linded{prfunded) shaive : o s 120
AmoUTTS recogriesd in the balenos shest
Parsior Plars Asshts 5 8 s 15
£ it o Fy e 00 Lishiltins (837 (865
Beginning balinos $ (TS (TEES 4RI Mt amount recognized 3 1553 8 {4815
it gain (loss) e o {182
Manertizn e e prior sarukcn cost 1 1 R g oot g R A
Apnorization of et gains and losses 3 m '] ooy
Fan @St ArS Cunakiers 3 — -
Ehanges recogiied b 01 P o o Accumulated Banefit Obligation
Endirg balsnce 5 AIY S (78] & (768) t

The Fim genemlly amortzes o nel periosdic benefit
expense (income) the unrecogmzed net gains and losses
exceeding 10®e of the greater of the projected benefil
ebligation of the market-related value of plan assets. The U5,
persion plans amotize the unrecognized net gains and losses
over the aversge hfe expectancy of pamcipants. The
remaining plans generally amortize the unrecogmiaed net

141

AL i)
Decembar 14, Decembasr 31,
§ it g 023 T

Parslon plans. 3 20886 % 20
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Pansion Plans with Projected Banafit Obligations in Excess A Dscinbar 31 2002
of the Fair Value of Flan Assats Prap Laval | LavedZ Leveld  Toal
= i i ) ol e e, T
S mg:;rl‘. i 'mh A Cazh and cash squhaients 5 45 - % -4 4
il — 203 2 T :
Prajectad banal: bligation ] EF I Lrdn T T 1788 257 —  ass
Azcumudaied benafi cilipation 2,603 2T Coporuts and ohar dubteCO0 e = i =
Fiai vk f plien rbans 2184 2180 Draririo eoraactn - oy - 2
Crfel irromaTenis - - 1] 4
The penswm plans inchaded i the table above may differ Ot rucavaldes’ - 21 = 2
based on their funding status as of December 31 of cach vear. Total $ T2 3 36 3 B4 5 Rl
Aznaty Measured st NAY
Walghted Average Assumptions Used to Determine Projected Commingied irust fundy:
Banefit Obligation Wiy Frictifinl 44
Peniior Plars. Forsigr funds:
PR A T s ) Fitaet e I
023 M2 Linuidiy m
E!P_C_l._l"ll-‘l}l Hﬂ-'.i 45 % Tarpaed cash fow 1RE
Tetal § mr
The discount rates used to determine the benefit obligation Liakiiitien
were selected by the Firm, in consultation with s Ortae payabia’ — = — 3
independent actuary. The 118, pension plans use & pension Totel (b Mty § =5 ™3 -5
Falf valiss of plan srits 5 A6

discount yield curve based on the characteristics of the plans,
each determined mdependently. The pension discount vield
curve fepresents spot discount yvields based on duration
implicit @ o representative brood-based Aa-rated corposate
bond universe of high-quality fixed income mvestments. For
all non-U5. pension plans, the assumed discoumt rates are
based on the natere of Dabilities, local economic
envirenments and available band indices.

Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets
At Decamber 31, 1023

& it s Lewel | Level 2  Lavel] Terial
Asmnts
Cash ard cash squivalant 5 6% - % - % L3
U5, govermens and agency

mCLAES 1,800 =30 — 20
Corporaie and other det=—=C00 — L= =3 =
Drerivative cortmcts — 3 _ 3
Ot ievenimmnis - - fa il
Gthar recervalbins” 1 18 i 1%
Teaal 5 1BOT % 4B 5 ™ 5 13
Assots Measured ot HAV
Cammirgled s Lndi

Woray markai [T}
Fomign funds:

Epumz oo [+

Lty 1

T-mir_:ld cank o 4
Totnl $ W
Lizbitxies
Cerar paryaie’ in 141 - (1%
Tocl lisolden. s ms pas  —% oy
Falr value of plan ssais 5 r4x

—_—
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1 Oobwer cicmihbiin and i phpabli i vabond o Besr Shiiying ok whish
AT T ik

Raoliforward of Leval 3 Plan Assets

§ iy i oEy aad
Balanca &) baginning of pesa £ [ ] L]
2
5

Rsalired arad wresalyed gairs
Puschess, sales and sellaments, Fal 1
Balarcs ot snd of pariod k] ™ § B4

There were no translers between levels dunng 2023 and 2002,

The 115 Qualified Plan assets represent 7% and $8% of the
Firm's total penston plan assets at December 31, 2023 and
December 2022, respectively. The U.S, Qualified Plan uses a
combinaion of active and nsk-controlled fixed income
investment strategies. The [ixed mcome asset allocation
consists primarily of fixed income securities and related
derrvative instruments designed to approximate the expected
cash flows of the plan's lmbilities 1o help reduce plan
exposure o interest rate vanation and to better align assets
with the obligation. The [onger-duratton feced income
allocation is expected to help protect the plan's funded stahzs
and maintaan the stability of plan contributions over the loag
run, The mvestment portfolie perfformance 15 assessed by
com paring actul mvestment performance with changes in the
estimated present value of the U5, Qualified Flan's benefit
obligation,

Denvative instruments are permitted m the LS. Cumlified
Plan's investment portfolio only (o the extent that they
comply with all of the plan’s investment policy guidelines and
are consistent with the plan’s nisk and return oljectves

As a fundamental operating principle, any restnictions on the
underlving assets apply to the respective derivative product
This includes percentage allocabions and credit quality,
Dervatives are used solely for the purpese of enhancing
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investment retums in the underlying assets and not o 401(k} Plans
circumvent portfolio restrictions i s W s
Evpare $ M7 3 1sa 5 sy

Plan assets are measured al fair value using valuastion
techriques that are consistent with the valuation techniques
applied to the Firm's major categories of assets and habilities
as described i Motes 2 and 4, OTC derivative contracts
consist of investments m interest rate swaps and fotal retum
swaps., Other investiments consist of msurance contracts held
by non-Ll5.-based plans. The insurance contracts are valued
based on the premium neserve of the insurer for a guanimes
that the insurer has given to the employvee benefit plan that
approximates [mr value. The insumance contracls are
categorized i Level 3 of the fair vabue higrarchy.

Commangled trust funds are privately offered funds regulated,
supervised and subject o peniodic examination by a U5
federal or state agency and available to institutional clients.
The trust must be mamtained for the collective investment ar
reinvesiment of assets coninbuted to 1 from US  tax-
qualified emploves benefit plans mamtained by more than one
emplover or controlled group of corporations. The sponsor of
the commingled trust funds values the funds based on the fair
valug of the underlyving securities. Commingled trust funds
arg redesmable at NAV ol the measurement date or in the near
fusture,

Some non-L S -based plans hold foreign funds that consist of
investments in (xed mcome funds and liguadity funds. Fixed
income funds are designed 1o provide a series of lixed annual
cash flows achieved by investing in government and corporate
bonds. Liquidity funds place a high prionity on capital
preservation, stable vabse and a high liquidity of assets.
Forergn funds are readaly redeemable at WAY

The Firm generally considers the MAV of commingled trst
funds and foreign funds provided by the fund manager to be
the best estimate of far value.

Expected Contribulions

The Fiem's policy is to fund ot least the amount sulficient 1o
meet  minmum  funding  requirements  under  apphicable
emploves benefit and tax lows. Al December 31, 2023, the
Firm expected to contribute approcimately 340 million to its
pension plans in 2024 based upon the plans’ curremt funded
status and expected asset retum assumplions for 2024

Expected Future Benefit Payments
1 Decembar 34, 2033

S - Fanghn Purd .
024 ] 164
ehis 160
2036 187
ahay 174
200 6t
W e

1.5, employees meeting certain eligibility requirements may
participate in the Firm's 400(%) plan.

Eligible emplovees receive discrenonary 401D matching
cash contributions as determined annually by the Firm. The
Firm generally matched eligible employee comributions up to
the IRS lmit at 4%, or 3% up to a ceran compensation level,
in 2003 and 2022, Eligible emplovees with eligible pay less
than or equal to 310,000 also received a fixed contnbution
equal to 2% of eligble pav. Contributions are invested among
available funds according to cach participant’s Investment
direetion and are inchsded in the Firm s 401(R) expense

Non-U.5. Defined Coniribution Pension Plans

& oy meingns
Esparss

2%Ey i pural
173 8 1B 5 148

The Firm maintains separale defined contribution pension
plans that cover chgible emplovees of certan non-1.8.
subsichanies. Under such plans, contributicms are gencrally
determined based on a fixed rate of base salary with certain
Vesling Fegquirements
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21. Income Taxes Dafarred Tax Assels and Liabilities
M A
Wam:mmme Dactmbar 11, Decasnbass 31,
fnmmos o 2033 202
I piire firrd] Gross deferred tax assats
Hmrmm-'?a?w"mm ] 285 3 ]
Employsa compansaion and benef
$ 1486 § 2818 8 2ssd PR wm‘;‘“ o T
w42 a4z A e 4 T84 ey
Waluaien o nat ading ey,
437 N T rvEsinsnts end recehvabiag 1,887 1,743
287 a0 551 e : i &
135 10 106 Tetal dulnmed 3 sasety i1 B.148
1 = 152 Lo Dnfared Lax asseis valuabon - o~
. = A w'”"m !.'"".“.l._ P e T —
§ E4E § 3785 § 4844 Grows deferred tax Fabilites
Finse amsats. T2 £
by niangitles ana goodwll ooy e
us: Total dafemed ta llabikies 85 2176 & ik
Saepeal 5 (5§ (R3S (61} Nt dafarres tex nssss 5 2,635 § 2117
Sain and kocal (5% {143 E:<]
"“'! J':'.": e P pi Deeferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
i differences between the financial reporiing and tax bases of
12 B [ i e o h
i P assels and lbihties and are measured using the enacted tax
N 3 d laws that will be in effect when such differe
Horg Kong i# o o rafes an HW=E [ wi m elbecl whem suc MoCs are
frhad 531 @ iy expected 1o reverse.
Totsl $ MENE MEE 4 ; : P
PR ORIor For BYEcries ELTBE ry h T The Firm believes the recognized net defemed tax assets {after

valuation allowance] st December 31, 2023 are more hkely
i 3023 Bl s prasnied saparstsly o e G e The price paniad arants

Hur D haves bk dhaaggragaind i merkels. Brach b aliga il tha cumird than not to be realized based on expectations as to future

prasanmiion taxable income in the jurisdictions in which it operates,
2 bt B LES. B prcevisbore foa 2005 3000 and 2021 pivnarily mckads. Singapain
ond anmianey.

The earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries and affilites are
Reconciliation of the U5, Federal Statutary Income Tax Rate indefinitely reinvested due to regulatory and other capital

lo the Effective Income Tax Rate requirements in foreign jurisdictions. As of December 31,
pren rees P 2023 and December 31, 2022, the unrecognized deferred tac
U5 Indernl statulony income 1ax rioe HO%  Zi0%  260% liabilaty attribuitable 1o mdefmitely renvested earmngs 15 $302
U5, shate and local ircome toms, ne? of million and 3429 mllwxm, respectively.
WS federal income tax bereiiy 14 1.8 1
Dhmeade e credis and DA ewsing! Boe (9.3} Ly (LT Roliforward of Unracognized Tax Benefits
Hon-LL%. samings 4.9 (71 1.3
Ernployess share-hasad maards 9.8 o1 (8Y 3w e EY FLErey Firra]
Hor bbb boomi 23 o) it Bebance at bagirning of period $ 1123 8% oM 5 7EA
Incraases hassd on s malaied o
O Lo oz b b pepace e ek W s
Efestive inconis lax rate HME% TR A% Firnanes b o B poNIONE NG - i “
:l'“m
1. I 2023, Mo basabin Eecome wis pesestad separmlely o iha fest me. The prior
poticd amzunts far MendllS mwmmMWm Drmoreases based on lax positions. related fo
aaciuts Menk Diaable incors 15 ol with s core frasaion EAnF pringdi iy (24} 137}

Chacqaa s ralaing i 580 kaiens wilh 1aing

o L] 18} (AL
Decrmanid relaled o bapsa of Lae of

Bmetations 211 [P ] (k]

Bedance ai snd of panod $ 1343 L s en
00 S LT

1. Fspresent enchg unrecogeized tan benets aduated for the impact of the federal
banefE of staln mauss. COMpHR sUBorEy aTangarents and foregn tax o
offsets. o recogrized. thess net benafts wondd Ssorably inpact e a'ectie
Falm i fuhes paricds

It 18 reasonably possible that significant changes m the

balance of unrecogmzed tax benefits may occur within the

next 12 months. At this tme, however, it 15 not pessible 1o

reasonably estimate the expected change 1o the total amount
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of unrecogmized tax benefits and the impact on the Fim's
effective tax mate over the next 12 monihs

Intoreat Exponss [Banefit) Associated with Unrecognized Tax
Banofits, Not of Federal and State Incoma Tax Banofits

$ irr i HE pirred Furdl
Racogrized in rcome sistsnmnt 5 5 5 - 54
._i.c_u'h-n nt _Ifd-:r'pmnc!_ T 7S 142

Interest andd pemaities related 1o unrecognized tax benefits wre
recogrized as a component of the provision for income taxes
Pemalties related to wnrecopnized tax benefits for the years
mentioned above were immaterial

Earliest Tax Year Subject to Examination in Major Tax
Jurisdictions

Jurksdiction Tk Ymar
T o
i Vil St e M Yiork City 0
UK. 014
Bagaar ol ]
Hong Kong oid

The Firm 15 reutinely under examnation by the IRS and other
tax authorties n certain countnes, such as Japan and the
UK., and in states and localities in which it has sipnificant
bausiness operations, such as New York,

The Fim believes that the resolution of these tax
examinations will not have a matenal effect on the annual
finangial sttements, although o resolution could have @
material impact in the income statement and on the effective
tax rate for any period in whach such resolutions ocour,

22, Segment, Geographic and  Revenuoe
Information

The Firm stractures its segments primarily based upon the
nature of the financial products and services provided 1o
customers and s management crganization. The Firm
provides a wide range of financial products and services to iis
customers i ecach of s business segmemis: Institutzonal
Securities, Wealth Management and Investment Management
For a further discussion of the business segments, see Mote 1.

Revenues and expenses directly assocmied with each
respective business segment are mcluded in determming its
operating resulls. Other revenues and expenses that are nol
directly attnibutable to a particular business segment are
generally allocated based on each business segment’s
respeclive el revenues, non-inlerest expenses of other
relevant measures

As a result of revenues and expenses from transactions with
other operating scpments being treated as transactions with
external parties for purposes of segment disclosures, the Firm
includes an Intersegment Eliminations category to reconcale
the business segment results to the consolidated results,

145

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Morgan Stanley
Salected Financial Information by Business Segmant
§ v mita ;- Lo It ¥E Total
rvestman harking 5 4578 § 454§ — § (B4 5 4948
Tracing 14,488 823 (58 ELERLE L
IvecnanlE " G2 334 - T3
Comniasionrs mrd fees’ 2540 2,278 —  (myn 47
Azl managemes:’ 6 WME 52N (23 1887
Crias 44 513 i 11y T8
Tl non-inlses] reverue THA3e 18,180 SdRR (57 48040
Inises] iccome 6815 15,5 135 [1584) S,781
Inturest axpanss 265594 G, 887 264 [Ty d20ed

Mg irsistag] [ra) 8,118 i128) el 8,230

Net rewenuss ST0000 6368 § 8370 § (355 § 54,943
Provision for creditlosses § 400 8 131 § 29— § — § G32
Compsnsxion and benafis 5388 13072 AMT — M8
wauinnllplrm 9814 6,635 _2,:11 _‘:fm AT, M40

Total non dnterest sxpenses $13.183 310,807 § 4528 3 (538 § 41,708

Inconye Bl prindaion for
4478 § 6,530 § B2 3 (3 S92

OO LA

(TN R GOl M oot _nem b aed
Mt incoma 35852 5,022 043 i a0
M incorie apbcabis o

monconboiing et 135 - F - 443
Mt Encome applicabls to

Margan Stanley 3 3433 § 5,02 3 630 3 (37T) 5 0047
§ 5T e [1:3 Wk I VE Taisd

Inyaciime] harking e s 4§ — B ()5 G809

Trazing 14318 1432y (151 £ 13008
Invesimanis (RL] Bl 120 - &
Commissiors and fees’ 1786 2467 — {25 4508
Asanl mansgineer’ BA0  TILBF  HAIZ {308 1RATE
.. (o) 6 (@ {(1n  38Y
Total non-Erienest feverwae AN EGAR A3 ) AW
Interms! icome 13278 9,570 56 [1308) 21,808
It apanss 1A 2,150 120 (133 12Ma
o irswenst 1965 7429 (8} 7 @3
Nt ravanuns $ 24003 § 24407 35375 liblﬂ § &, 8461
Provielon for credit lopses 5 200 % 6% § = % - & MG

Gompansaton and benefs B8 12.8M 1373 — s
Hesft-compisnsition aigsnsss B2 BIM 2206 (EON) 166

Total nen-interest sxpenees  §17467 §17.785 54,580 :.15:1!! 5. 30 20

Wi Beforn peiviaion Tor

ST Laeag £ ATIE § BaE) 5 Aoy & (98 $aaomp
Provvizkin for imcome Saxes 1308 1,444 162 4 2En
Hetincoma 5407 5030 645 (15 10470
Nl inconis applcebls 1o
__morconiroling interests L5 -— {1hy - 60
Mt bnconve applicabs to

Margan Smnliy 5 8247 § 513 5 BBO S 112‘;I$'|I.m9
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Fn molos b L . [N .-

In'mlmnlbrlma L0372 % mI2 8 — § (9005 S10004
Trasting 12383 418 (53 B2 12810
Imvesimenis B L] rl _— 1A76
Commissiong and feas” e A0 1 Ty badl
Ansal marsgement ' 583 1ADE6  55TE  (05A) 10.067
Crrar 454 LLid 0y (1642
Teral o - es; Feseyes 27,088 1BAS0 8225 (53] 54,710
Intims) ir oo 1182 s 3 (dy  palt
|l|lll'l_ﬂl'l_'-||.lll_|'-ﬂl LA 420 (e 1388
Mol coarnz 040 6IBS 6F 12 A04A
Hal Favanues §29833 $24243 $6.220 § (B41) SEG.TES
Provision fororeditlosses 5§ (3% 11 § — § — § 4
Compraniion and bansfs aiB6s 13000 2373 — A28

WO COmpEnsation expenses. &.881 A061 2166 (538) 15465

Totsl non-ntorest pxparaes  SI008 S1A061 S4682 £ (8a5) $40.083

Inoomss bafore proviskon for
oo e 511814 5 6181 S16F § (&) S10EEA

Prisision fof oo lMes & el 1l o] 1y dAdi
Hat Feona GiEA  4THM 132 @y 15120
Mt ircome appiicable io
monconimilng ireeeit i - @ = 4
Nt incams applicsble 1
Margan 5 BOET 5 4734 51047 5 {4) 515034

. Sabstanfinly all ravniss Wa o0m coniracts with ousiores
2 inchades Cartmn e e oy elels B Servioes parodmed ol perods

Duatail of I Lttt Banking R

F o o o2y wmer e
IS Tonal SacutitinsesAnisony $2344 288 50407
institutional Securitis—Lircanatng 2334 2369 B85
Fim rvesimant banking revenwss from e - i
coniracts wiih cusipmens % Mm% D%

Trading Revenues by Product Type

£ i e i) Forrr raird ]

Intamst min i 446 5 Zata § Tt
Forsign mxchangs 1 54 1585 1,008
Buity' 8373 TRIE 7.3
Commuoaty and nther 1634 1488 L50%
Creati oy ned 112
Total § 15283 5 13823 5 1ZEM0

1. Evvwidired incor i incliiied within agulty conlrasts

The previous table summares realized and unrealized pains
and lesses primarily related to the Farm's Trading assets and
labilities, from derivative and non-derivative  financial
instruments, included in Trading revemees in the income
statement. The Firm generally wtilizes Gnancial instruments
across @ vanety of product tvpes in conmection with s
market-making and related gk management strategies, The
trading revenues presented in the table are not representative
of the manner i which the Firm manages s business
activities and are prepared In & manner smlar to the
presentation of trading revenues for regulatory reporting
PUTPOSES.
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Morgan Stanley

Investment  Management  Investrments  Revanues-—MNat
Cumulative Unrealized Carried Interast

1] A
Ducembar 349, Decamber 30
2023

& by mallacny 2022

Mt cunimiative unrealired perfomaarce-
Buknad Taes a2 ik of eaersing k7 THT % 10

The Firm’s portion of net cumulative performance-based fees
in the form of wrealized carned nterest, for which the Firm
15 hed obligated to pay compensation, s a1 risk of reversing
when the return in certain funds fall below  specified
performance targets. See MNote 14 for information regarding
general  partner  guarantees, which include  potential
obligations to retum performance fee distributions previously
received.

Investmen! Managemant Assel Managament Revenues—
Reduction of Fees Due to Fea Waivers

&y uiaiy DOEY AT pavrd |
Fiadh Wil v ;] #3F I g S8

The Firm waives a portion of ifs fees in the Investment
Management business segment from cenain registered money
market funds that comply with the requirements of Rule 1a-7
of the Investment Company Act of 1940,

Certain Oiher Fee Waivers

Separately, the Fim's emplovess, meluding 5 seruor
officers, may participate on the same terms and conditions as
other investors in certain funds that the Fim sponsoss
primarily for client investment, and the Firm may waive of
lower applicable fees and charges for its emplovees

Other Expanses—Transaction Taxes

S mitors 20EY Forrd i

Trarsacion wes 3 BBE 5 910§ S8

Transaction taxes are composed of secunes ransaction taxes
and stamp duties, which are levied on the sale or purchase of
securities listed on recognized stock exchanges in cerfain
markets. These taxes are imposed mamly on trades of equity
securies in Ast and EMEA. Similar transaction taxes are
levied on wades of hsted dervative instruments in certain
countries.
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Hol Revenues by Region Ansals by Business Segmant
A A
Fhnmm e R LN Doctembar 31,  Dacsmbar 31,
enarizan $ 41850 5 40017 § 44808 fommon Lt I S
EMNEA 058 5811 7,609 it Secunties 5 2050 § 785,837
Main EAM ETD Ay Weatth Maragiment 165,162 ar,a08
Tedal 5 5147 5 RAEAR 5 BOTEA Irveaiman! Mehagemee] EEA L) 7,080
Total' § 1993600 5 naa0nan
Incoma bafore Provision for Income Taxes o Pt ;i sl Aol s s s gt
& iy il Fioral panray 202 '}
i 1 Tatal Assels
UE. $ mam f s 8 pe ice by Felon
Manlbs' 3ATS 478 G5ES- M AL
Decomber 31,  Dacamber 31,
Tod N o = nne . 023 T
I MonUS mcoms i dened 88 incoms genssed from operstions located ot Americas £ 832714 % Bh3 2R
B ELS, ENEL 218922 107 307
The Firm operates m both 1.5, and non-U.5. markets. The Asta Hinan il
5 : HR : Total 5 1,103,803 & 180N
Fimm’s non-U1.5. business activities are principally conducted el
and mamaged through EMEA and Asia locations. The net
revenues disclosed in the previous table refleet the regional 23 Parent Company

view of the Firm's consolidated net revemaces on a managesd
basis, based cn the following methodology:

Institurional  Securities: Chent location for advisory and
equity underwriting, syndicate desk  location for  deln
underwriting, trading desk location for sales and trading,

Wealth  Managereni:
operale.

Amencas, where representatives

Investment Management: Client Iocation, except certain
closed-end funds, which are based on asset location

Revenwes Recognized from Prior Services

Y o] na
§ 1778 5 2E33 5 oM

& ¥ T
Non-Aniaias! e L

The previous table includes revenues from contricts with
customers recogmized where some or all services were
perfarmed m prior penods. These reventes prmarily include
investment banking advisory fees.

Recelvables from Contracts with Customars
At A
Decembaer 38,  Deshmieer 31,

Cusioner and ofwer mosvables 3

Receivables from contracts wih  customers, which  are
included within Customer and other receivables in the balance
sheet, arise when the Firm has both recorded revenues and the
right per the contract to ball the customer.

Parent Company Only—Condensed Income Statemant and
Comprahansive Incoma Statemant

$ i it W23 03 AN
Ravanuss
Diwicinrats froen bark sulsidiarion $ 57T0 5 ZAMS 5§ =
Evidands from B end ron-bark subrsidlanes 12 &8 &80
Tandd divicends frons sufmitisries 12,682 11HM ARSa
Trasing (FFE 01143 Frol
Erbar L bl
Tetad it reveru 1FTe 10583 waal
Inlares! ircomea 13,506 L ] R
NUMTRA Oyt 1ag1e 6162 2432
Fsd et I_z'_a l.m.']_[ ﬂ]_
Kt ravwanung 11,758 1006 8587
Mo irdorest mupares ERF 52 A4y
Incronve Bfore incoe Laxes 11487 9,054 2514
Provetsion for {banaft from) ircoma laxes (52 s8R [
Mt itonss b frs Lecisiile gaie o
b ariers 11,987 10400 BT
Urdisiributed (oss) gam of 4, badianes {2,800) 1] BT
Mt inconis BOAT 1S 1600
mmkﬂwlhmrmibuj.ninf
Yoy
Frrsign cumancy rarslason adjsiments 8 [0} 07
Chisrg ir rat unmalised gaics (lowe) on
avaiabls-'nroake ssoues 1088 (4437 (1.842)

Persiors and oéher (L] 43 {53}

Charge ir rel dabt valu s acjussmer: {1,250 15 BEY

Wat chargs in cash Sow Fedges 20 (4} —
Comprebansia Peame $ BE19 5 TEE Sanacd
Mt inconie & DOBT S10030 515004
Profamed w00k dividends ard other BaT & 1.5
!m-“h“ ““ﬂ"’"‘ st S B530 510040 514 888
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AL A
Dacambar 31, Datadiber 31,
i i st wtans data il 2022
Asssts
Cash ars cask gouivaiants § 16,881 £ ok i}
Trasting ansein & fair velus 4180 10,309
o o] oLt B!
Sup gl nbbe-Tor abe 4% fair valus (anorized
cont of S22 184 and $18.428 $A04 70 and
$14 2 TH ware (Mecped 0 VENOUS paries) M55 1T A
Hsdd Sosmarzy | fair vakoe of $14,093 and

$17 598; $10,010 ard $12, 548 ware

g B mrkous: parikes b 158,284 14,287
‘Ewcurities purchases urder agresmen io

[ BT TH ) 24,683 a2.0ar
Azearoey 0 sbaisniea;

Brard and BHC 38,550 Th.2E2

Mok 138,250 f iR
Eondty imyesineris in subsldiaries;

Bark ang BHC 58,548 BETE

Mon-bark 50,201 50,368
Cibar Eisiss 2,505 200
Total asess ] IT2168 5 AT7 325
[RE i
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Escunibes sobd uncer a ]

PpuAChEss I'rom-.'!ll: 20,203 28 BR2
Papablag o and adwirces fom aubsatiatie TAITO TEAM
O!r-tiuhiiﬁmdmuld AR 2,830 2003

& farduras §13,404 and §A2,022 at
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Todal llabilities 273,130 20T AR
& in and cortingant Rabiltes (aes Note 14}

Equity

Prafamed ook 8,750 760
Comman sock, §R0T par vaks!

Eharws sutorewd: 3,500,000,000; Shares

aued: 20000808 Srares cualanding:

1JEDE 278,437 and 1 675 487 408 L] n
Agestiona pakan captal 28,832 ok ]
Ralmred sarmirgs a7 uaE LT ]
Ennplisyieh sinck inusls sS.xid FE L
Arcymudatad other comprabeniioe income
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Common stodk hekd in Teasiry at oost. $0.01

i wakun (412,065,542 and 5T
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Morgan Stanley

Parant Company Only—Condensad Cash Flow Statemam

# iy s Ny Farr e a1
“-:mh bl i $24918 S13064)% 4287
Toah s T rvesting moiias e
Processs from (payments Ec
AFE secunies;
Prurehaied (6] 1BeE) (BTN
Procaads fom sabes 00 &ré BN
Freszaa s S0 apdowes mhd mtutieg BATE  Af14 1540
HTM seoundas
Purskases = by (0
Proscaad s limm paydowrs and maturites 4,008 G4 AEDE
Eﬁﬂmﬂwlﬂ - ik (4,706 (1BF1) 13881
Smcintien nokl urder A aes I
mapurchase with afiliaes (8,388 11,785 (7422
Advarcss toand reestments in subsidianes PIL0T) (1054} (1706
?:‘;;"l_‘“wm E— I8TTE) 1A (11804
Cash flows from finarcng activisies
Pribesests, e
Beuencs of prafermd Vock, rel of iEusnos
s - w12
bzuancs of Bomowings FE R = B LT ]
Prerprmissnts fof
Bamowings (2L584) (14441} (20503
Ragrarch: of sk Are enyoy
i wiBh ey s (RATH (T8I (12078)
Cash dividends (S TBY] (5401} [4,171)
Mat chargs in advarces ‘o subsadianias (3,028 Gy 17042
h‘ﬂml- pmrldﬂ by (wend for] inancing
- A} a8 16577

E“ic: Dfl!\r-,T‘lﬂﬂl e chenges on cash and
EY R R LI 147 dfis ]

Ml incriass (cecmasa)in cash ard cash
eutvalsnls

Cank and cask sgiivilenia, &1 baginring of
25,333 15,34.1 E‘I_Q.Z

[LE LI ] ] B0

Gash and nllhmhlbnh\.ll'mriﬂp-ubd $16.000 $253%3 315342

Cash snd cash squivalenis:

Cash ard ous from banks § tws THE 10
Dhsperiits with bank subsifiasies 18,77 DhEAE 16242
Cash and cash equivalents, st end of peded 18,881 S253%3 S15342
Rasmicted cash § 1,086 8 AN 5 41

Supplemental Disclodire of Cash Flow Informption

Cash paymants for:
e §1449T7 § LOEE § 2870
trcome {axes, ral of mfuros’ 88 A3 IS

i Fapresents Wt payments, nel of eefinds. made 0 vanows e sethorities and
nchles tanms paid oo Bshal® of cetan that ars i sattingd
Batwain e Parsrd Company and thass abskliaiss ﬁ-mmﬂd
from mebsidianies warn 510 blon, $38 bllon sncd 50 blllon for J023, 30 and
2, emspecivaly

For information on the Parent Company’s preferred stock, see
Mote 17.
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Parant Company’™s Borrowings with Original  Maturities
Graater than Ona Year

A
Dacamber 31, Deosrmber 11
t L. L5 L .o
Sarion ] 164514 5 ThT e
Snbvoartic A 12,370 12300
Teasl ] 17684 5 18
Lo

Transactions with Subsidinrics

The Parent Company has transactzons with its corsalidated
siibeacharies deéternined on an agreed-upon basis and has
guaranteed certam unsecured lines of credit and contractual
obligations on certain of its consolidated subsidmrnes.

Guarantees

In the nommal course of its business, the Parent Company
puarantees certain of s subsidianes’ obligabions on a
transaction-by-transaction  basis under wvarious  financial
arrangements. The Parent Company has isued guaraniees on
behall of its subsidiares to vanms US and non-US
exnchanges and clearmghouses that trade and clear securities
andror futures contracts. Under these guamnates arangements,
the Parent Company may be requred to pay the Oinancial
obligations of its subsidiaries related 10 basiness transacted on
or with the exchanges and clearinghcuses in the event of a
gubsidiary™s default on its obligations to the exchange of the
cleannghouse, The Parent Company has not recorded any
contmgent liability in s condensed financial statements For
these ammangements and believes that any  potential
requirements o make payments under these arrangements are
remote

The Parent Company also, in the normal course of business,
provides standard indemnities to counterparties on behalf of
its subsidiaries for taxes, including U5 and foreign
withholding taxes, on mtérest and other pavments made on
denvatives, secwnies and stock lensding wansactions, and
certam anmuty products, and may alse provide indemnities 1o
or on behall of affiliates from time to tme for other
arrangements. These indemnity payments could be required,
as applicable, based on a change m the tax laws, change in
interpretation of apphicable tax rulings or claims ansing from
contractual relationships between affiliates. Certain contracts
contain provisions that emable the Paremt Company 1o
termirmte the sgreement upen the occurrence of such events.
The maximum petential amosmt of future payments that the
Parent Company could be required to make under these
indemnifications canncd be estimated The Parent Company
has not recorded amy contingent liability in its condensed
financial stastements [or these indemnifications and believes
that the occurrence of any events that would Ingger payments
umder these contracts is remole.

149

Morgan Stanley

Guaranteos of Debt Instrumants and Warranis |lasued by
Subsidiaries

Ar Al
Becamber 51, Decembe 31,
EE

Agoregais balancae % EDB4T 5 51,138
Guarantees under Subsidiary Leasa Obligations
At At
Dacamber 31, Decsmbe 31,
F iy il oy e
Aggragnie belance” 3 32 3 LAE]

1 Arounts primaiy relabe o the LK

Finance Subsidinry

The Parent Company fully and unconditionally guarantees the
secunties issued by Morpan Stanley Finance LLC, a wholly
owned fimance subsidizry. Mo other subsichary of the Parent
Company guaraniess these securities.

Resolution and Recovery Planning

As indicated i the Firm's 2023 resolution plan submitted to
the Federal Reserve and the FDIC, the Parent Company has
entered into an amended and restated support agreement with
its material enties {ncluding ns wholly owned, direct
subsiciary Morgan Stanley Holdings LLC (the “Funding
THC "y and certain other subsidianes, Under the amended and
restated secured support agreement, in the evemt of a
resolution scenano, the Pasent Company would be obligated
o contribute all of s contnbutable assets 1o its supported
entities andfor the Funding THC, The Funding IHC would be
ohligated 1o provide capital and liguidity, as applicable, to its
supparted entities, The obligations of the Parent Company
and the Funding THC under the amended and restated suppont
agreement are in most cases secured on a sendor basis by the
assets of the Parent Company (other than shares in
subsidiaries of the Parent Company and certwn other assets)
ard the assets of the Funding [HC,
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Changes in  amd  Disagreements  with
Accountants on Accounting  and  Financial
Disclosure

Mone.
Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Unader the supervision and with the participation of the Firm's
management, including the Chiell Executive Officer and Chief’
Financual Offscer. the Firm conducted an evaluaton of the
elfectiveness of the Firm's disclosure contrels and procedures
{0z defined in Rule 13- 15(¢) of the Secunties Exchange Act
of 1934, s amended (the “Exchange Act™)) Based on this
evaluation, the Chiel Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Firm's disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered

by this annual report.

Munagement's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reparting

The Firm's management is responsible for establishing and
mainiaining adeguate internal control over fimancial reporting
The Fum's imtemal control over fmancial reporting 1=
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
relability of fnancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
of America (1.5 GAAPT).
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Morgan Stanley

The interal contral over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the mamtenance of records thal, in reasomable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Firm,

+ Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with US. GAAP amd that recepts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of the Firm's management and directors, and

= Provide remsonable assurance regarding prevemtion of
timely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, wse or
disposition of Firm assets that could have a material effect
on the Firm's financial stalements.

Because of its nherent limitations, imemal control over
financi| reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivencss to future
periods are subject to the nsk that controls may become
inadequete because of changes in conditions or that the degree
of complance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the eflectiveness of the Fiom's imernal
contrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, In
making this assessment, management used the cnteria set
Tarth by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the
Treadway Commission ("COS0™) in Internal Comtrol
Integrated Framework (2013). Based on management's
assessment and those criteria, management believes that the
Firm mantained effective intermal comtrol over financial
reparting as of December 31, 2023

The Fam's independent registered public sccounting fimm has
audited and issued a report on the Firm's internal control over
fimancial reporting, which appears below,

154
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Boasd of Divectors of Morgan Stanley:

Opindon en Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the intermal control over financial reporting
of Mormgan Stanley and subsidiries (the “Fiom™) as of
December 31, 2023, based on critena established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Crpanizations of the Trendway
Commussion (COS0), In our opinien, the Firm mamtained, in
all materaal respects, effective intemal control over Nnancial
reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework:
(2013} issued by O30,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States)
(PCADR), the financial statemenis of the Firm as of and for
the vear ended December 31, 2023 and our report dated
February 22, 2024 expressed an unsuahfied opinion on those
financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Firm's management is responsible for mantaimng
effective mternal control over financial reporting and for its
asscsament of the effectvencss of intemal comtrol over
financial — reporting,  incheded ;o the  sccompanying
Management's Keport on Internal Control Chver Financial
Reporting. Chur responsibility 15 10 express an opinion on the
Firm™s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCACE and are required to be independent with respect 10
the Firm i accordance with the U5 federal secunties laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securitics and
Exchange Comm ission and the PCAOB

We conducied our awdit in accordance with the standards of
the PCADB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonshle assurance about
whether effective intermnl control aver financial reporting was
maintained i all material respects. Owr audit included
oblaming an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting,

/s Deloitie & Touche LLE

Mew York, New York

February 22, 2024

assesaing the risk that a matenial weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectveness of inmemnal
control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures ss we consedered necessary m the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion

Definilion and Limitations of Intermal Conirol over
Financial Reporting

A company’s internal contrel over financml reporiing 15 a
process desmzned 10 provide reasonable assarance regarding
the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for extermal purposes in accordance with
generally accepted  accounting  principles. A company’s
intemal contral over fmancial reporung nchades those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonahle detail, aceurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;,
(2) provide reasonable assurance thal tramsactions are
recorded as necessary 10 permil preparation of fnancial
stalements in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the com pany
are being made only i accordance with suthorztons of
management and directors of the company, and (3) provide
reasonable Assurance regarding prevention or tmely detection
of unawthorized acquisition, wse, or disposition of the
company’s &sscts that could have a material effect on the
financeal stalem enls

Because of s inherent limitations, imtemal control over
financial repariing may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Alsa, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
peniods are subjest 1o the msk that controls may become
madequate because of changes m conditions, or that the
degree of complhance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Diecember 2023 Farm 10-K
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:
Opinion on the Financiad Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the “Firm”) as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, the related consolidated income statements, comprehensive income statements, cash flow statements and statements
of changes in total equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes (collectively
referred to as the “financial statements’). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Firm as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2023, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have aso audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Firm's internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated February 22, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Firm’s internal control over financia reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financia statements are the responsibility of the Firm's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Firm's
financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to the Firm in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material
to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of
critical audit matters does not ater in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or
disclosuresto which it relates.

Vauation of Level 3 Financia Assets and Liabilities Carried at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis and Level 3 Loans Held for
Sae — Refer to Note 4 to the financia statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Firm’s trading and financing activities result in the Firm carrying materia financial instruments having limited price
transparency. These financial instruments can span a broad array of product types and generally include derivatives, securities, loans,
and borrowings. As described in Note 4, these Level 3 financia assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis
approximate $9.3 hillion and $6.2 billion, respectively, and the Level 3 loans held for sale approximate $6.7 billion at December 31,
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2023. Unlike financial instruments whose inputs are readily observable and, therefore, more easily independently corroborated, the

valuation of these financia instruments is inherently subjective and often involves the use of unobservable inputs and proprietary
valuation models whose underlying algorithms and valuation methodol ogies are complex.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on arecurring basis and Level 3 loans held
for sale as a critical audit matter given the Firm uses complex valuation models and/or valuation inputs that are not observable in the
marketplace to determine the respective carrying values. Performing our audit procedures to evaluate the appropriateness of these
models and inputs involved a high degree of auditor judgment, professionals with specialized skills and knowledge, and an increased
extent of testing.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis and
Level 3loansheld for saleincluded the following, among others:

» We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Firm’s model review and price verification controls. The Firm maintains
these internal controls to assess the appropriateness of its valuation methodologies and the relevant inputs and assumptions.

» We independently evaluated the appropriateness of management’ s valuation methodologies, for selected financial instruments,
including the input assumptions, considering the expected assumptions of other market participants and external data when
available.

» We developed independent estimates for selected financial instruments, using externally sourced inputs and independent valuation
models, and used such estimates to further evaluate management’ s estimates. For certain of our selected financia instruments, this
included a comparison to the Firm's estimates for similar transactions and an evaluation of the Firm’s assumptions inclusive of
theinputs, as applicable.

» We tested the revenues arising from the trade date fair value estimates for selected structured transactions for which we devel oped
independent fair value estimates to test the valuation inputs and assumptions used by the Firm and evaluated whether these
methods were consistent with the Firm’s relevant valuation policies.

» We assessed the consistency by which management has applied significant and unobservable valuation assumptions used in
developing the Firm's estimates.

» We performed a retrospective assessment of management’s fair value estimates for certain of our selected financial instruments, for
which there were events or transactions occurring after the valuation date. We did so by comparing management’s estimates to
the relevant evidence provided by such events or transactions, as applicable.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New Y ork
February 22, 2024

We have served asthe Firm's auditor since 1997.
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